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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271r9544 1^0-852-3345 Ext 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 «rww.dbhs.oh.gov

May 31. 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Heajth,
to amend existing contracts with the Contractors listed t}elow for the provision of public
guardianship services, by exercising contract renewal options by increasing the total price
limitation by $6,868,540 from $6,299,383 to $13,167,923 and extending the completion dates
from June 30,2022 to June 30,2024, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 4%. Federal
Funds. 96% General Funds.

#18.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on June 24, 2020, item

Contractor

Name

Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

^  Increase ~

{Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Office of Public

Guardian

166528-

BOOI
Concord, NH $4,900,419 $5,469,576 $10,369,995

Tri-County
Community

Action

Program

177195-

B009
Berlin, NH $1,398,964 $1,398,964 $2,797,928

Total: $6,299,383 $6,868,540 $13,167;923

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, and
are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if heeded and justified.

,  ̂ See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing and to expand guardianship services,
statewide, for individuals with mental illness or developmental disabilities, as well as incapacitated
adults who are abused, neglected or exploited thereby leaving them at risk of substantial harm
because of their inability to provide for their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage
their personal affairs. This action also raises the per diem rate for guardianship services to $8.94,

The Department of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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representing an Increase of almost 10% from the current rate of $8.25 for one (1) of the
Contractors in order to more closely align with the Contractor's demonstrated current market rate
for these services.

Approximately 1,117 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2023 and 2024.

Guardianship services are necessary to meet the State's statutory obligations to
safeguard incapacitated individuals who are in state institutions as well as in community mental
health and developmental service programs, statewide. Services provided ensure that the
guardianships are maintained and limited In accordance with the standards embodied in NH RSA
464-A from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2024.

Contracted senn'ces include mentoring and training services for family members who are
willing to serve as guardian but who require a period of support. Providing this support will obviate
the need for a public guardian in these cases, which results iri a fiscal savings due to not needing
to engage pennanent public guardianship services.

The Department will continue monitoring contracted services by reviewing quarterly and
annual reports provided by the Contractors.

As referenced in Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, Revisions
to Standard Contract Provisions, Paragraph 1.2., of the original agreements, the parties have the
option to extend the agreements for up to two (2) additional years," contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council
approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew sen/ices for two (2) of the two (2) years
available.

Should the Governor and Executive Couricil not authorize this request, the Department
would be out of compliance with the requirements of NH RSA 135-C: 60; NH RSA 171-A: 10, II;
and NH RSA 161-F: 52. Additionally, individuals with mental illness, developmental disabilities
and incapacitated adults who are abused, neglected or exploited, would be left at risk of
substantial harm because of their inability to provide their own food, shelter, health care, safety,
or to manage their personal affairs.

Source of Federal Funds; Assistance Listing Number #93.667, FAIN #TBD.

The Department will request General Funds in the event that Federal Funds are no longer
available and services are still needed.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner



05-95-92-922010-4114 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV,

BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, GUARDIANSHIP SVCS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised Budget

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 92204114 S3.019.644.50 , $0 $3,019,644.50

2022 102-500731 - Contracts for Proq Svc 92204114 $3,019,644.50 SO $3,019,644.50

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 92204114 $0 S3.048.257.00 $3,048,257.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 92204114 $0 $3,048,257.00 $3,048,257.00

Subtotal $6,039,289.00 $6,096,514.00 $12,135,803.00

05-95-48-481010-9255-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT, HHS: ELDERLY & ADULT SVCS

DIV; GRANTS FOR SOCIAL SVC PROG. SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget
Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised Budget

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 48130201 $130,047 $0 $130,047

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 48130201 $130,047 $0 $130,047

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 48130201 $0 $156,939 $156,939

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 48130201 $0 $156,939 $156,939

Subtotal $260,094 $313,878 $573,972

05-95-93-923010-5947 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT. HS: DLTSS-DEVELOPMENTAL

SVCS, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, PROGRAM SUPPORT

State

Fiscal

Year.

Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised Budget

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 48130201 $0 $229,074 $229,074

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 48130201 $0 $229,074 $229,074

Subtotal $0 $458,148 $458,148

\. GrandTotall 56,299,3g3| $6,565,5401 $13,167,923\
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Guardianship Services contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Office of Public Guardian ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 24, 2020, (Item #18), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17. and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Contract Provisions, Paragraph 1.2., the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2024

2. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$10,369,995

4. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Subsection 1.3. Guardianship and Protection Services.
Paragraph 1.3.4. to read:

1.3.4. For persons referred to Contractor by the Department's Office of Client and Legal Services
pursuant to NH RSA 136-C:60 and NH RSA 171-A:10 II, the Contractor shall serve the
current total of 755 wards receiving guardianship services as well as any new persons
referred for services, in accordance with Paragraph 1.1.7 above, for a total of up to 790
cases during the contract period.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Subsection 1.3. Guardianship and Protection Services,
Paragraph 1.3.6. to read:

1.3.6. The Contractor shall provide guardianship services for no more than 47 persons, as referred
by the Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services pursuant to NH RSA^16T-F:52, at any point in
time during the contract period.

6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 94% General funds.

1.2. 6% Federal funds, Social Services Block Grant, as awarded oh August 4, 2021, by the
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families CFDA #93.667, FAIN TBD.

7. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3, to read:

3. The State shall pay the Contractor a per diem, per case rate for services provided in
fulfillment of this Agreement in accordance with the per diem rates as follows: ^ds
3.1. The per diem reimbursement rate for the provision of guardianship over tref^rson

Office of Public Guardian A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials
b/t/ZUZc

SS-2021-DBH-01-GUARD-01-A01 Page 1 of 4 Dale
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services or guardianship over the estate services, as approved by the Office of Client
and Legal Services for all Bureau of Mental Health Sen/ices or Bureau of
Developmental Services wards, shall be $8.94 per ward, per day, for up to 790 wards,
as follows:

3.1.1. The per diem rate shall be $8.94 per ward per day for guardianship over the
person services.

3.1.2. The per diem rate shall be $8.94 per ward per day for guardianship over the
estate services.

3.1.3. In the instance when the Contractor is the guardian over the person.and
guardian over the estate of a ward, the Department shall reimburse the
Contractor for each service in accordance with 3.1.1 and 3.1.2 above.

3.2. The hourly reimbursement rate for the provision of training in Exhibit B Section 1,
Subsection 1.4, Paragraph 1.4.1 shall be $60.00, not to exceed 25 hours for a total
amouht of $1,500.00.

3.3. The per diem reimbursement rate for the provision of guardianship over the person
.  services or guardianship over the estate sen/ices as requested by the Bureau of Elderly

and Adult Services shall be $8.94, per ward, per day, for up to 47 wards, as follows:

3.3.1. The per diem rate shall be $8.94 per ward per day for guardianship over the
person services.

3.3.2. The per diem rate shall be $8.94 per ward per day for guardianship over the
estate services.

3.3.3. In the instance when the Contractor is the guardian over the person and
guardian over the estate of a ward, the Department shall reimburse the
Contractor for each service in accordance with 3.3.1 and 3.3.2 above.

3.4. The per diem rates will be extended to the last day of the month following the month in
which the ward dies or for whom guardianship sen/ice are terminated.

3.5. For wards referred for guardianship services by the Bureau of Elderly and Adult
Services, the actual cost paid by Contractor for expenses incurred in the performance
of Contractors duties for guardianship over the estate under this Agreement, including,
but not limited to, filing fees, bond costs and appraisal fees where no other source of
reimbursement exists, shall not exceed $3,574.50.

-—OS

Office of Public Guardian A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials
WT/TUZr

SS-2021-OBH-01-GUARD-01-A01 Page 2 of 4 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2022, or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is
later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

6/2/2022

Date

■OocuSiQned by:

WiA S-
—6WP0t90«W<4a..-

NameiKatja s. fox

Title. Q.j rector

6/2/2022

Date

Office of Public Guardian
—DoeuSigoMl by;

-7CS46aBp«aM4POiii
Name: Linda Mai Ion
Title. Executive Director

Office of Public Guardian

SS-2021 -DBH-01 -GUARD-01-A01

A-S-1.2

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSlgneil by;uocu54gnM oy:
6/3/2022 7^°"^

P
wrattwwxeo.—

Date Name: Robyn cuarino

Title:
Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Office of Public Guardian A-S-1.2

SS-2021 -DBH-01 -GUARD-01-A01 Page 4 of 4
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Sccrclar>' of Stale of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that OFFICE OF PUBLIC

GUARDIAN is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New l lampshire on July 14. 1983. 1

further ccrtifv that all fees and documents required by the Secrctar>' of State's office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 30453 •

Certificate Number: 0005784894

©

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.-ccd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 31 st day of May A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secrctar\' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Roger P. Jobin ^ , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

llama duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Office of Public Guardian.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on Mav312022 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Linda Mailon (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Office of Public Guardian to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further,is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or riecessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. 1 further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in cpntracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:

Si e of Elected Officer

Ttle:

Rev. 03/24/20



DocuSign Envelope ID: D142FF94-09BE-4BDA-91DO-EC3D31358F74

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

5/31/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder In lieu of such endor8ement(s).

PRODUCER

THE ROWLEY AGENCY INC.

45 Constitution Avenue

P.O. Box 511

Concord NH 03302-0511

NAMF*^' Rachel Giunta

...V (603)224-2562

ACviRFss' rgiuntaerowleyagency.com

IN$URER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC «

INSURER A: Ohio Casualtv Company 24074

INSURED

The Office of the Public Guardian, LLC

2 Pillsbury Street

Suite 400

Concord NH 03301

INSURER B: Eastern Alliance Insurance Group

INSURERC :

INSURER D;

INSURERS:

INSURERF:

COVERAGES. CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

IBCT
UlSQ.

5D5ir

WVD
POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EPF
IMMmOAYYYt

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYYI

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MAOE OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurreneel

BZO<22)S94S2402 2/S/2022 2/5/2023 MEO EXP (Any one pyson)

PERSONAL 4 AOV INJURY

GEN\ AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE

POLICY

OTHER;

PRODUCTS - COMP/OPAGG

Hlr«d/non«wnad

1,000,000

1,000,000

15,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

1,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acddtml

ANY AUTO

ALL OWNED

AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Per accklem)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acddentl -

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 1.000.000

AGGREGATE 1.000.000

RETENTION S USO(22)59482402 2/5/2022 2/5/2023

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
i( yes, describe uryler
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

E

Exel: Klchaal Fuecat c

Raynond Bower t ttoqar Jobln

01-0000124869-03

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

E.L, EACH ACCIDENT 500,000

8/30/2021 8/30/2022 E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 500,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT 500.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORO 101. Additional Remarks Schadule. may be attached II more space Is required)

Covering operations of. the named insured during the policy period.

State of MH

Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Rachel Giunta/RG A

ACORD 25 (2014/01)

INS025 (201401)

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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OPG Mission Statement

The OPG Articles of Agreement and By-laws articulate the following objectives and mission:

This corporation is created for the following reasons:

A. The provision of guardianship, co-guardlanshlp and conservatorship services for Individuals
found to be legally Incapacitated pursuant to N.H. RSA 464-A and other applicable statutes.

B. To be designated as the Public Guardianship and Protection Program pursuant to N.H. RSA
547-B.

C. The provision of protective services, other than guardianship services that are insistent
with the intent of N.H. RSA 464-A. Such protective services may Include, but not be limited
to, power of attorney, client representative, or services as a representative or protective
payee.

D. The provision of guardianship and other fiduciary services to minors.

E. The provision of private fiduciary services.

The mission statement expresses OPG's already well established philosophy as follows:

'It Is the goal of this corporation to protect the legal and human rights and civil liberties of all individuals
It serves by exercising the highest ethical standards In decision making on behalf of others arid by
ensuring that the Individual dignity of Its clients Is respected."
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

Financial Statements

June 30, 2021 and 2020

and

Independent Auditor's Report
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021 and 2020
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^VACHON Clukay CCRT/F/ED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

^  ̂ , T)/^ 60S Chesiiuil Sircci ♦ Manchester. New Mampshire 03104
OJ V--OMPANY F (603) 622-7070 • Fax: (603) 622-1452 • www.vac.honcliika>':cc>m

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

Office of Public Guardian, Inc.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Office of Public Guardian, Inc.
(a nonprofit entity), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and
the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of finaneial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordanee with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffleient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Office of Public Guardian, Inc. as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in its
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net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

We were not engaged to audit the statements of financial position of the agency funds of the Office
of Public Guardian, Inc. Those funds, which arc more fully described in Note 9 to the financial statements,
were approximately $35,069,668 at June 30, 2021 and $34,557,341 at June 30, 2020, as represented by
management.

Manehester, New Hampshire
April 14, 2022
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2021 and 2020

ASSETS

2021 2020

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash

Accounis receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible
, receivables of 530,000 in 2021 and 2020
Contracts receivable

Prepaid expenses
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

S  1,039,763 5 959,717

95,734

226,683

35,151

1,397,331

134,215

171,521

36,267

1,301,720

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Condominium Unit

Office furniture and equipment
Computer equipment

Less accumulated depreciation
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

1,181,782

142,105

185,508

1,509,395
684,047

825,348

,181,782

142,105

185,508

1,509,395

628.010

881,385

OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Restricted cash

Investments-restricted

Software, net of accumulated amortization of $143,527 in 2021 and 2020
TOTAL OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

3,963

191,965

195,928

19,552

139,587

159.139

S 2,418,607 5 2,342,244

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities:

Accrued payroll
Accrued vacation

Other

Current portion of long-term liabilities
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

55,966

64,373

250,692

67,567

25,109

463,707

27,558

127,477

234,408

49,151

23,947

462,541

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

Mortgage notes payable, less current portion of 523,462 in 2021 and 522,376 in 2020
Notes payable, less current portion of S1,647 in 2021 and S i ,571 in 2020
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

446,648
31,361

478,009

941,716

470,120
33,008

503,128

965,669

NET ASSETS:

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated
With donor restrictions:

Purpose restrictions
Endowment funds

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

1,280,963

95,928
100,000

1,476,891

1,217,436

59,139
100,000

1,376,575

5 2,418,607 5 2,342,244

See notes tofinancial statements
3  -
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS:

SUPPORT AND REVENUE:

Fees and grants from governmental agencies $ 2,443,271 $ 2,009,871
Other fees 2,358,272 2,437,864

Contributions - 5,000

Investment return, net 1,792 2,603

Other income 683 328
TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 4,804,018 4,455,666

EXPENSES:

Program expense 3,312,762 3,107,532
Management and General Expenses 1,427,729 1,230,450
TOTAL EXPENSES 4,740,491 4,337,982

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 63.527 117,684

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS:

Investment return, net 36,789 5,453

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 36,789 5,453

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 100,316 123,137

NET ASSETS-July 1 1376,575 1,253,438
NET ASSETS-June 30 $ 1,476,891 $ 1,376,575

See noles tofinancial statements
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Supporting Services

Program

Management

and

Total

Supporting Total

Services General Services Expenses

ALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES;

Salaries $ 2,359,210 $  948,712 $  948,712 $ 3,307,922

Employee benefits 392,643 - 157,894 157,894 550,537

Payroll taxes 187,878 75,551 75,551 263,429

2,939,731 1,182,157 1,182,157 4,121,888

itl-IER EXPENSES;

Occupancy 32,453 13,050 13,050 45,503

Professional services 20,985 8,439 8,439 29,424

Computer and software expenses 64,249 25,837 25,837 .  90,086

Staff development 8,290 3,334 3,334 11,624

Office expenses 190,850 76,747 76,747 267,597

Travel 22,870 - 22,870

Insurance 39,731 39,731 39,731

Depreciation and amortization 56,037 56,037 56,037

Bad debts 8,993 8,993 8,993

Mortgage interest 17,480 7,029 7,029 24,509

Other 15,854 6,375 6,375 22,229

Total $ 3,312,762 $  1,427,729 $  1,427,729 $ 4,740,491

See notes tofinancial statements
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Program

Services

Supporting Services

Management Total

and Supporting Total
General Services Expenses

SALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES:

Salaries

Employee benefits

Payroll taxes

2,214,018

374,491
169,035

2,757,544

787,633

133,224
60,134

980,991

787,633

133,224
60,134

980,991

3,001,651

507,715
229,169

3,738,535

OTHER EXPENSES:

Occupancy 31,961 11,370 1 1,370 43,331

Professional services 27,532 9,795 9,795 37,327

Computer and software expenses 62,440, 22,214 22,2i4 84,654

Staff development 12,945' 4,605 4,605 17,550

Office expenses 117,792 41,904 41,904 159,696

Travel 60,695 - 60,695

Insurance 31,383 31,383 31,383

Depreciation and amortization 58,828 58,828 58,828

Bad debts 56,332 56,332 56,332

Mortgage interest 18,893 6,721 6,721 25,614

Other 17,730 6,307 -6,307 24,037

Total $ 3,107,532 S  1,230,450 $  1,230,450 • $ 4,337,982

See notes tofinancial statements
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash received from clients and third-party payers

Cash received from governmental agencies

Interest and dividends

Cash paid to employees

Cash paid to suppliers

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchase of property, plaint and equipment
Purchase of investments

Realized gains on investments
Cash received from interest and dividends

Net Cash Used for Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Payments on mortgages and notes

Net Cash Used for Financing Activities

Net Increase in Cash

Cash, Beginning of Year

Cash, End of Year

2020

2,416,682

1,994,827

2,603

(2,949,531)

(1,236.240)

228,341

(25,756)

(846)

3,877
2,702

(20,023)

(22,853)

(22,853)

185,465
793,804

$  1,043,726 $ 979,269

(23,957)

(23,957)

64,457

979,269

2021

2,388,443

2,388,109

1,792

(3,354,742)

(1.319.599)

104,003.

(26,318)

6,779
3,950

(15,589)

Supplemental Data:

Interest paid

Unrealized gain (loss) on investments

24,509
26,060

25,614

(M26)

S  50,569 $ 24,488

See notes to financial statements
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 1~SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Purpose

The Office of Public Guardian, inc. (the "Entity") was incorporated as a non-profit organization on
July 14, 1983. The Entity was established to provide guardianship, co-guardianship and conservatorship
services for individuals found to be legally incapacitated pursuant to New Hampshire State law
(RSA 464-A) and other applicable statutes. Protective services other than guardianship may include, but
are not limited to, power of attorney, client representative, or services as a representative or protective
payee.

Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Office of Public Guardian, Inc. conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America as applicable to non-profit organizations, except as indicated
hereafter. The following is a summary of significant accounting policies. .

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting and have been
prepared to focus on the Organization as a whole and to present balances and transactions according to
the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Net Assets Wilhoul Donor Restriclions - Net assets available for. use in general operations and not subject
to donor or certain grantor restrictions. These net assets may be used at the discretion of management and
the Entity's Board of Directors.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor or certain grantor-imposed restrictions.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of
time or other events specified by the donor. .Other donor-imposed restrictions are jjerpetual in nature,
where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are
released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated,
purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Recognition of Contributions and Donor Restrictions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Entity that is, in substance,
unconditional. The Entity reports contributions restricted by donors as increases in net assets without
donor restrictions if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction end or purpose
restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All other donor
restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the
nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to
net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from
restrictions.
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and other cash accounts with a maturity of 90 days or
less. For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

2021 2020

. As presented on the Statements of Financial Position:

Cash S 1,039,763 $ 959,717
Cash, restricted 3,963 19,552

S 1,043,726 S 979,269

Significant Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Entity's cash balances exceed amounts insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).
Deposits held by the bank at June 30, 2021 include cash of approximately $566,214 which is not covered
by depository insurance. As of June 30, 2020, the uninsured cash balance was $617,507.

Restricted Cash and Investments

Restricted cash and investments consist of cash and investments for the Graupner Endowment Fund, a
donor restricted contribution.

Investments

Investments, consisting of equity and fixed income mutual funds, are reported at their fair values in the
statements of financial position. Net investment retum/(loss) is reported in the statements of activities and

consists of interest income, realized and unrealized gains and losses, less external investment expenses.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. The Entity's policy is to capitalize expenditures for major
improvements and to charge operations currently for expenditures which" do not extend the lives of related
assets. The provision for depreciation is detemiined by the straight-line method at rates intended to
depreciate or amortize the cost of related assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Years

Equipment 5- 10

Furniture 5- 10 •

Buildings 40

Depreciation expense was $56,037 and $58,828 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Bad Debts

The Entity uses the reserve method for accounting for bad debts. For the years ended June 30, 2021 and

2020, the Entity reser\'ed $30,000 as an allowance for uncollectible receivables. Management estimated
these allowances by evaluating the probability of collection on a per account basis.
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

Accrued Vacation

Full time employees accrue Paid Time Off (PTO) during their first year of employment at a rate of 9.38
hours per completed month of service. After the first year of service employees are credited with 150 to
262.5 hours of PTO for that year on January 1st, based on each employee's years of service. Employees
may carry over 37.5 to 150 hours of unused PTO into each calendar year based on their years of service.
Any accrued, but unused PTO is payable to the employee upon separation from employment and has been
recorded as.a liability at year end.

Income Taxes

The Entity is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
and is also exempt from Stale of New Hampshire income taxes and, therefore, has made no provision for
Federal or State income taxes. In addition, the Entity has been determined by the Internal Revenue
Service not to be a "Private Foundation" within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Code. The Entity is
annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from income Tax (Form 990) with the IRS.
FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740 entitled Accounting for Income Taxes rcquires.the
Entity to report uncertain tax positions for financial reporting purposes. The Entity had no uncertain tax
positions as of June 30, 2021 and, accordingly does not have any unrecognized lax benefits that need to
be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash, and equivalents, accounts receivable, contracts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued expenses
arc carried in the financial statements at amounts which approximate fair value due to the inherently
short-term nature of the transactions. The fair values determined for financial instruments are estimates,
which for certain accounts may differ significantly from the amounts that could be realized upon
immediate liquidation.

Revenue Recognition

The Entity recognizes contributions, donations, and other miscellaneous income when cash is received.
Interest income is recognized monthly as accrued. The Entity recognizes revenue from contracts with
customers in the form of guardianship services provided to individuals. Scr\'ices provided to individuals
are charged to governmental contracts when eligible, and for those not eligible, charged as "private pay."

The Entity has revenue derived from governmental contracts for guardianship services provided, which
are based upon certain perfonnance requirements. Revenue from governmental contracts is recognized
when the Entity has met the performance requirements specified by contract provisions. For governmental
contracts, services are billed on a monthly basis in arrears.

Private pay guardianship services arc billed in one of three methods: hourly for services related to
estate/financial matters and monthly fiat rate for guardianship over person; per diem for court appointed
guardianship over person; and on a percentage basis for trusts and guardianship services of a minor. Per
diem services are billed in advance, while hourly, fiat rate and percentage-based services are billed after
services have been provided. The Entity recognizes revenue for private pay services at the point in time
when.customers are billed. Receivables may be recorded in advance of services provided.

10
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

Functional Allocation ofExpenses

The eosts of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
statements of activities. The statements of functional expenses present the natural classification detail of
expenses by function.

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one
program or supporting function. Accordingly, certain indirect costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited, based primarily on percentage allocations calculated based
on hours worked (time and effort). The expenses that are allocated include employee benefits, payroll
taxes, occupancy, professional services, computer and software expense, office expense, mortgage
interest, and other miscellaneous expenses.

Pervasiveness ofEstimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Change in Accounting Principle

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued new guidance that created Topic 606, Revenue
from Contracts with Customers, in the Accounting Standards Codification (ASC). Topic 606 supersedes
the revenue recognition requirements in FASB ASC 605, Revenue Recognition, and requires the
recognition of revenue when promised goods or services are transferred to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
The new guidance also added Subtopic 340-40, Other Assets and Deferred Costs-Contracts with
Customers, to the ASC to require the deferral of incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a
customer. Collectively, we refer to the new Topic 606 and Subtopic 340-40 as the "new guidance."

The Entity adopted the requirements of the new guidance as of July 1, 2020, utilizing the modified
retrospective method of transition. The new guidance was applied using the practical expedient provided
in Topic 606 that allows the guidance to be applied only to contracts that were not complete as of July 1,
2020. Adoption of the new guidance resulted in changes to our accounting policies for revenue
recognition, trade receivables, contract costs, contract liabilities, and deferred costs. However,
management estimates that the effect of these changes on the amounts that would have been reported
under the former guidance to be immaterial.

NOTE 2-EeONOMIC DEPENDENCE

The Entity's primary source of support are fees and grants received from the State of New Hampshire
totaling $2,443,271 (51% total revenue), and $2,009,871 (45% total revenue) for the years ended June 30,
2021 and 2020, respectively. Revenue is recognized as earned under the terms of the contract based on
units and level of sendees provided. Other support originates as charges for private services, interest, and
other income. The contract has been renewed through the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.



DocuSign Envelope ID; D142FF94-09BE-4BDA-91D0-EC3D31358F74

OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 3~LIQUiDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The Entity regularly monitors the availability of resources required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. Cash reserves in excess of daily operational needs are invested in money
market and savings accounts to maximize investment return while maintaining safety and liquidity.

The following table reflects the Entity's financial assets as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, reduced by
amounts that are not available to meet general expenditures within one year of the statement of financial
position date because of donor restrictions.

Financial assets available for general expenditure, reduced by donor or other restrictions limiting their
use, within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the following:

2021 2020

Cash $  1,043,726 $  979,269

Investments 191,965 139,587

Accounts receivable 95,734 134,215

Contracts receivable 226,683 171,521

Total Financial Assets 1,558,108 1,424,592

Less:

Net assets with donor restrictions (195,928) (159,139)

Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs

for General Expenditures Within One Year $  1,362,180 $  1,265,453

NOTE 4-INVESTMENTS

Fair Value Measurements

The Entity reports under the Fair Value Measurements pronouncements of the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification (FASB ASC 820-10), which establishes a framework for measuring fair value.
That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs of valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy arc described below.

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology arc unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in active rriarkets that the Entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation include:

•  Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
•  Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active;
•  Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;
•  Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by

correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for
substantially the full tenn of the asset or liability.
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEiMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.

In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorized
within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value measurement is
categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is
significant to the entire measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to entire
measurement requires judgment, taking into account factors specific to the asset or liability. The
categorization of an asset within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the asset and
does not necessarily correspond to our assessment of the quality, risk, or liquidity profile of the asset or
liability.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.

Equiiy and fixed income mutualfunds: Valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which
the individual securities are traded.

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Entity's assets measured at fair
value on a recurring basis, as of June 30, 2021 and 2020;

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2021

Level 1 Level 2 L-evel 3 Total

Equity mututal funds $  141,438 $ 141,438

Fixed income mututal funds 50,527 50,527

Total Assets at Fair Value $  191,965 $ - $ - $ 191,965

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2020

I.evel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Equity mututal funds $  97,320 , $ 97,320

Fixed income mututal funds 42,267 42,267

Total Assets at Fair Value $  139,587 $ . - $ - $ 139,587

NOTE 5--END0VVMENTS

The Board of Directors of the Entity has interpreted the State Prudent Management of Institutional Funds
Act (SPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the
donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. Because of this
interpretation, the Entity classifies the original value of the gift as donor restricted net assets which arc
permanently restricted. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund is classified as
donor restricted net assets until approved for expenditure when it is reclassified to unrestricted net assets.
The Entity appropriates amounts for expenditure in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence
prescribed by SPMIFA. In accordance with SPMIFA, the Entity considers the following factors in
making a detennination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (1) duration and
preservation of the endowment funds; (2) the purposes of the Entity and the endowment fund; (3) general
economic conditions; (4) effect of inflation and deflation; (5) the expected total return from income and
the appreciation of investments; (6) other resources of the Entity; and (7) the investment policy of the
Entity.
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

The Entity has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide a
predictable stream of income of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of those endowment assets over the long-term. Endowment assets include
those assets of donor-restricted funds that the Entity must hold in perpetuity or for donor-specified
periods. Under this policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, the endowment assets are invested in a
manner that is intended to achieve an after-cost total real rate of return, including investment income as

well as capital appreciation, which exceeds the annual distribution with acceptable levels of risk. The
Entity expects its endowment assets, over time, to produce an average return of approximately 10%
annually. Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount.

To satisfy its long-term rate of return objectives, the Entity relies on a total return strategy in which
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation and current yield. The Entity targets a
diversified asset allocation which includes equity and debt securities. This is intended to result in a
consistent inflation-protection rate of return that has enough liquidity to make an annual distribution of
approximately $5,000 on average while growing the fund, if possible.

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds
may fall below the level that the donor or SPMIFA requires the Entity to retain as a fund of perpetual
duration.

The following tabulation summarizes the relationship between carrying values and market values of
investment assets for the years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020:

For the year ended June 30, 2021:

Donor restricted net assets as of

July 1,2020
Investment retum:

Investment income, net of fees

Net appreciation

Donor restricted net assets as of June 30, 2021

Purpose
Restricted

Endowment

Funds

$  . 59,139 $ 100,000 $

10,729
26,060 : _

Total

159,139

10,729
26,060

$  95,928 S 100,000 $ 195,928

For the year ended June 30, 2020:
Purpose

Restricted

Endowment

Funds Total

Donor restricted net assets as of

July 1,2019
Investment return:

Investment income, net of fees

Net depreciation

Donor restricted net assets as of June 30, 2020

$  53,686 $ 100,000

6,579
(1.126)

153,686

6,579

S  59,139 $ 100,000 S 159,139
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 6--LONG-TERM DEBT

At June 30, 2021 and 2020; mortgage and notes payable consists of the following:

$584,000 mortgage note payable with bank, secured by
property, payable in monthly installments of interest
and principal reduction of $3,774, through October 2035,
with interest at 4.75% per annum through November 2025.
Subsequent interest will be 2.25% plus the Ten Year Federal
llome Loan Bank Index Rate.

$41,000 note payable with bank, secured by all assets, payable
in monthly installments of interest and principal of $1,589
through October 2035, with interest at 4.75% per annum
through November 2025. Subsequent interest will be 2.25%
plus the Ten Year Nome Loan Bank Index Rate.

Less current portion

2021 2020

$  470,1 10 $  492,496

33,008 34,579

503,118 527,075
25,109 23,947

$  478,009 $  503,128

Debt service requirements are as follows:

Year

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

Thereafter

Amount

$  25,109

26,329

27,607

28,947

30,590

364,536

$  503,118

NOTE 7--REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The following table provides information about significant balances on contracts with customers for the
prior three years:

June 30, 2021

June 30, 2020

June 30, 2019

Receivables

$  349,763

$  330,081

$  341,595

Contract

Assets

Contract

Liabilities
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 8-RETIREMENT PLAN

The Entity has a tax deferred annuity plan under Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code for all full-
time employees. An employee becomes eligible to participate at the commencement of employment and
is vested when an initial contribution is made. Employer contributions are made on each participant's
behalf; contribution rates were 6% and 5% of gross wages for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. The Entity contributed $141,742 and $101,955 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively, to the plan.

NOTE 9-AGENCV FUNDS

The Entity maintains guardian accounts on behalf of the wards of the State of New Hampshire. These
funds amounted to approximately $35,069,668 and $34,557,341 as of June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. The assets and related obligations have not been reflected on the Statements of Financial
Position at June 30, 2021 or 2020. r

NOTE ID -SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through April 14, 2022, which is the date the financial statements
were available to be issued.
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UNDA MALLON, ESQUIRE
Office of Public Guardian
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B.A., American Studies, 1977

PROFESSIONAL

EXPERIENCE: OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN

Concord, New Hampshire

Executive Director, 1998-Present
Deputy Director, 1985-1998
Pubiic Guardian, 1984-1985

Responsible for directing a non-profit organization certified by
the NH Supreme Court to provide public guardianship
throughout the State of NH to quaiified indigent citizens
receiving services through the Department of Heaith and
Human Services and Department of Corrections

Responsible for overseeing the provision of private
guardianship and other fiduciary services to individuals
statewide

Provide supervision, consultation and training to twenty-six
staff members including attorneys, medical professionals and
social vyorkers
Develop organizational policies and procedures
Provide education, training and other consultative services on
a state, regional and national basis
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NEW ENGLAND NON-PROFIT

HOUSING CORPORATION

Concord, New Hampshire
Staff Attorney, 1982-1984

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE

INSTITUTIONAL LAW PROJECT

Concord, New Hampshire
Law Clerk, 1981-1982

• Statewide program concerned with matters affecting the
rights of Institutionalized and disabled persons in the areas
of mental health, developmental disabilities, juvenile and
prison law.

• Focus on pursuing remedies which enabled these individuals
to live in the least restrictive, most Integrated community
setting possible.

CERTIFICATIONS: Center for Guardianship Certification
• Certified Master Guardian

• Certified Proctor for CGC exams

MEMBERSHIPS: National Guardianship Association
• Ethics Committee; First Responder
• Nominating Committee

New Hampshire Bar Association
• Elder Law, Estate Planning and Probate Section

Probate Court Task Force on Professional Guardians

Long Term Care Ombudsman Advisory Committee

Incapacitated Adult Fatality Review Committee

Foundation for Healthy Communities
• Healthcare Decisions Coalition
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Tracy IVI. Cuiberson. Esq.

Experience 2015 ̂Current Office of Public Guardian
Staff Attorney / National Certified Guardian
• Provide legal counsel as necessary to assist in the provision of guardianship

services to Incapacitated clients throughout New Hampshire.
• Provide guardianship services to incapacitated adults

2011 - Current Cuiberson Legal Services of New Hampshire, PLiC

Owner / Solo Practitioner

•  Legal services to include probate litigation, elder law and estate planning, and
Nursing Home Abuse Litigation

2006-2011 Office of the New Hampshire Attorney General, Concord NH

Assistant Attorney General

• Head of the Elder Abuse and Financial Exploitation Unit

• Prosecuted cases of homicide, abuse, neglect and financial exploitation of
elderly and incapacitated adults in Superior, District, and Probate Courts
throughout the Stete of New Hampshire. Notable prosecutions include:

• Trained medical professionals, first responders, judges, court personnel,
emergency service providers, and adult protection workers in identi^ng signs
and symptoms of elder abuse, neglect self-neglect and exploitation, mandatory
reporting, investigation techniques and evidence preservation.

• Drafted and filed State's response to defendant's appeal to Supreme Court

• Chalmian of the Incapacitated Adult Fatality Review Committee.

2005-2006 Office of the Hillsborough County Attorney, Manchester NH

Assistant County Attorney

■ Represented the Stale and Hillsborough County in Juvenile, District and
Superior Courts.'

• Prosecution of misdemeanor and felony-level crimes.

• Presentation of felony cases to the grand jury for indictment

Co-Director of Communities Against Senior Exploitation (CASE) Partnership.. .

1992-2005 Goffstown.Police Department, Goffstown NH

Police Officer / Prosecutor

■ Certified New Hampshire Police Officer

•  Instructed and trained police officers In the areas of juvenile law, criminal and
motor vehlde law enforcement and adjudication, search and seizure, use of
force, constitutionallaw, and the laws of arrest

■ Drafted, reviewed, and executed search and arrest warrants.

• Training and experience in foe Investigation of felonies and serious
misdemeanors to Include homicide, sexual assault, child neglect and abuse,
robbery, burglary, arson, fraud, intemet crimes and financial exploitation.
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Plymouth State University.2005-2007

AcQunct Faculty

•  Instructor within the Department of Criminal Justice.

Specific instruction in courses to include "Criminal Adjudication",

Plymou

in

th. NH

Constitutton and the Criminal Justice Protocol

Juvenile Justice".

and

'The

Domestic Violence and

2005-Current New Hampshire Police Standards and Training Council, Concord NH

Guest Lecturer

•  Instructor for in-service training of police officers attending "Basic Police
Prosecutor" Course.

■ Lectured on topics to Include The Rules of Evidence", "Case Preparation and
Analysis" and "Elder Abuse and Financial Exploitation Investigation".

" Facilitator of mock DWI trials.

Education

2004 Massachusetts School of Law

"  Juris Doctor Degree

North Andover, MA

Certifications and

Professional

Oiganizatiori

Memberships

1992 Saint Anselm College Goffstown, NH
•  Bachelor of Arts Degree

■  Completion of requirements for Criminal Justice in 1992
Completion of requirements for English in 1998

200d-Current - Chair of Incapacitated Adult Fatality Review Committee

2006-Current - Co-Chairperson of Law Enforcement Sub-Committee of the Elder
Abuse Advisory Council

2006-Cunent - Panel Member of Long-Tenn Care Safety Nat Committee

2004 - Member of the Massachusetts Bar Association .BA-159542
2004 - Member of the New Hampshire Bar Association BA-16430
2005 - Justice of the Peace - New Hampshire
•  1992 - Certified New Hampshire Police Officer

Continuing Legal

Education
Trial Advocacy I - Natbnal DistrKt Attome/s Association: Trial Advocacy II -
National District Attorney's Association: Prosecuting Cases of Elder Abuse -
National District Attome/s As^ation: Advanced Cross Examination: Nuts and
Bolls of Criminal Law: Access to Public Records: New Hampshire Bar
Association Practical Skills Course: Communities Against Senior Exploitation
(CASE) Partnership: NH Attorney General's Child Abuse and Domestic Violence
Conference.
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Other

■  Board of Directors: Honor Flight New England

■  Board of Directors for Suncook Youth Soccer

■  Conversational French; Percussionist.
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Mary K. Michaud

EDUCATION Master of Social Work. 1990

State University of New York at Albany, Albany, NY

NH LICSW, 1996 (currently on inactive status)

B.A. Psychology. 1986

St. Anselm College, Manchester, NH

PROFESSIONAL Office of Public Guardian. 1998-present

EXPERIENCE Concord, NH

Director of Guardianship Services. Julv 2017-Dresent

•  Provide oversight and management of guardian department, directly
supervising 18 professional guardians. Including 2 team leaders.

•  Serve as a member of the management team, participating in
organizational decisions.

•  Responsible for making caseload assignments to ensure manageable
caseload size and composition.

•  In conjunction with Executive Director and Associate Director, responsible
for hiring new guardians. Provide orientation and training for new
guardians and oversee ongoing training for all guardians.

•  Serve as primary guardian for several Individuals.

Guardian Suoervlsor. 2014-2017

•  Provide direct supervision, consultation and performance oversight for
professional guardian staff.

•  Provide orientation and training for new guardians.

•  Serve as primary guardian for several Individuals.

Staff Guardian. 1998-Dresent

•  Provide advocacy and informed decision making for Individuals
deemed Incapacitated by the NH Probate Court due to intellectual
disability, mental Illness, traumatic brain injury and/or dementia.

•  Collaborate with families, medical providers, nursing homes, area

agencies, community mental health centers, state psychiatric hospital,
and other inpatient, residential and outpatient providers to ensure
best possible outcomes for individuals in least restrictive settings.
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Genesis Behavioral Health (fka Genesis-The Counseling Group). 1996-1998

Laconla, NH

Case Management Coordinator. 1997-1998

•  Provided administrative and clinical oversight of Community

Support Program clinical case management and Independent
living services for individuals with serious and persistent mental
Illness.

Clinical Case Manager. 1996-1997

•  Provided primary therapy and case management services for
adults with serious and persistent mental illness.

•  Performed Emergency Services clinical evaluations

Gateway Center for Human Development. Brunswick. GA. 1995'1996

Interim Program Manager

• • Managed psychosoclal day treatment program for adults with
mental illness during agency search for permanent manager.

Rensselaer County Department of Mental Health. 1990-1995

Troy, NY

Intensive Case Manager. 1991-1995

•  Provided outreach and support for adults with serious and
persistent mental illness at risk for homelessness,
incarceration or recurring psychiatric hospltallzatlon.

Mental Health Social Worker. 1990-1991

•  Responsible for primary therapy and case management
services for adults with mental illness.
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ANDREA L. SISSON, CPA
Office of Public Guardian

2 Pillsbury St., Suite 400
Concord, NH .03301

(603)224-8041

SXMMARY:

•  18 years of experience with local CPA firms working with a wide range of clients
including small service businesses, non-profit organizations and multi-million dollar
manufacturing companies.

• Co-founded and managed local payroll service bureau.
•  Proficient in various types of tax return preparation, all areas of accounting, bookkeeping

and payroll.
• Designed and implemented customized bookkeeping systems for clients.
• Hired, trained and supervised staff at various levels.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

Office of Public Guardian Concord, New Hampshire

Business Manager 10/2007-Present
• Responsible for all financial aspects of the organization including daily

accounting work, preparation of financial statements, preparation of payroll for 27
person staff, creation of budgets

• Responsible for supervision of all administrative staff and oversight of all
administrative functions of the entity

• Assist in the development of org^izational policies and procedures as a member
of the management team

Peter C. Brankman and Company, P.C. Concord, New Hampshire
Senior Staff Accountant/Manager 10/2004 - 10/2007
• Managed individual tax portion of practice (400-500 returns); controlled work

flow, supervised staff, prepared returns in a fast-paced deadline driven
environment.

• Designed and implemented paperless individual tax processing system.
•  Perform compilations, reviews and audits of various for profit and non-profit

client financial statements.

• Designed and implemented bookkeeping systems for clients.
• Trained and supervised staff on all types of engagements.
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D^Agnese, Robinson and Company/Stephen C. Robinson and Company, /McLarney
and Company (Same firm various owners) Concord, New Hampshire
Staff Accountant/Senior Staff Accountant/Manager 9/1989 - 6/2004
• Assisted and advised clients with various accounting and management functions.
•  Installed and set up accounting software packages; train client personnel.
• Managed all bookkeeping clients.
• Designed and implemented accounting and intemal control procedures.
• Managed work flow through busy tax seasons
• Hired, trained and supervised staff.

EDUCATION:

• BS in Accounting, Bentley College May 1989
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PROFILE

Proven, innovative and detail-oriented professional with experience in

probate matters, compliance, training, state and federal benefits,
employee development and supervision. Bachelor's degree In Human
Resources.

KEY QUALIFICATIONS

0  CONSISTENTLY THINKS CREATIVELY IN DEVELOPING TRAINING AND

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT PROGRAMS AND RESOURCES

0 MENTORING AND SUPERVISING TEAM MEMBERS, ENSURING

EMPLOYEES FEEL VALUED, SUPPORTED, AND RESPECTED IN THE
WORKPLACE

0  EXCELLENT INTERPERSONAL AND EMOTIONAL INTELLIGENCE SKILLS

0 ABILITY TO BUILD STRONG RELATIONSHIPS AND BROAD NETWORKS
, WITH KEY PARTNERS AND STAKEHOLDERS

0  CONSIDERABLEPROBLEM-SpLVINGSKILLSTOACHIEVEBEST
OUTCOMES FOR EMPLOYEES AND THE ORGANIWTION

0  ABILITY TO EVALUATE WORKPLACE ISSUES AND CONFLiaS AND
BRINGS THEM TO RESOLUTION

0  IMPROVE EMPLOYEE RETENTION AND MOTIVATE STAFF THROUGH
CREATING EMPLOYEE INITIATIVES

0  COMMUNICATES EFFECTIVELY, NEGOTIATES CONFLICT AND
INFLUENCES OTHERS TO TAKE ACTIONS NOT ALWAYS CONSISTENT

WITH INITIAL OBJECTIVES

EXPERIENCE

Probate Paralegal
office of Public Guardian (OPG)

October 2019-Present

0  Provides paralegal support to lead attorneys and back-up support to
Court Intake Coordinator

0 Advises Property Team and Fiduciary Supervisors
0  Participates In all Legal, Fiduciary & Property Meetings
0 - Develops and manages and advises on SSA & AAU appeals. Cases often

resolved without a hearing
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0 Mentors, collaborates and provides direct support to staff In decision
making process

0  Identifies complex problems and creates solutions to meet desired
outcomes

0 Maintains professional relationships and communicates with
government officials and legal representatives

0  Effectively manages multiple demands and competing priorities
0 Works independently and manages risks without excessive supervision
0  Demonstrates commitment to clients and values of organization
0  In depth knowledge of the NH Court Probate system
0  In depth knowledge of State & Federal benefits, appeals, family law,

landlord-tenant, small claims actions and highly complex-litigation
0 Manages entire estate administration caseload on behalf of the office

Paralegal/Non-Attorney Disability Representative
Wyskiel, Boc, Tillinghast& Bolduc, P.A. (WBTB)
January 2014- October 2019

0  Facilitated coaching and mentoring to other peers and supports their
professional development, as well as taught learning modules and
presents same to other members of the department

0  Conducted new hire Interviews and gathers information during the dn-
boarding process

0  Participated in performance management and time management
review of other employees, including root cause problem solving
sessions

0  Conducts trainings for department and assesses training needs
0  Provided paralegal and non-attorney representative support to lead

attorneys

0 Mentors claimants throughout the social security disability process
0  Prepares and files online applications to appeals'at local, state and

.  federal levels, as well as medical summary and brief preparation .
0  Extensiveinteraction with state examiners, judges and attorneys
0  Communicates and collaborates with government officials, physician

offices and supervisors
0  Conducts In-depth telephone Interviews and thoroughly documents the

file

0 Manages the overall claim risk, including the decision to close a claim
0  Participates in settlement discussions
0  In depth grasp of highly complex claim practices and legal precedents
0  is considered a leader/expert/manager within the department
0  Comprehensive knowledge base and highly developed skills for

situations that are highly complex

Bank Teller

Citizens Bank

June 2011-December 2013

p  Lead in training and support for other co-workers
0  Provided excellent customer service to customers by creating a friendly

rapport with clients
0  Processed teller transactions for customers, including servicing client

accounts, managing safety deposit box payments, cashing checks,
balancing cash drawers, handling night deposits, and correcting
discrepancies

0  Administered opening and closing of personal and business accounts
0  Exceeded sales goals
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN

Key Personnel List

onus Contract Amendment 7/1/22 - 6/30/24

•Jnh Title" Sfllorv

% Paid From

This Contract

Amotinl Paid

From This Contract

Linda Mallon, JD, NMG Excculivc Director S 133,581.80 49.31% S 65,869.19

Tracy Culbcrson, Eiq, NCG General Counsel S 131,170.96 49.31% S 64,680.40

Mary Michaud, MSW, NMG Director of Guardianship Scr\'iccs s 99,715.64 49.31% s 49,169.78

Andrea Sisson, CPA Director of Finance s 97,525.89 49.31% s 48,090.02

Diane Aikcns Director ofFiduciary scr\'iccs s 77.250.00 49.31% s 38,091.98
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Lorl A. Sblbiorltc '

Ceosltsioocr

MdJai A. Sl Cyr, Itq.
Chief Lcfil Oflker

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

department of health and human services

LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES

129 PLEA^PfT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9443 1-80^851-3345 Eih 9443

Fsi: 603-271-1912 TDD Acct*s: 1-8D0-735-2964
v.dbtu.nh.gov

June 8. 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03^1

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into Sole Source contracts with the vendors listed below In an amount not to exceed
$6,299,383 to provide public guardianship services, vnth the option to renew for up to two (2)
additional years, effective July 1, 2020, or upon Govemor and Council approval, virhichever is
later, through June 30. 2022. 2% Federal Funds. 98% General Funds.

Vendor Name
Vendor

Code
Area Served Contract Amount

Office of Public Guardian 166528-8001 Concord, NH $4,900,419

Tri-County Community
Action Prograrii

177195-B009

1

Berlin, NH $1,398,964

Total: $6,299,383

Funds are available In the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available In Stale Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds In the.future operating budget, with the ai^orily to adjust budget line Items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
If needed and justified.

SEE ATTACHED FISCAL DETAILS

05-95-92-922010-4114 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES,

State

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account
Class THIe Job Number Total Amount

2021 . 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204114 $3,019,644.50

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204114 $3,019,644.50

Subtotal $6,039,289.00
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

05-96-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT. HHS; ELDERLY & ADULT SVCS DIV, GRANTS FOR SOCIAL SVC PROG, SOCIAL
SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

State

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 48130201 $130,047

2022 102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 48130201 $130,047

Subtotal S2e0,094

. Total $6,299,383

. EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the vendors are the only vendors able to provide
the necessary services. RSA 547-B establishes the Public Guardianship and Protection Program
for guardianship services to be provided per NH RSA 135-C:60 and NH RSA 171-A;10. NH RSA
547-B;6 requires the Departfnent to contract with one or more organizations that the New
Hampshire Supreme Court has designated as a public guardianship and protection program. The
Office of Public Guardian and Tri-County Community Action Program are the only organizations
the New Hampshire Supreme Court has designated as public guardianship and protection
programs.

The purpose of this request is to provide guardianship services, statewide, for up to 1092
individuals with mental Illness or developmental disabilities, as well as incapacitated adults who
are abused, neglected or exploited, leaving them at risk of substantial harm because of their
inabllrty to provide for their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage their personal
affairs.

These services are necessary to meet the StMe's statutory obligations to safeguard
incapacitated individuals who are in state institutions as well as in community mental health and
developmental service programs, statewide. Services provided ensure that the guardianships are
maintained and limited in accordance with the standards embodied in RSA 464-A from July 1,
2020 to June 30. 2022.

Contracted senrlces Iridude mentoring and training services for family members who are
willing to serve as guardian but who require a period of support. Providing this support will obviate
the need for a public guardian in these cases, which results in a fiscal savings due to not needing
to er)9age permanent public guardianship sen/ices.

Approval of the Contracts will allow the vendors to provide protection services on a
statewide basis. These Contracts also meet the requirements of NH RSA 135-C:60. NH RSA 171-
A: 10. II and NH RSA l61-F.52..The vendors agree to seek reimbursement from other payer
sources. Including social security, when providing protection services.

The attached Contracts Include language that reserves the right to renew each contract
for up to two (2) additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory
performance of contracted services and Governor and Executive Council approval.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request the Department would be out
of compliance wHh the requirements of NH RSA 135-C: 60; NH RSA 171-A: 10, II; and NH RSA
161-F: 52. Additionally, individuals wHh mental illness, developmental disabilities and
incapacitated adults who are abused, neglected or exploited, would be left at risk of substantial
harm because of their inability to provide their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage
their personal affairs.

Areas served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: CFOA #93.667, FAIN #2001NHSOSR75

The Department wilt request General Funds in the event that Federal Funds are no longer
available and services are still needed.

Respectfully sub

.on A. Shibinett

Commissioner

Tha Dtparlnunt ofHtolUi and Human Strvicta'Mittion ii lojoin eommunilita and famUita
in prouidin^dpportuniliea for cilittna to ocKUvi heolth and indepandence.
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flMncUl Detail

0S-95-92-92201(M114 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OEPT OF. HHSlBEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV OF.

BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, GUARDIANSHIP SVCS

Office of Public Guardian

State FI»C8lY«ar Class Title Class Account Increase/fDecrease) Revised Amount

2021

Contracts for Program
Services

102-5M731 SO. 00 $2,320,162.50 $2,320,162.50

2022

Contracts (or Program
Services

102-500731 SO.OO $2,320,162.50 $2,320,182.50

Subtotal SO. 00 $4,640,325.00 K 640.325.00

Trl^ounty Community Action Proaratn

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Amount IncreaseflDecrease) Revised Amount

2021

Contracts (or Program
Services

102-500731 $0.00 $699,482.00 $S99.482.X

2022

Contracts (or Program
Services

102-500731 $0.00 $699,462.00 $696,482.00

Subroraf SO.OO Sf 396.964.00 S1.398M4.00

0S-$S46-481010-92S5 HEALTH AND SOCUL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS:ELO£RLY • ADULT SERVICES.

GRANTS TO LOCALS, SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

Offlca of Public Guardian

Slate Fiscal Year Class Tllle Class Account Current Amount IncreaseHOecreaso) Revised Amount

2021

Contracts (or Program
Services

102-500734 $0.00 $130,047.00 $130,047.00

2022

Contracts for Program

Services
102-500734 $0.00 $130,047.00 $130,047.00

Subtotal SO.OO $260,094.00 $260,094.00

Grartd Total $0.00 Se.299.383.00 $6,299,383.00

Page 1 of 1
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FOEUVf NVMBERP-37 {vnim 12/11/2019)

SobjccCr.Cuardtanship Services (SS-202I-DBH-01-GUARD-01)

Notice: TTiU ayeenwnt and all of its attadsmentt Aall become public upon lubmiwion to Oovemor and
Executive Council ftr approval. Any infonnetion that Is private, confidential or proprietary must
be dcarty identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contitct.

agreement

The Slate of New Hampshlroand the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

I.) Slate Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 Sute Agency Address

129 Pteasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Office of Public Guardian

1.4 Contractor Address

2 Plllsbury Street, Suite 400
Concord. NH 03301

1.5 Contr^or Phone
Number

(603)224-8041

1.6 Account Number

05-95-92-922010-4114-

102-500731
05-95-48-481010-9255-

102-500734

1.7 Completion Date

June 30,2022

1.8 Price Limitation

$4,900,419

1.9 Contracting Officer for Slate Ageriqr

Nathan D. White| Director

1. 10 Stale Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.1 |,.-C^ntractQ{:^ign^c

f  Date:

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Agency Signptfte

1

1.14 Name and Title ofSute Agency Signatory

T15 Approval t^e N.K Department of Admlnistrttion. Division of Personnel (\fdf^Ucable)

gy. Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the AttcmeyOeneral (Form, Substance end ̂ eeuilon) ((/'opp/ZcoWe; {

®y- Catherine Pinos 06/08/20

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (7/o/7p//co6/r)

O&C item number: G&C Meeting Date:

Page.l of 4
Contractor Initials

bate (r*6rV
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency Identified in block I.I
("State"). , engages contractor idmilfied in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall pttform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described In the attached E)dlIBlT. B which is incorporated
herein refvence ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
conlr^, and subject to the approval of (he Governor and
Executive Council of the State ofNew Hampshire, ifapplicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations ofthe parties hcreunder, shall
become efTcctive on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as Indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State AgenQr as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, (he State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
Including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereundcr, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereundcr, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affiscted by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modlhes the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Swpe for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable, for any payments
hereunder In excess of such available appropriated funds. In die
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until sudt flinds
become available, If ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agrcement'lmmediatcly upon
giving (he Contractor notice of such reduction or termination,
the State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to (he Account identlified in block 1.6 in the
event flmds in that Account ore reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

S;I The contract price, method ofpayment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of (he contract price shall be the
only and the complete rdmbufsemeht to the Contractor for ell
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset fi-om any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.R RSA 80:7
throu^ RSA S0:7>c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event sfutll the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder. exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with ,the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,

- regulations, end orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or du^ upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, ifthis Agreanent is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal ucecutive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States Issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable Intellectual
property laws. •
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employ^ or applicants for emplqymwt
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmoilve action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose ofascertaining compiiance with oil rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement

7. personnel
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Servicos. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged In the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services^ and shall be properly - licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the tenn of
this Agreement, end for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date In block 1.7. the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not pemiit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with >vhom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.
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8. EVE^f^OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Ccntraaor Aall constitute an event of default hercundcx ("Event
ofDefaulf):
8.1.1 foilure to perform the Servioes satisfactorily or on
schixlule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement
8.2 Upon the occuirence of any Event of Default, the Slate may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification oftime, thirty (30) days from the .
date of the notice; and ifthe Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordaing that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that ihe Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Ciwtractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any ether obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, tennit»atc the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

' 8.3. No failure by the State lo enforce any provisions hereofafter
any Event of Defiiult shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of. Default, or any subsequent Event of
Defiiult. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the ri^t of the Stale to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Defiiult on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice lo the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fi fteen (15) days afler the date
of termination, a report ('Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those ofany Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT. B. In addition, at the Slate's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and
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submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the '
Agreement

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" ̂all mean ell
information and things develc^ or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or devel(^)ed by reason of^ this
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the Slate or purdtased with fUnds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the Stole, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be govcmed by N.R RSA
chapter 9i-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an Independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Stale or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

n. assignment/delecation/subcontracts.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of Ihe State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consoildation, or. a transaction or sales of related transactions in
which a third party, togetha with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty pacent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity Intaests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially ail
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice, and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a suboonlract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any pasona! iryury or property damages,
patent or copyright Infringement, or otha claims asserted against
the Slate, Its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oQ the acts or omission of the
of4
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Conlmctor, or subcontractor's, Including but not limited to the
negHgonce. reckless or intentional condua The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. No^thstandlng the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed toconstitute a waiver ofthe sovereign
immunity ofthe State, whid) immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covqianl in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require .any
subcontractor or assignee to cA>tain and maintain In force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial genera) liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and .
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering a) 1 property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, In an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the prc^rty.
14.2 The policids described in subparagraph 14.1 herdn shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by .the N.R D^artment of Insurance, and
issued by Insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contredor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ccrtificate(s) of
Insurance for all Insurance required under this AgreemenL
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration dale of each
insurance policy. The certi6cate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereofshall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor Is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A. Contractor shall maintain, and.
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers* Compensation In connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
AgreemenL The Contractor shall fumi^ the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9. or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE, Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified niail, ̂ tage prepaid. In a United States
Post Of!ice addressed to the parties at the addresses ̂ 'ven in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of sudt amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Covunor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws ofthe State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit ofthe parties end their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual IntenL and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained In New Hampshire Supaior Court vdrich shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified In EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parlies hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall In no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of (he provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERAfilLlTY. In the event any ofthe provisions ofthls
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of vA\\ch shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parlies, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS to STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form p-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows;

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement'to the contrary, and"
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire as iridicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
ail obligations of the parties hereundef, shall become effective on July 1.
2020 ("Effective Date").

1.2. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) additional year(s)
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties*, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcont'racts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the-same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate.. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

opj
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

EXHIBIT 8

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. Scope of Work Applicable to all Guardianship Services

1.1.1. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to days shall mean
calendar days. ■

1.1.2. For the purposes of this agreement ward shall mean the individual for
whom guardianship of the individual arid/or estate is appointed by the
Circuit Court - Probate Division.

1.1.3. The Contractor shall provide public guardianship and protection services
to safeguard the liberty and well-being of Individuals who. because of
functional limitations, have suffered, are suffering, or are likely to suffer
substantial harm due to an inabliity to:

1.1.3.1. Provide personal needs for food, clothing, shelter, health
care or safety: or

1.1.3.2. Manage their property or financial affairs.

1.1.4. The Contractor shall provide public guardianship and protection services
. to persons at risk of harm to themselves, .their estates or both the person
and estate, for whom the State of New Hampshire has a responsibility
to safeguard pursuant to New Harripshire (NH) Revised Statutes
Annotated (RSA) "135-C:60. Guardianship; NH RSA 161-F:52,
Guardianship: and NH RSA 171-A:10i Residential Services; Legal
Counsel and Guardianship.

1.1.5. The Contractor shall provide public guardianship services to persons in
Section 1.1.4,.statewide, in accordance with NH RSA464-A, Guardians
and Gonsefvalors and NH RSA 547-B, Public Guardianship and
Protection Program, which include appointments as guardian,
conservator, or temporary guardian of the person and/or estate of a
ward.

1.1.6. The Contractor will provide protection services to persons in Paragraph
1.1.4, statevvide, that Include actions necessary to carry out the duties
as a duly designated representative or protective payee; client
representative; attorney-in-facl; or other similar agent, as prescribed by
applicable law, rule, or agreement.

1.1.7. the Contractor' shall provide services to individuals only upon receiving •
prior approval from the Department of Health and Hun]3'i Services,
Office of Client and Legal Services or the Bureau of Elderly and A?luit
Services.

1.1.8. The Contractor shall refer clients to the Disability Rights Center - NH.
the New Hampshire Legal Assistance or other attorney when referrals.

Office of PuWic Guardian Contreclor iniliats ■
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

EXHIBIT B

from the Department's "OfTice of Client, and Legal Services , for
guardianship and proteclion services may be inappropriate, in order that
an administrative appeal, or other appropriate legal action, can be taken

' on behalf of the client.

1.1.9. The Contractor shall direct any referrals for individuals made to the
Contractor for guardianship and proteclion services to the Department's
Office of Client and Legal Services when referrals are received from
agencies that include, but are not limited to:

1.1.9.1. The Glencliff Home for the Elderly;

1.1.9.2. New Harnpshire Hospital;

1.1.9.3. Comrhunity agencies in the mental health system;

1.1.9.4. Agencies in the developmental services system; and

1.1.9.5. Agencies in the adult and elderly system.

1.1.10. ■ The Contractor shall not be reimbursed by the Department for services
in the event the Contractor provides guardianship and protection
services to individuals who are not screened and approved by the
Department's Office of Client and Legal Services or Bureau of Elderly

•  and Adult Services,-unless the Contractor:

1.1.10.1. Provides documentation satisfactory to the Department that
circumstances not within the control of the Contractor

occurred and the Contractor' made reasonable efforts to

decline the guardianship appointments.

1;1.10.2. Includes documentation of the efforts made to decline
gua/dianship appointments with its monthly invoices.

1.1.10.3. The Stale has responsibility to safeguard the person
pursuant to RSA 135-C:60, RSA 171-A:10, II. and RSA 161-
F:52.

1.1.11. The Contractor shall provide guardianship and protection services to
individuals as defined in paragraph 1.1.4, in accordance with the
"Standards of Practice" and "A f^flodel Code of Ethics for Guardians"
developed by the National Guardianship Association.

1.1.11.1. Notwlthstandirig the ethics and standards for guardians cited
in Paragraph 1.1.11, for monthly visits, the Contractor shall
make quarterly face-to-face visits with the ward or more
frequent visits as required in individual circumstances, in
accordance with Contractor's accepted practice.

1.1.11.2. The Contractor shall attempt to have a video conference, or
telephone contact if technology for a video conference is not

Office of Public Guardian Conlractor Inilials,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

EXHIBIT B

available, with the ward In the instance the ward is out of the
State of New Hampshire for an extended period of time and
it would not be feasible for the Contractor to see the ward
face to face on the basis outline in Section 1.1.11.1 above.

1.1.11.3. The Contractor may suspend face-to-face visits, as required
in Section 1.1.11.1 until an alternative plan can be developed
that maintains personal safety of all parties, if the ward
exhibits unsafe behavior or is in unsafe environmental or
public health conditions, or is aggressive to the point of
physical harm to the Contractor.

1.1.12. In any action brought in Circuit Couii-Probate Division to limit or
otherwise reduce the scope of a guardianship over an individual served,
the State shall appear with the Contractor where the State agrees that it
is necessary to present the State's position on the action proposed.

1.1.13. The Contractor shall not provide individuals with direct services, which
include;

1.1.13.1. Psychotherapy:

1.1.13.2. Case rnanagement;

1.1.13.3. Transportation;

1.1.13.4. Financial aid; or

1.1.13.5. Other social services available through governmental or
nonprpftt agencies.

1.1 .'14. The Contractor agrees to work closely with the Bureau of Elderly and
Adult Services Adult Protection Social Workers for a period, to be
determined by the level of need following a referral, to support the
client's transition from protection services provided by the State to
guardianship services provided by the Contractor. The Contractor
agrees that the Department's Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services.
Adult Protection Service Social Workers retains the case management
function of the clients during the transition period.

1.1.15. The Contractor has responsibilities as an independent decision-maker
acting in a fiduciary capacity with respect to the individuals served and
the decisions to be made on behalf of individuals shall not be directed
or influenced by the State.

1.1.16. The Contractor may provide guardianship and protection services to
individuals other than those who are referred for services pursuant to
this Agreement, ensuring:

1.1.16.1. Pursuant to NH RSA 547 8: 7, no funds provided under this
Agreement are expended for those persons.

Office of Public Guardian Conifaclor Inilials ^^5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardlahship Services.

EXHIBITS

i.1.16.2. Sufficient records, which are subject to the Department's
examination, are included and clearly document that the
funds received under this Agreement are expended in.
accordance with this Agreement.

1.1.17. The Contractor shall accept and investigate complaints from the
Department regarding services'performed, including the. circumstances
pertaining to the complaint, and ensure a written response containing
the results of the investigation is submitted to the Department no later
than thirty (30) days from the date .the complaint is received by the
contractor.

1.1.18. The Contractor shall allow wards to participate in consumer satisfaction
surveys unless the Contractor provides written reasons to the
Department that state why a particular ward should not be allowed to
participate.

1.1.19. The Contractor agrees that if the performance of services involves the
collection, transmission, storage, or disposition of data on behalf of the
Department Including substance use disorder (SUD) data created by a
Part 2 provider, the Contractor shall maintain the data subject to the
requirernents.stated in 45 CFR Part 2.

1.2.Guardianship Services

1.2.1. The listing and description of services to be provided to wards are not
intended to restate existing rules and regulations currently in plaCe, but
rather to. clarify the relationship of the Contractor with respect to its
wards who need and receive services in the developmental services;
mental health sen/ices; or.elderly and adiilt systems.

1.2.2. The Contractor agrees that all of the responsibilities referenced in
Subsection 1.2 are contingent upon the actual authority granted in each
individual court order.specifying the extent and Scope of guardianship
for each individual ward.

1.2.3. The Contractor shall make decisions regarding the residential and day
placement of each ward, utilizing:

1.2.3.1. The standards of least restrictive environment; and

1.2.3.2. What is in the best Interests of the individual ward.

1.2.4. The Contractor shall ensure all legally necessary steps are taken to
enable the individual ward to receive comprehensive:

1.2.4.1. Evaluations; and

1.2.4.2. Treatment and services.

Office of Public Guardian Conlraclor Irtlials,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

EXHIBIT B

1.2.5. The Contractor shall advocate for and request all necessary and
appropriate services to which the ward is entitled In accordance with;
1.2.5.1. The ward's service and/or treatment plan;

1.2;5.2. The ward's expressed preferences or best interests
consistent with the Contractor's Code of Ethics and National
Guardianship Association Standards of Practice; arid

1.2;5.3. Established Department standards and State law. including
seeking alternative service providers.

1.2.6. The Contractor shall be available to give or withhold consent to
proposed care, when legally necessary, which includes, but is not limited
to:

1.2.6.1. Medical care;

1.2.6.2. Professional care;

1.2.6.3. Counseling;

1.2.6.4. Treatment;

1.2.6.5. Behavioral health services;

1:2.6.6. Changes to service and/or treatment plans; and

1.2.6.7. Other clinically or legally significant treatment plans or
services.

1.2.7. The Contractor shall ensure the ward's civil rights are protected w/ithin
the context.of the decision-making on behalf of the ward, while refraining
from unwarranted intrusion into the life of the ward.

1.2.8. The Contractor shall be available to make all decision as required by
RSA 464-A:26 and work collaboratively with the Department relative to
any of the ward's debts owed to the Stale of New Hampshire, if the
Contractor is guardian of the ward's estate.

1.2.9. The Contractor shall remain current of the facts or circumstances that
may impact the decisions to perform the functions specified in
Subsection 1.2.

1.2.10. The Contractor shall maintain appropriate contact with each ward to
ensure services reflect the personal preferences, values, and desires of
the ward to the fullest extent possible in order to make informed
decisions on behalf of the ward.

1.2.11. The Contractor shall obtain all available information regarding the ward
or the ward's situation iri order to be fully aware of all risks and benefits
of any proposed course of action, as well as any alternatives that may

Office 01 Public Guarcnan Conbactoc Iniliale.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

EXHIBIT B

exist when making decisions on behalf of the ward. The Contractor, in
addition to having required personal contact with the ward, may:

1.2.11.1. Contact other important and significant people in the vyard's
life.

1.2.11.2. Interact with the ward's case manager.

1.2.11.3.- Interact with others who share responsibility for meeting the
needs of the ward.

T.3.Guardianship and Protection Services

1.3.1. The Contractor shall accept all protection services cases referred by the
Department's Offipe of Client and Legal Services or Bureau of Elderly
and Adult Services.

1.3.2. The Department shall make every attempt to obtain a Release of
Information from the proposed client for the Contractor, except wtiere
prohibited from doing so by law.

. 1;3.3. The Contractor shall be involved in the screening process for protection
cases, as appropriate, or refer the client to the Disability Rights Center -
NH, New Hampshire Legal Assistance or other attorney In order that an
administrative appear or other appropriate legal action can be taken on
behalf of the client.

1.3.4. • For persons referred to Contractor by the Department's Office of Client
and Legal Services pursuant to NH RSA 136-0:60 and NH RSA 171-
A:10 II, the Contractor shall serve the current total of 732 wards
receiving guardianship services as well as any new persons referred for
services, in accordance with Paragraph-1.1.7 above, for a total of up to
770 cases during the contract period.

1.3.5. The Contractor shall receive letters of approval for each new case
assigned to the Contractor by the Department's Office of Client and
Legal Services.

1.3.6. The Contractor shall provide guardianship services for no more than 42
persons," as referred by the Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services
pursuant to NH RSA 161-F:52. at any point in time during the contract
period.

1.3.7. The Contractor shall schedule a training with New Hampshire Hospital
no later than November 15, 2020, which shall:

1.3.7.1. Address the roles and responsibilities of:

1.3.7.1.1. The Contractor;

1.3.7.1.2. New Hampshire Hospital; and

Office of Public Guardian ' Conlraclor Initials

SS-2021-DBH.01-GUARD-01 Page 6 0(9



DocuSign Envelope ID: D142FF94-09BE^BDA-91D0-EC3D31358F74

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

EXHIBIT B

1.3.7.1.3. Community agencies.

1.3.7.2. Address the legal and ethical obligations and limitations of
the Contractor.

1.3.7.3. Develop best practices relative to service planning in order to
facilitate discharge of patients as soon as practicable.

1.4. Technical Assistance

1.4.1. The Contractor may provide technical assistance to private guardians or
training to staff that provide direct services to wards who are clients of

• the Department, which includes:

1.4.1.1. Area agency staff; and

1.4.1.2. Mental health staff.

1.4.2. The Contractor shall provide the technical assistance or training
described in Paragraph 1.4.1, only after receiving confirmation from the
private guardian or the agency staff that specifies, the Office of Client
and Legal Services approved specified number of hours for.technical
assistance or training over a period not to exceed six (6) months.

1.4.3. The Contractor may provide technical assistance for up to ten (10)
private guardians per year.

1.5. Staffing

1.5.1. The Contractor shall ensure staff providing guardianship services
successfully complete a minirnum of 20 hours of orientation training.

1.5.2. The Contractor shall ensure staff providing guardianship services
successfully complete a minimum of 10 hours of continuing education,
annually.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in
cornpliance with the Standards for Privacy oflndividually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
■Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K. which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

Office of PuWic Guardian Comraclor Inilials
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3.1. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports of all written complaints filed
against the Contractor, which includes:

3.1.1. A copy of the written complaint.

3.1.2. Steps taken to resolve the complaint.

3.1.3. The date that the complaint was resolved.

3.1.4. Steps to be taken in the following quarter to mitigate similar complaints
^  from being filed in the future.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide an annual report, no later than August 1*' that
Identifies names of guardians providing services with the number of continuing
education hours obtained over the previous 12 month, ensuring supporting
documentation is available for Department review upon re.quest.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.'

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future slate or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services described
herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
corhpliance therewith.

5.2.Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of
the language assistance services they will provide to persons with
Ijmited English proficiency and/or hearing impairment to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days
of the contract effective date.

5.3. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.3.1.. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty
upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the
provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said license
or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and conditions of

Olfice of PubBc Guardian Conlractor Initials
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each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing
requlfemenls, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during
the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all rules, orders,
regulations, and requirements; of the State Office of the Fire.Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local
building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.

S. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

'6.1.1. ■ Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original ■
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor lime cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the'Department.

6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of-
services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

6.1.4. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum
number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment* of the price
limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder
(except such obligations as. by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after
the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the Contract)
shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review of the Final Expenditure
Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct
the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the
Contractor.

Office of PuUtc Guardian Contractor Initials
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Pavment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. "97% General funds.

1.2. 3% Federal funds. Department of Health and Human Services.
Administration for Children and Families, Social Services Block Grant
CFDA #93.667, FAIN #2001NHSOSR75

2.. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subrecipient, in
accordance with 2 CFR 2.00.0. et seq.

2.2i The de minimis Indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies In accordance with 2
CFR §200.414.

2.3. The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D. in
accordance with 2 fcFR §200.87.

3. The State shall pay the Contractor a per diem, per case rate for services
provided in fulfillment of this Agreement in accordance with the per diem rates
as follows:

3.1. The per diem 'feimbursemenl rale for the provision of guardianship over
the person' services or guardianship over the estate services, as
approved by the Office of Client and Legal Services for all Bureau of
Mental Health Sen/ices or Bureau of Developmental Services wards,
shall be $8.25 per ward, per day, for up to 770 wards, as follows:.

3.1.1. The per diem rate shall be $8.25 per ward per day for
guardianship over the person services.

"3.1.2. The per diem rate shall be $8.25 per ward per day for
guardianship over the estate services.

3.1.3. In the instance when the Contractor is the guardian over the
person and guardian over the estate of a ward, the Department
shall reimburse the Contractor for each service in accordance

with 3.1,1 and 3.1.2 above.

3.2. The hourly reimbursement rale for the provision of training in Exhibit B
Section 1, Subsection 1.4, and Paragraph 1.4.1 shall be $60.00, not to

,  exceed 25 hours for a total amount of $1,500.00.

3.3. The per diem reimbursement rate for the provision of guardianship over
the person services or guardianship over the estate services as
requested by the Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services shall be $8.25,
per ward, per day, for up to 42 wards; as follows:

3.3.1. The per diem rate shall be $8.25 per ward per day for

Office of Public Guafdian B^diiWtC Controclor Inlllals
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guardianship over the person services.

3.3.2. The per diem rate shall be $8.25 per ward per day for
guardianship over the estate services.

3.3.3. In the instance when the Contractor is the guardian over the
person and guardian over the estate of a ward, the Department
shall reimburse the Contractor for each service in accordance

■  with 3.3.1 and 3.3.2 above.

3.4. the per diem rates will be extended to the last day of the month following
the month in which the ward dies or for whom guardianship service are
terminated.

3.5. For wards referred for guardianship services by the Bureau of Elderly
and Adult Services, the actual cost paid by Contractor for expenses
incurred in the perforrnance of Contractors duties for guardianship over ■
the estate under this Agreement, including, but not. limited to, filing fees,
bond costs and appraisal fees where no other source of reimbursement
exists, shall not exceed $3,574.50.

4. Payment to the Contractor for the provision of services requested by the
Department's Bureaus of Mental Health" Services or Developmental Services
shall be made on a monthly basis subject to the following conditions:

4.1. The Contractor shall submit,invoices on a monthly basis in accordance
with procedures and instructions established by the Office of Client and
Legal Services and provided to the Contractor.

4.2. The Contractor shall submit a list of wards served during the month with
the monthly.irivoice.

4.3. The Department shall pay the Contractor in accordance with .the per
diem rates identified in Section 3.

4.4. The Contractor may be compensated for time spent traveling and
appearing in the Circuit Court-Probate Division preceding appointment,.
as follows:

4.4.1. The hourly rate of $60.00 shall be billed using a six (6) riiinute
unit by submitting a monthly invoice that details the actual time
spent.

4.4.2. The maximum billable amount for each case preceding
appointment by the Circuit Court-Probate Division shall be
$300 per case.

4.5. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the court notice to the Department
with the monthly invoice when the Contractor is appointed guardian over
the person and/or guardian over the estate and when the Contractor no

Office of Public Guardian ExiiiWiC Contfociof initioii
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longer proyides.guardianship over the person and/pr estate.

:4.6. The Contractor shall review cases referred by the Office of Client and
,  Legal Services on a monthly basis and transfer Individuals to a different
funding mechanism, if possible, to allow more openings for additional
referrals from the Office of Client and Legal Services..

4.7. The Contractor shajl transfer the ward from the Office of Client and Legal
Services funded slot within sixty (60) days of alternate funding becoming
available,

5. Payment to the Contractor for the provision of services requested by the
Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services (BEAS) shall be made on a monthly basis
subject to the following conditions;

5.1. The Corilractor shall submit invoices on a monthly basis in accordance
with procedures and instructions established by the Bureau of Elderly
and Adult Services and provided to the Contractor.

5.2. • The Contractor shall submit a list of wards served during the month with
the monthly Invoice.

5.3. The Department shall pay the Contractor in accordance with the per
diem rates identified In Section 3.

5.4. The Contractor shalj provide a copy of the court notice to the Departnient
with the monthly invoice when the Contractor is appointed guardian of a
person and/or guardian over the estate and when the Contractor no
longer provides guardianship over the person and/or the estate.

5.5. The Contractor shall review cases on a monthly basis and transfer ■
individuals to a different funding mechanism, if possible, to.allow more
openings for additional referrals frorn BEAS.

5.6. The Contractor shall transfer wards from a BEAS funded slot within sixty
(60) days of alternate funding becoming available.

6. The Contractor shall seek reimbursement from other payer sources when
providing protection services as described in Paragraph 1.1.16 of Exhibit B,
Scope of Services. The Department shall not reimburse for services under this ■
Agreement for protection services described in Paragraph 1.1.16'of Exhibit B,
Scope of Services.

7. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

8. The Contractor shall ensure each invoice Is completed, dated and returned to
the Department in order to initiate payment.

9. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and

|2PJ
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emailed to dhhs.dbhinvoicesmhs@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Tanja Godtfredsen
Department of.Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

10. " The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30).days'of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if
sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions
Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

11. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date specified in"FormP-37. General Provisions'Block 1.7
Completion Date.

12. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit 8, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

13. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

14. Notwithstanding anything to the contraiV herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or In part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule, or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

15. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37. changes
r  limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and

■  justified.

16. Audits

16.1. The Contractor.is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist;

16.2. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in federal
funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200. during the
most recently completed fiscal year.

16.3. Condition B - The Contractor is subject, to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000.000 or more.

Office of Public Guardian Exhibit C Contractor Initials
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16;4. Condition C - The Contractor Is a public cornpany and required by
Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an
annual financial audit.

16.5. If Cphdition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
perfornned by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200,
Subpart F of the Uriiforrh Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

16.6. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal yean

16.7. In addition to. and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held-liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception. .

Office of Pubitc Guardian Exhibit c connector lnljlats_J
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

the Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of Ihe General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Seclipns.5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections
1.11 and .1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foliowirig Certiricalidn:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
■21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub- .
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that Is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below, is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed wheri Ihe agency awards the. grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or .
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it tq; .

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Hurhan Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Coficord. NH 03301-660,5

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession of use of a controlled substance Is prohibited In the graritee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an origoing drug-free av/areness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitdtion, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace:
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in Ihd. performance oif the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee In the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a conditioh of

emptoymenl under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying .the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise recelvir^g actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless Ihe Federal agency

Exhibit D - Certlflcollon regartJing Drug Free Vendor Iniilals
Workplace Requlrcmenis 7 c >o>
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identincatloh number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amerided; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily In a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, Stale, or local health,
law enforcemerit, or other appropriate agency;

.1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through .

implernentalidn of paragraphs 1.1,1.2, 1.3.1.4,1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below (he site(s) for (he performance of work dbne'ih
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, stale, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ If there are workplaces on file that are. not identiHed here.

Vendor Name: 6^ce: o?

'P
Date Name/ ) r-s

Title: ^

ExhlWi 0 - Certiricaiion tegardirig Drug Free • Vcrxlor Initials
Workplaco Requirements -' » e
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dERTIFICATtON REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certincdtion;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered);'
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to •
any person (or influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will bo paid to any person for
■  influencing or attempling to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the' undersigned shall complete and submlt Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award ,
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this trarisaclion
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Ariy person who fails to file the required.
certification shall be sub|ecl to a civil penally of not less than $10,000 and not more than 3100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: c^Foi=>\iC

Exhlbll E - Ccniflcalion Rcgardlrtg Lobbying Vendor Inillals
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CERTlFiCATION REGARDiNG DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor idenllfied In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarmenl,
Suspension,-and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.-12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing ond submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant.Is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability" of a person to provide the certification required below will riot necessarily result in denial
of participation in (his covered transaction, if.necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanalibn of why it cannot provide the .certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Heallh and Human Services' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify sudh person from partlcipallon In
this transaction.

3. The certlficalipn in this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS deterrriined.lo enter into this transaction, if it is later determined that the prospective
prirriary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification. In addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.-

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this pmposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances. • .

5. The terms "covered transaction." "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," 'lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person;" "primary covered transaction," "principal." "proposal." .0nd
'voluntarily excluded," as used in (his clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See .the
attached definitions.

8. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered Into, it shall riot knowingly enter into ariy.lower tier covered
transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from partlcipaliqn in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the •
clause titled Xertiftcallon Regarding Debarmenl, Suspension, Ineligibllity and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in ail lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
frorh the covered transaction, unless It knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the me.thod and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of.excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in,order to render In good faith the certincallon required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Certificaiion Regarding Oebarmcnl. Suspension Vendor initials ^
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Informalion of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary'course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction \\1lh a person who is
suspended, debarred, Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from' participation in this transaction, in

-  addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TFyVNSACTIONS ■ '
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that It and Its

principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contracl) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
connection with obtaining, attempling to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State ar^titrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently Indicted for olhenwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, Slate or local) with commisslori of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; ahd

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanaliori to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (conlracl). the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the Ijest of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are r^ot presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or.

voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction by any federal departrtienl or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant Is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contracl) that It will
Include this clause entitled Xertification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineligibilily, and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions." without modincallon In all. lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name:

W P- .Date NameQ
Title:

ExhlWl F r Ccrtilicalion Regerding Debofmenl. Suspenalon Vendor Inillab _1
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTiS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRiMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor idenllfied in Seclipn 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees t)y signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Vendor will corhply. and will require any subgrahtees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimlnation requirements, which may include:

• the Omnibus Crime Control end Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C,. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment dpportunity.Pian;
- the Juvenile.Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited frorn discriminating, either In employment practices or in the delivery of services or
beneflis. on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
EmploymenVOpportunlty Plan requiremenls;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis.of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

• Ihe Rehabilitation Act of 1973! (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financiar
assistance frorri discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, In any program or activity;

- the Aniericans with bisabilrlies Act of 1990 (42 iJ.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discriminatipn and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, ̂sublic accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

• the Education Ameridments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1683,1685-66). which prohibits
discrirriinalion on the basis of sex in federally assisted education progranns;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimlnatiori;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Departmenl.of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Prqgrams); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrirhinalion; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the lavys for faith-based and community
organizations): Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based end neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Jusllce Regulations - Equal Trealment.for Faith-Based
Organizalions); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Acl(NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Programfor
Enhancerrient of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections,- which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection wiilvfederal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certificalipn shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

{ieiExhibit G
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in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or Stale administrative agency makes a finding of
discfiminalion after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, natior^al origin, of sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division wilhin the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor Identified In Sectiori 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of. the Contractofs
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the.General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

I.' By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
.indicated above. ■

Vendor Name

ExWbli G Pig>
■ Vendor InltiBla
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indopr facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an enlity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, .day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through Stale or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used lor Inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to' comply with the provisions of the law may resuit in the imposition of a civil monetary penally of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an adminlslrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identined ln Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractpr's
represenlative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

T. By signing and submitting this .contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C. known as. the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name:

h-5''2p''^
Date - Name; (J ?'
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor Identified in Section 1 ;3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Putjiic Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive; use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Harhpshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section "160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations. •

"c. 'Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title, 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
In 45 CFR Section 164.50.1.

e. "Data AQareoation'-shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health. Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitteXIII, Subtitle 0, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act .of

'  2009. ' . . .

h.- "HIPAA".means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act.of 1996, Public Law
104-19.1 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Informatipn, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance With 45
CFR Seclion"!64.5d1(g).

j. 'Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of IndlviduallY Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
■  irifOrrriatlon" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 ExhiWl \ Cpnl/aclof Inilieb
He&Uh Insurance PortabiDty Act
Business Associate Agreement
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I. 'Reouired bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CF.R Part ,164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health Information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing orgariization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning-
established under 45 O.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

' Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, mairitain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except.as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees arid agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI In any rhanner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially, and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was

•disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach.Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such.breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief.- If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3^2014 Exhfblll , ConifBClor Inlllals
Health.Insurance PortabQHy
Business Associate Agreement i.c
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.,

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate lhat Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and.shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected

■  .health information not provided for by the Agreerhent including breaches of unsecured,
protected health information and/or any security Incident tha.t may have an irripact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity,

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform.a.risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o. The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of (he
breach and immediately report the,findings of the risk assessment i.n writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply'with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance With HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Busiriess Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, lo-agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions'on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to retum or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business, associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 Exhibit I Conlraclof Initials 1^^
Heallh lnsurar>ce PorlaUIiiy Act
Business Aisodaic Agreemoni L-S-'b'U?

Page 3 of 6 Dale



DocuSign Envelope ID: D142FF94-09BE-4BDA-91DO-EC3D31358F74

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit)

pursuant to this Agreerhent. with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard -
contract provisions {P-37) of this Agreement for'the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices ail
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enatiling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

"g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Eritity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the .
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual In order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of F'HI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and 'inc.prpprate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164,526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and Information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section

■  164.528;

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fuifiil its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any indiyidual requests access to, amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to,forwarded requests. However. If forwarding the
Individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law and notify .
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall refurn or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, ail PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shaii not retain any copies or back-up tapes of sOch PHI. If return, or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to .extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of'such PHI to those,
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for-so long as Business

3/2014 ExNbIt I Conlraclof Initials
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

{4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.-
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI. ■

(5) • Termination for Cause

'  In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity nriay either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) fi/liscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used; but not othenivise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time.' A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effect or as
amended.

b.. Arhendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with th.e changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 ExNWli ContfadbrlnHish ^
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e. Seoreoation. if any term or condition of this Exhibit i or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance Is held Invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
.  deslruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the .

defense and Indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions {P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duty executed this Exhibit I.

Oepatjpwpt of Health andjiyman Services ^ N iC-
Nan»e-of the Contractor

of A,uCkbrized Representative SigrjAi^ of Authorized Representative

- P J.
N^e of Authorized

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

N^e of Authorized R^^esentatjye Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

' ^o2,o

Date
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CERTlfacAtl'ON regarding-tHEFEDEF^L FUNDING ACCdUNTABlLltY-ANDTRANSPAREfilCY.
ACT (FFATAV COMPLIANCE •

'[ •• • • • .

The Federal Funding Accountability aiid Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federaj.grants equal to'.of-greafer.than $25.00p.and av/arded on or after October 2010, to report ph
data related to executive corripehsalibn'arid as.spciMed;f!rsl4ier subT^rarits of $25,000. or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modificaUons result In a'to^l award equal,to or over
,525.000. the award Is-subjecl to the FFATArepcrtirigyequirementsi aspf.th.e date pf therawa/d., ^
'  In accordance' vrith 2 CFR'Part 170 (Re^rtlng.SubawaVd and-Executlve.Compensation Information), the
departmehi of Health and.Human.Servic^'pHH imust report the following Inform'ation forariy
subawardorcontractaward.subject.tothe.FFATAraporiirig'requirefnents; ■ , •
1. ";Nam'e of entity . 'v '
2. ArriOuht of award" . •
3. Funding'agency
4.' NAjC'S code.for contracts / C.FDA program number for grants
•5. "Program source '
6. Awiard title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance , . , . .
■9. . Unique Idehtifier^qf the entity (bU^
•10; Total comptea'lioh arid.riames.bf theTqp five execy^^^^

10.1'. More than-8p% of ahriual gross feyenue's are from the Federal government, and those
' . reveriues are greater.than.l$25M;anriually and

10.2. Compensation Ihformatioh Is not already available ^rough reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must subrriit FFATA required data by the end,of the monthi plus 30 days^ In which
the award or award amendriient is made. , , • »
The Cprit'rac^tor Identified in Sectlbri' TS of the General Provisions, agrees to.comply with tho.proylslons of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public'Uaw'109-282.and .Public Law 1ip-252, •
.and-2 CFR PariT70 (Reporting .Subaward and ExGCuliye.ComperisaUp.n lnfoniiatibn),;;a^^^^^
toihave the Corilractb^s repre'senlatlve.'-as Identified in Seclions 1.1 i*a'nd 1.12.of the General Provlsibns •
execule'the following Certificaiip'n;: ■ . ^ . .u mli
The'below named Co'rilracto'f^agre'es'to provlde^needed infpfrnalton as ouljlnsd flboye to the Nn

■  of IHeaHhifnd.HumaAgWices .a'n<J;to comply wi.th all.appliOable prbvisions of the Federal
Fmahclal^countabllity and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:' ■ dRice (fr mbl ic

d.. ?, aw- :
Date \Norii6: ^ P

Tie:

ExhIbii.J 7,CortlflMUpn Regarding iho.Federal Funding ConUactor,lhllja|3„
Acco'uhlablUly And tf'ahipartncy Ad'(FFATA) Cprripilanca • ' *

' .V... . r".. '••"' ' '-'Pannl ' [Jfllfl V
cu4)HHvnor»a Kegoiprz, . ,
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, 1 certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

■  1. The DUNS number for your entity is:.

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percenter more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans grants sub^ranls, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or more Iri annual
.gross'revenues from-U.S. federal contracts. subcontracts. loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

.  if the answer to #2 al>ove is YES, please answer the following:

3  Does the Dublic have access to Information about the compensation of the executives In your
business or organization through "periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or l^d) of the Securities
.Exchange-Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above Is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation Of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:,

Name;

Name;

Name:

Name:

Amount:.

Amount:,

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/OKHS/llOrO

Exhtbil j - Coftincatlon Regarding ihe F.odoral Funding
Accouniablliiy And Traf»spofency Ad (FFATA) Compliance

Page 2 of 2

Contraclor Inlilals.

Date.
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described rneaning iri this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
.  unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring, to

situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, vi/hether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section

■  164:402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Iricident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Corhputer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such, as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information Including without limiiation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records,- base Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which" collection, disclosure, prptecllon, and disposition is governed by

■  slate or federal law or regulation*. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Pefsdnal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payrtient Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge. Iristruction. "or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, arid misrouting of physical or electronic

.  .

V5.USI update 1CM09/.1B , Exhibit K Conlrpclof Inlliati- r ' " ■
■  DHHS Ifirofmaiion

Secuiily Requirements.
Pago 1 of9 ■ Oslo . ..
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mail, all of which may' have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification ordestojction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any netv/ork or segment of a network that iS'
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department'of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network' (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately sec.ure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can. be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's Identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C;19. biomelric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, su.ch as date and place of birth, niolher's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, proniulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided In the
deftnilion of'Protecled Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at'45 C.F.R. §
160.103,'

11. "Security Rule" shall rtiean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic'
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12: "^Unsecured. Protected Health information" means Protected Health information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health. Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use ahd Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose; maintain or transmit PHi in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and.Secu.rity Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confldenliai Information in response to. a

\

vs. Lost updoto 1O/.OS/10 Exhibit K- ContractprinitlBls ;
DHHS.Ihfcfmalion

Socurlly Reqiilremonls
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
resthctions over and above those uses of disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be boufid by such
.additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative:there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract-may not be used for
any other purposes that are not Indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm corripliance with the terms of this

.  Contract.

11. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Applicatiori Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS. data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been -evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet,

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use Hie
hosting services, such ■ as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Sen/ice. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
.mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidentiai Data said devices rhust be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may riot transmit Confidential Data via an open

V5. L«t update 10/09/18 Conlroctor InUiol.s •
OHHSInlwmallpn
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. .If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be

,  Installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also knov/n as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent • inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be-coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless peyices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data rtiust be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such'time, the Contractor will h.ave 30 days to destroy the data and :any
derivative iri whatever form it may exist, unless, otheiwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the'parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply In the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data arid Disaster RecovetV locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure, proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Departhnent confidential information for contractor provided-systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Deparirhent confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A;2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, 'the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anii-spam, anti^spyware, and anli-malware utilities. The environment, as a

jZPJ
V5. Lasl update 10/09/16 ExhMK Coinlraclor Iniiials i
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whole, must have aggressive Intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6.. This Cofitractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with "the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure;

B. Disposition

1. If the Coritractbr will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recoveiy operations. When no longer In use, electronic rriedla containing State of
New Hanhpshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in' accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media {for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication-800^88, Rev 1, Guidelines
.for Media Sanitization. National Institute of S.tandards and technology, U. .S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destructiori, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by t.he State and Contractor prior to deslruclioh.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure methpd such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to, completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by rrieans of data erasure, also'known as secure data wiping.

IV, PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1.' The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the Information lifecycle. where applicable, (from
creation, ifansformalion. use,- storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
niedia used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

V5.L«$l update lorowie EjAMK . Contractortnltiels
OHHS Infofmailon

Security Rdqulfemeriia L'S'2^7^
iPogoScro Dale-



DocuSign Envelope ID; O142FF94-09BE^BDA-91D0-EC3D3l358F74

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
.  contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

A. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabiHties are In place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness arid education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

.  6. If the Contractor will'be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal .process or processes that defines specific security
expfectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
rnatch those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
arid procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department syslem(s). Agreements'"^111 be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable'Sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business-Associate pursuant to 45
GFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement

.  (BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its .request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may •
occur over the life of-the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion ;with agreement by
the Contractor; or the Department may request the survey be. completed when the
scope Of the engagement betweeri the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the .boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership merhber within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Coritractpr shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take rirteasures to
pfev.ent future breach, and rnirilmlze any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The Slate shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

vs. Lost update 10/69/18 ' Exhibit K Conlroclpi Initials
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
•the breach.

12. Contractor rnust, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects •
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies. Including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules <45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established-by the Stale of New Hampshire. Department of. Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/dolt/vehdor/index.ht'm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guideiines; standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented .breach notification and Incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer arid the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediiately. at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This Includes a confidential Information breach, computer
security incident, of suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Gonlraclor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only Those authorized End Users who heed such DHHS .Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified In this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced iri Section .IV A. above.
Implemented to, protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypjgd and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such infofmalio'n.

vs. Last upbais 1*0/09/18 E)ch2)ilK Conlractof Initials.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and Individually
identifiable data-derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that .is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks; card keys,
blometrlc Identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable Inforrhation, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at ail times when in transit,, at rest, or )^en
stored on portable media.as required in section IV above.

h. In .all other Instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

1. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to rhpnitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA,
and other.applicable laws and Federal regulations until such tiriie. the Confidential Data
Is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify, the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided In
Section Vl.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and In accordance wilh 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable, obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information Is involved in Incidents;

•  3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

vs. Last update 10/09/16
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required.- and. if so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as-well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported,' as .
applicable, Jn accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOffice.r@dhhs.nh.gov

B. OHHS Security Officer:

DHHSlnformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

VS.Uslupdolc 10/09/16 e>diIbitK Conirbcipr initials.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Guardianship Services contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Trl-County Community Action
Program, inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 24, 2020, (Item #18), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Contract Provisions, Paragraph 1.2., the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2024

2. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,797,928

Trl-County Community Action Program, Inc. A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials

SS-2021 -DBH-01-GUARD-02-A01 Page 1 of 3 Date.
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2022, or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is
later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

6/2/2022

Date

DocuSign»d by;

a. S,
EMPQtBCjCa

Title: oi rector

6/2/2022

Date

Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.r—OocuSigned by;
JtAKux- fdlfilLmrJi

i■ <PFg7BlMM.P«g8

Name:

Title: ceo

Robi I lard

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. A-S-1.2

SS-2021 -DBH-01-GUARD-02-A01 Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSlgnvd by:

6/3/2022
7407iMg<W1460._ ■

Date Name:^y"^"af'"o
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. A-S-1.2

SS-2021-DBH-01-GUARD-02-A01 Page 3 of 3
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secrctar)' of Stale of ihc State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on May 18, 1965. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secrctar>' of Slate's office have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63020

Certificate Number: 0005774957

Bb

o

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afll.xcd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this lOth dav of Mav A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary' of Slate
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

^Sandy Alonzo hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Board Chair of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on {Axtw 20ot\ . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

\  (Date)

VOTED: That _Jeanne Robillard, CEO and or Randall Pilotte, CFO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements
with the State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not l>een amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:
^  Syr^tureofEle^ Officer

Name: Sandy Albrfzo
Title: Board Chair

Rev. 03/24/20
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/xcroRo CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DOmrYY)

05/31/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

nam"^^ Andrea NIcklin
(603)669-3218 (603)645-1331

ADDRESS' fnanch.certsigcrossagency.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC •

INSURER A
Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 18056

INSURED

TrI-County Community Action Program. Inc

30 Exchange Street

Berlin NH 03570

INSURER a Granite State Health Care and Human Services Self- 524292

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 21-22 All Lines 22-23 WC REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
aodL

ItiSQ.

SOTFT
WVD

POLICY EFF
(MWOorrrYY)

poucY exp
(MM/OOrrYYY)TYPE OF INSURANCE POUCY NUMBER UMITS

InSr
LTR

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABiUTY

CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO'REFrTCB
PREMISES (Ea occurreocal

MED EXP (Ajiy one pe«V»n)

PHPK2293454 07/01/2021 07/01/2022
PERSONAL A ADV INJURY

GENt AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY I I JECT I IPOLICY LOC

OTHER;

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS. COMPIOPAGG

1.000.000

100.000

5,000

1.000.000

3.000.000

3.000.000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTOX

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa acdd«nt>

1.000.000

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NONOWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2293461 07/01/2021 07/01/2022 BODILY INJURY (Per accktent)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per aeddenU

X

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DEO'

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE
2.000.000

PHUB774416 07/01/2021 07/01/2022
AGGREGATE

2.000.000

X RETENTION $ ^ 0.000
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Manrtetory In NH)
If yes, describe urtder
DESCRIPTION Of OPERATIONS below

STATUTE
OTH
ER

HCHS20220000058 (3a.) NH 01/01/2022 01/01/2023
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
1.000,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORO 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be aRached II more space Is required)

(Job (t: Job Type; Contracts & Procurement)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

DHHS, State of NH Contracts & Procurement

129 Pleasant Street

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord

1

NH 03301

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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JRl-COUisSTY
COMMUNITY ACTION
Serving CoPs, Carroll & GraMon Counties since 1965

Mission Statement

Tri-County Community action provides opportunities to strengthen communities by
improving the lives of low to moderate income families and individuals.

CEO: Jeanne L. Robillard COO: Regan L. Pride CFO: Randall S. Pllotte

30 Exchange Street, Berlin NH 03570 P: 603-752-7001

www.tccaD.orQ FB@TriCountvCQmmunitvActlonProQram
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Financial Statements

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020
AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTS
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditors' Report

Consolidated Financial Statements:

Statements of Financial Position

Statement of Activities

Statements of Functional Expenses

Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Financial Statements

Supplementary Information:

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and Non-Federal
Awards

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with

Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major
Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by
the Uniform Guidance

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Paqefsl

1-2

3

4

5-6

7

8-30

31-33

34-35

36-37

38



DocuSign Envelope ID; 880BCO54-D55C-475F-A5C4.D11282B7D3E7

Leone, ,
McDonnell
&Roberts

To the Board of Directors of ̂ professionai. association
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate CERTiHiiiD public acc0UNT/\ntj
Berlin, New Hampshire wolkeboro • NORTii cOiW

DOVER • CONCORD

STRATHAiVl

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate {New Hampshire nonprofit organizations), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the related
consolidated statements of functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, the
related consolidated statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2021 and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained In
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and its consolidated cash flows for the years
then ended, and the changes in its net assets for the year ended June 30, 2021, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative information
We have previously audited Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. and Affiliate's 2020
consolidated financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
consolidated financial statements in our report dated October 28, 2020. In our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30,
2020. is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements
from which it has been derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 28, 2020, on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance. •

November 19. 2021

North Conway, New Hampshire
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TRI-CnUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash.equivalents
Restricted cash. Guardianship Services Program
Accounts receivable

Property held for sale
Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term debt
Current portion of capital lease obligations
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt, net of current portion

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2021

$  3,237,032
1,317.039
1,617.249

216,423

52,985

53.594

6.495,122

12.917.935
(5.850.185)

7.067,750

439.822

$  129,155

4,303

233.907

383.435

266,595
324,140

1.400.645

2.742,180

4.577.505

7.319.685

6.199,624

483.385

6.683,009

2020

$  2.257,081
796,937

1.322,852

47,000
307,017

102,430
77.882

4.911.199

12,344,805
(5.601.944)

6.742.861

384.711

$ 14.002,694 $ 12.038.771

437,843
3,554

180.427

243,779
49,059
137.304
181.463

850,982

2.084.411

4.792,557

6.876.968

4,565,253

596.550

5.161.803

$ 14.002.694 $ 12,038,771

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

3
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TRI^OUNTY COMMUNITY ACTIOM PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021
USnTH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grants and contracts

Program funding
Ulility programs
In-kind contributions

Contributions

Fundraising
Rental income

Interest Income

(Loss) gain on disposal of property
Loss on write down of property heM for sale
Ottier revenue

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, and

net assets released from restrictions

Without Donor With Donor 2021 2020

Restrictions Restrictions Total Total

$  18.296.354 $  415,056 $  18.711.410 S 14,909,313

1.177,937 . 1.177.937 1,084.133

2.659,293 . 2.659,293 1,923,653

364.580 . 364.580 455,826

462.340 - 462.340 326.215

1.802 . 1,802 32,544

664.169 - 684.169 635.559

888 . 888 923

(27.288) - (27,288) 257.717

-
- - (255.492)

13,364 . 13.364 4 379

23.633,439 415.056 24,048.495 19.374,770

528.221

24.161,660

(528.221)

(113.165) 24.048.495 19.374.770

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Program Services:
Agency Fund 1,017.860

Head Start 2,856,419

Guardianship 760.053

Transportatiori 870,078

Volunteer 96.817

Workforce Development 40.175

Carroll (bounty Dental 669,641

Support Center 356,359

Homeless 4.760,909

Energy and Community Development 8.541.527

Elder 1.192,453

Housing Services 192.010

Total program services 21.354.301

Supporting Activities:
General and administrative

Fundraising

Total supporting activities

Total functional expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR

1,172.988

1.172.988

22.527.289

1.634,371

4.565.253

(113.165)

596.550

1,017,860 1,047,356

2,856,419 2,769,065

760.053 769.597

870.078 991,504

96.817 94.845

40.175 346,114

669.641 653,810

356.359 558,244

4.760.909 800,148

8.541,627 7.824,201

1,192.453 1.149.136
192.010 220.900

21.354.301 17.224.920

1,172,988 1.062,613

- 2.880

1.172.988

22.527.269

1.521.206

5.161.803

1.065.493

18.290.413

1.084.357

4.077.449

S  6,199.624 S 483.385 $ 6.683.009 $ 5.161.806

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

4
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tri4;qunty community action program, inc. and affiliate

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVmES

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets to ,
net cash provided by operating activities;

Depreciation and amortization
Loss (gain) on disposal of property

(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable

Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) In liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Other liabilities

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of property
Purchases of property and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment on long-term debt
Repayment on capital lease obligations

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH. END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW

INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for

Interest

2021 2020

$  1.521,206 $ 1,084,357

450,040

27,288

(294,397)

90,594

49,445

24;288

(176,124)
(9,872)

334,376

129,291

142,677

549,663

2,838,475

25,000

(780,217)

(755,217)

(523,740)
(3,554)

(527,294)

1,555,964

3,438,729'

4,994.693

436,197

(2,225)

(48,769)
(75,856)
(16,544)
(43,845)

(41,144)
39,700

(161,893)
47,780

(15,694)
252,787

1,454,851

4,495

(273,711)

(269,216)

(145,884)
(4,671)

(150.555)

1,035.080

2.403,649

$  3.438,729

$  135,643. $ 131,679

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 88BBC054-D55C-475F-A5C4-D11282B7D3E7

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. and its affiliate, Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Program. Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies. Cornerstone Housing
North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation that was
incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition,
construction and operation of community-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of activities

The Organization's'programs consist of the following:

Agency

Tri-County CAP Administration provides centra! program management
support and oversight to the Organization's many individual programs.
This includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR services, legal and audit services. IT support,
management support, financial support and centra! policy development.

Tri-County CAP Administration, is the liaison between Tri-County
Community Action Program,- Inc.'s, Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors.

Other responsibilities include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization's real estate property.

Head Start

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which include in addition to early learning, health and
family well-being. All children receive health and development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial stability.
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Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to identify
and provide individualized activities that support their child's growth and
development.

Tri-County Community Action Head Start serves approximately 250
children in Carroll, Coos & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-
based classrooms and 1 home-based option.

Guardianship

The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain injury,
and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer's, dementia, and multiple medical
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves over
400 individuals. Additional services include, conservatorship,
representative payee-ship, federal fiduciary services, benefit management
services and private probate accounting services.

Transportation

The Organization's transit program provides various transportation
services: public bus routes, door-to-door service by request, long distance
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization's fleet of 17
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the general public.

Volunteer

The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains
a minimum group of 393 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 225
actively served during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences,, and time with over 60 local non-profit and
public agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate
over 28,000 hours yearly.

Workforce Development

The Organization is assisting transitional and displaced workers as they
prepare for new jobs, and also assisting currently-employed workers to
gain the skills required for better jobs.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The Organization is helping to implement New Hampshire's Unified State
Plan for Workforce Development, in line with the federal Workforce
Investment Act. Workforce training programs, with training facilities in
three towns, provide temporary assistance for needy families (TANF)
recipients with 20-30 hours per week of training in the areas of employment
skills, computer skills, and business experience, and also place
participating TANF recipients in community-based work experience sites.

Carroll County Dental

Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers state of the art quality oral
healthcare to uninsured families and individuals. The Center offers a full
array of services including preventative, restorative, and oral surgery. The
Center accepts most dental insurances, state insurances, and offers a
sliding fee scale based on income ratio to federal poverty guidelines. The
school-based project of the Center has undergone modifications necessary
due to the pandemic. 9 outreach schools within the vicinity of the Center
will be made. Education, treatments, and referrals will be made available.

Support Cenfer

The Organization's Support Center at Burch House provides direct service
and shelter to victims and survivors of domestic and sexual violence and
stalking in Northern Grafton County. Support Center services are
accessible 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. They include: crisis
intervention; supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy advocacy
and accompaniment; emergency shelter; support groups; community
education and outreach; violence prevention programs for students;
information, referrals and assistance accessing other community
resources.

Homeless

Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation sen/ices to
help preserve older housing stock.
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Bnerav Assistance and Outreach

Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participants access to energy assistance programs and
other emergency services. The offices provide information to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other
programs available through other organizations in the community.

Low-income Weatherization

The NH weatherization program helps low-income families, elderly,
disabled, small children and individuals lower their home energy costs;
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and improve the quality of living
while improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Eider

The Organization's elder program provides senior meals In 14 community
dining sites, home delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. The Coos County ServiceLink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling, Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistahce, long-term care counseling services, and caregiver
supports.

Housing Services

Cornerstone' Housing North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is subject to a Project
Rental Assistance Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their
rental income is received from HUD.

Cornerstone includes a 12-unit apartment complex in Berlin, New
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operating methods.

11
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Cornerstone has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Uniform
Guidance, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Pnnciples and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program. A separate audit of Cornerstone's
compliance with its major federal program in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the
audit requirements of Title 2 of U.S. Code of Federal Regulations part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). An unmodified
opinion was issued.

Method of accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community Action Program.
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than contributions,
and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the dale of receipt or
payment of cash.

Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the
Organization to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not subject
to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and board of
directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the
donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has net assets with donor restrictions of $483,385 and $596,550
at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. See Note 13.
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Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net
assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period
in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts
receivable balance represents amounts due from patients at Carroll County Dental
program. Past due receivables are written off at management's discretion using the
direct write off method; this is not considered a departure from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write off
method approximate those of the allowance method. Management selects accounts
to be written off after analyzing past payment history, the age of the accounts
receivable, and collection rates for receivables with similar characteristics, such as
length of time outstanding. The Organization does not charge interest on
outstanding accounts receivable.

Property and Depreciation

Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an individual program is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
other similar allocation.

Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is included in the indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs in accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred.
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Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and Improvements 20 to 40 years
Vehicles 5 to 8.5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 to 15 years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference between the allowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients.

Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are
performed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $324,140 and $181,463 as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Nonprofit tax status

The Organization is a not-for-profit Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
with the Internal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an organization that is not
a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitable
contribution deduction for donors. The Organization files information returns in the
United States. The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization
Exempt from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three
years after it is filed.

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, which
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and
measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The
Organization does not believe they have taken uncertain lax positions, therefore, a
liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not been
recognized.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a).
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Retirement plan

The Organization maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization's annual discretion. In January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, there were no discretionary
contributions recorded. Further information can be obtained from the

Organization's 403(b) audited financial statements.

Donated services and goods

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or

that require specialized skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If
donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor

restrictions.

Donated property and equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in
service as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.
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Promises to Give

Conditional promises to give are not recognized in ttie financial statements until the
conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected In more than one
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of
donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than
one year after their due dates are written off unless the donors indicate that
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions. There were no

unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year at June 30, 2021 and 2020.

As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, there were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor restrictions in the amount of $216,423 and $307,017,
respectively. This amount is included in grants and contracts on the Consolidated
Statement of Activities.

Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values of its
financial instruments. The carrying amount of the Organization's financial
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of those
instruments.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities
benefited.
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Program salaries and related expenses are allocated to the various

programs and supporting services based on actual or estimated time
employees spend on each function as reported on a timesheet.

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program based upon
the classification of each employee and allocated to the various program
based upon the time employees spend on each function as noted above.

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is allocated to each program as a
percentage of total salaries.

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These expenses
include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and dental
insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is allocated to each
program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon specific
assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation expense on the
statements of functional expenses.

Other occupancy exioenses are applicable to assets which are used by
multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the benefiting program
based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a building include
depreciation, insurance, utilities, building maintenance, etc. These costs are
reported as space costs on the statements of functional expenses.

Insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage; building liability insurance is allocated to programs based on square
footage of the buildings; and insurance for furniture and equipment is allocated
to programs using the book basis of the Insured assets.

The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and
are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of program expenses.
The expenses include items such as administrative salaries, general liability
insurance, administrative travel, professional fees, and other expenses which
cannot be specifically identified and charged to a program.
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The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, received
provisional approval and is effective, until amended, .at a rate of 12%. Per the
agreement with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, the
Organization's final rate for the year ended June 30, 2020 was 10.80%. The actual
rate for the year ended June 30, 2021 was approximately 11.37%, which is
allowable because it is less than the provisional rate.

Advertising policy

The Organization uses advertising to inform the community about the programs it
offers and the availability of services. Advertising is expensed as incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $28,130 and
$25,483, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
"Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs." The ASU is limited to
simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt issuance costs is not affected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2021 and 2020.

Revenue Recognition Policy

The Organization derives revenue primarily from grants, contracts, and
contributions. Grants are recognized as revenue upon receipt. Revenue from
contracts is recognized when the service has been performed. Contributions are
recognized as revenue when the donor makes a pledge to give that is, in
substance, an unconditional promise. Contributions are recorded as with donor
restrictions or without donor restrictions.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In May 2014, FASB issued ASU 2014-09 (Topic 606) - Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. The ASU and all subsequently issued clarifying ASUs replaced the
most existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP. The ASU also requires
expanded disclosures relating to the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of
revenue from cash flows arising from contracts with customers. The Organization
adopted the new standard effective July 1, 2020, the first day of the Organization's
fiscal year using the modified retrospective approach. The adoption did not result in
a change to the accounting for any of the applicable revenue streams; as such, no
cumulative effect adjustment was recorded. See revenue recognition policy above.
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Other Matters

The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its
spread continue to affect the Organization's business. The significance of the
impact of these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the
Organization's financial operational results, will be dictated by the length of time
that such disruptions continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable
duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations
that might be imposed in response to the pandemic.

During the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. and through the date of this
report, the Organization has not experienced a significant decline in revenues, nor a
significant change in its operations.

NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

. The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2021
and 2020:

2021 2020

Financial assets at year-end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 3.237,032 $ 2,257,081
Accounts receivable 1,617,249 1,322,852
Pledges receivable 216.423 307.017

Total financial assets 5.070.704 3.886.950

Less amounts not available to be

used within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions 483,385 596,550
Less net assets with time restrictions to be

met in less than a year (412.665) (410.015)

Amounts not available within one year 70.720 186.535

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months 8 4.999.984 S 3:700.415

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of
operating expenses which approximates $3,569,000 and $2,860,000 at June 30,
2021 and 2020, respectively.
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NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less. At
year end and throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. The balances are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for each financial institution up to
$250,000. Cash balances may exceed the insured limits at times throughout the
year.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
within the statements of financial position that sum to the total in the statements of
cash flows as of June 30:

Cash, operations
Restricted cash, current

Restricted cash, long term

Total cash and restricted cash

2021

$ 3,237,032
1,317,839
439.822

S 4.994.693

2020

$2,257,081
796,937

384.711

S 3.438.729

Cash Restrictions

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 7. It is required to maintain a
balance of $19,968 in the account, which is restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the U.S. Department of
Agriculture.

Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be replenished with
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved. The
balance as of June 30. 2021 and 2020 was $20,059 and $20,040, respectively.
The Organization has made all of their scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30, 2021 and 2020. These amounts are included in restricted cash on the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a bond issue (see bond payable in Note 7). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30, 2021 and 2020 was $174,755 and $174,626, respectively, and the Organization
was in compliance with this requirement. These amounts are included in restricted
cash on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

20



DocuSign Envelope ID: 88B8C054-D55C-475F-A5C4-D11282B7D3E7

TRI-COUNTY COIVIMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30. 2021 and 2020 was $1,317,839 and $796,937, respectively.
These amounts are included in other liabilities on the Statements of Financial
Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2021 and 2020
was $1,317,839 and $796,937, respectively, and is included in the restricted cash
balance on the Statements of Financial Position.

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are restricted for
certain uses in the Organization under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at
June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $245,008 and $190,045, respectively. See Note 15.

NOTE 4. INVENTORY

In 2021 and 2020, inventory included weatherization materials which had been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
inventory is taken annually. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory at June 30, 2021 and 2020 consists of weatherization materials,
totaling $52,985 and $102,430, respectively.

NOTES. PROPERTY

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2021:

Building
Equipment
Construction

in progress
Land

Capitalized
Cost

$ 9.931.953
2,394,489

172,653

418.840

Accumulated Net

Depreciation Book Value

$ 4,233,084 $ 5,698,869
1,617,101 777,388

172,653

;  418.840

S12.917.935 S 5.850.185 $ 7.9?7.7?0
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Property consists of the following at June 30, 2020:

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value

Building $ 9,810,288 $3,753,302 $6,056,986
Equipment 2,105,950 1.848,642 257,308
Construction

in progress 4,727 - 4,727
Land 423.840 : 423.840

$12.344.805 $5.601.944 $ 6.742.861

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the Organization's
properly and equipment totals.

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 totaled
$449,153 and $435,310, respectively.

The Organization had property held for sale at June 30, 2020 amounting to
$47,000, which was classified as a current asset in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial position at June 30, 2020. The total loss on the write down
to fair value of this property was $255,492 in 2020.

NOTES. ACCRUED EARNED TIME

For the years ending June 30. 2021 and 2020, employees of the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 160 hours. At June 30, 2021 and
2020, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its
employees had earned and vested in the amount of $233,907 and $243,779,
respectively.
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NOTE 7. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 consisted of
the following;

2021 2020

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
installments of $1,664, including interest at 5% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
Installment due January 2027. $ 96,062 $ 110,824

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
installments of $2,936, including interest at 4% per
annum. Secured by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final installment due April
2031. 285,268 307,719

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $459, including interest at 5% per
annum. This note was an unsecured line of credit

that was converted to a term loan during the year
ended June 30, 2016 and was paid off during the
year ended June 30,2021. - 4,478

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $312, including interest at
5.49% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. This note was paid off during the year
ended June 30,2021. - 4,228

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly instalirrients of $313, including interest at
5.54% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. This note was paid off during the year
ended June 30,2021. - 3,948

Note payable to a financing company requiring 60
monthly installments of $143, including interest at
5.99% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. This note was paid off during the year ended
June 30.2021. - 705
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $248, including interest at
6.10% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. This note was paid off during the year
ended June 30, 2021.

2021 2020

7,294

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $2,512, including interest at 5.51%
per annum. Secured by second mortgage on
commercial property. This note was paid off during
the year ended June 30, 2021. 387,227

Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly
installments of $14,485, including interest of 2.75%
plus the bank's internal cost of funds multiplied by
67% with an indicative rate of 3.28%. Secured by
first commercial real estate mortgage on various
properties and assignments of rents at various
properties. Final installment due August 2040. 2,467,774 2,547,308

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. This capital advance is not subject to
interest or principal amortization and will be forgiven
after 40 years, or in August 2047. 1,617,600 1,617.600

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage payable
due to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.
The mortgage is not subject to interest or principal
amortization. Payments are deferred for 40 years;
final payment due in August 2047. 250.000 250.000

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs

Unamortized debt issuance costs

4,716.704
f10.044)

5,241,331
f10.931)

Total long term debt
Less current portion due within one year

4,706,660

/129.155)

5.230,400

(437.843)

$ 4.792:557
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of June 30, 2021 were as follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2022 $ 129,155

2023 134,452
2024 139,961
2025 145,697
2026 151,677

Thereafter 4.015.762

$ 4.716.704

As described at Note 3, the Organization is required to maintain a reserve account
with a bank for the first two notes payable listed above.

NOTES. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

During the year ended June 30, 2016, the Organization leased a phone system and
copier under the terms of capital leases, which expired in November 2020 and
March 2021, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Company
leased an additional cbpier under the terms of a capital lease, which expired in May
2021. The assets and liabilities under the capital leases were recorded at the lower
of the present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the assets.
The assets are depreciated over their estimated lives.

The obligations included in capital leases at June 30, 2021 and 2020, consisted of
the following:

2021 2020

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $208 for principal and
interest at 9.5% per annum. The lease was
secured by the phone system and matured in
November 2020. $ - $ 1,213

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.841% per annum. The lease was
secured by a copier and matured In March 2021.

944
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Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.918% per annum. The lease was
secured by a copier and matured in May 2021.

Less current portion

2021 2020

1.397

3,554
_ f3.554)

$  - $

NOTE 9. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with its primary financial
institution which is secured by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases
and rents on various properties as disclosed in the line of credit agreement.
Borrowings under the line bear Interest at 5.00% per annum. There was no balance
outstanding at June 30, 2021 and 2020. The line is subject to renewal each
January.

NOTE 10. OPERATING LEASES

The Organization has entered Into numerous lease commitments for space and
office equipment. Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various
starting dates, lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the
Organization has several facilities which are leased on a month to month basis. For
the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the annual rent expense for leased
facilities and office equipment totaled $138,598 and $181,004, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases having
initial terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2021, are as follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2022 $ 127,467
2023 65,722
2024 43,884

2025 43,884

2026 42,869
Thereafter 3.512

S  327.338
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 11. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS

The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, transportation and elder
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization.
These services are valued based upon the comparative market wage for similar
paid positions.

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and elder programs.
The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental
payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.

Many other-individuals have donated significant amounts of time to the activities of
the Organization. The financial statements do not reflect any value for these
donated services since there is no reliable basis for making a reasonable
determination.

NOTE 12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. receives a majority of its support from
federal and state governments. For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
approximately $18,238,690 (76%) and $14,380,020 (74%), respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from federal and state governments. If a
significant reduction in the.level of support were to occur, it would have a significant
impact on the Organization's programs and activities.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. receives a large majority of its support from the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June
30, 2021 and 2020, approximately 67% and 68%, respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development. In the absence of additional revenue sources, the future
existence of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding
policies of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.

The majority of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s assets are apartment projects,
for which operations are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate market. In
addition, the Organization operates in a regulated environment. The operation of
the Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federal, state and local regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to, HUD.
Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an
act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes
may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost,
including the administrative burden, to comply with the change.
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NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Net assets witti donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of June 30, 2021 and 2020:

Temporary Municipal Funding
RAP

Restricted Buildings
Loans - HSGP

FAP/EAP

RSVP Program Funds
Head Start

RSVP - Matter to Balance

10 Bricks Shelter Funds

DOE

Donations to Maple Fund
Loans - HHARLF

Coronavirus Response

Total net assets with donor restrictions

2021 2020

216,423 $ 307,017

174,056 102,998

39,913 85,713

24,403 22,029

16,330 24,350
5,887 5,887

5,856 -

500 500

17 -

- 46,287
- 1,571
- 104
_ 94

NOTE 14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Compliance

The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. Under the
terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations
including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.

Environmental Continciencies

On March ̂ 30, 2009, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company.
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The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2,
2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department's satisfaction.

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are

released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
action including containment and remediation.

Loss Contingencies

During the year ended June 30, 2018 and subsequently, legal actions were brought
against the Organization. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of such cases as
of June 30, 2021, as well as the uncertainty of the Organization's potential liability,
no amount has been accrued by the Organization at this time.

NOTE 15. REPLACEMENT RESERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS
Under Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s regulatory agreement with HUD, the
Organization is required to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for the
replacement of property and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-
restricted deposits of $181,723 and $155,278 were held in a segregated account at
June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. HUD-restricted deposits generally are not
available for operating purposes.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s use of the residual receipts account is contingent
upon HUD's prior written approval. Residual receipts of $59,517 and $31,049 were
held in a segregated account for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

HUD has initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of the Organization's project rental assistance contract. The policies
direct that the amounts in excess of certain limits in the residual receipts account be
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted
directly to HUD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated in the residual receipts account to $250 per unit.
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In accordance with the policy noted above, the Organization was required to remit
funds to HUD totaling $31,412 during the year ended June 30, 2020. In addition to
the funds remitted, HUD approved the Organization to withdraw $11,852 from the
residual receipts account for equipment during the year ended June 30, 2020.

NOTE 16. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position dale,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Non-recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through November
19, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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SCHEDULE OP EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND NON-FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR EN060 JUNE 30.

FEDERAL GRANTOR/PROGRAM TTTLE

FEDERAL

■ALN
PASS-THROUGH

GRANTORS NAME

GRANTORS
IDENTtFYING FEDERAL

NUMBER EXPENDITURES

U.S. Dwwrtmgnt ef Hrolth «mj Human S*fvle«
HEAD START CLUSTER
Head Start
Head Stan
CRSSA-Haad Start

Lxtw-lncome Home Energy AssUtance
t-ovr-lncdme Home Energy AsststarKe
CV-Low-tncome Home Energy Assistartce
Low-lncoma Home Energy Assistance
Lowlneoma Home Energy Assisiance

AGING CLUSTER
Special Programs fw tw • Tide III. Part B - Grants for Suppcrilve Services end Senior Centers (SEAS)
Special Programs for Bve Aging • Tlfle til. Pan 8 - Grartts for SupponNe Services and Senior Ceners (Sr. Wheeb)

Special Prtagtana for the Aging • Tide IB. Part C - Nutrition Servicet (Congregate S HO Meats)
CV-Speciai Programs lor the ^jing-TlUe III. Part C • Hutritton Services (CooTegate & HO Meats)

NiAtitioo Services Incenbve Program (NSIP)

Convnunily Services Block Grant
CV - Community Servlcas Block Grant

Temporary Ass«ier)ce for Needy Ferrvies (NHEP Workplace Success)
Temporary Assistence for Needy Farraes (JARC)

HIV Cara Formula Grants (Ryan Vffite Cere Program)

Social Services Block Grant (TUe XX t&R)
Sodal Services Block Grant (Tide XX HO)
Sodai Services Blodc Grant ((SuertfertsMp)

Promotktg Safe artd SiaUe FamSes/Femiy VIotonce Prevention and ServlcesAXsaeljonary

Provider Ralef Furtd

Projects for Atststvce in Transition from Hometessness

Specfol Programs for the Aging Ttie IV end Tide II Otscratfonery Projecs
CV-Soecial Programs for me Aging Tide IV and Title 11 Oiscretionrry Projects

Total U.S. Oepartmard of Health and Human Services

93.600
93.600
93.600

93.566
93.568
93.568
93.568
93.568

93.044
93.044

93.045

93.045

93.053

93.569
93.569

93.558
93.558

93.917

93.667
93.667

93.667

State of New Hampshire OfBce of Erwgy artd Piarvang
Stale of New HarrosMre Office of Energy and Planr^g
Slate of New Hampshire OfBce of Energy and Planting
State of New Hampshra Offlce of Energy and Ptonrdng
State of New Hampehire Office of Energy ana Planning

Slate of New Hampshire Office of Energy and Planning
State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servlcas

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Stste of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Stale of New Hampshire OapKtmerB Of Heaim and Human Services

State of New HampsfUre Department of Health arvl Human Services
State of New Hampshra Oepartmenl of Health and Himan Services

Southern New Hampshire Services. Ire.
State of New Hampshire Department of Health end Human Services

Stale of New Hampshire Depanment of Heatth end Human Senices

State of New Hampshbe Oepartmenl of Health and Human Services
State of New Harrv»hire Department of Heatlh artd Human Services
Sfote of New Hampshire Dapertmem of Health and Human Services

S3.S56 & 93.592 State of New Hampshire CoalUon agaksl Domestic and Sexual Violence

93.498

93.150 Stale of t4ew Hampshire Office of Human Services. Bmau of Homeless

93.046
93.048

UnhrarsBy of New Hampshire
UnNarsfty of New HsmpsNre

01CH1000CH)6-00 S 1,811.807
01CK011938-01-00 1.100.815

44.544

CLUSTER TOT At 2.957.166

G-20B1NHLIEA 171.618
G-2lB1NHLtEA 4.633,072
2001NHE5C3 787.266

G-20BtNHLlEA 1056420 (12,553)
G-?1R1NHllFA1ft564?fl 227.527

TOTAL 6.006.950

18AANHTaSS 6,489
512-50035? 81 322

TOTAL 87,811

541-500386 300,127
181.544

TOTAL 481.671

NONE 93.340

CLUSTER TOTAL 642.822

102-500731 470.848
NONE 279.400

TOTAL 750.248

16-0HHS-8WW-CSP-05 36.127
1802NHTANF 24.800

TOTAL 60,927

530-500371 2.932

545-600387 104.626
544-500386 85.043
102-500731 13.524

TOTAL 203.393

SPRDV 13.226

31.678

05-95-42-423010-7928 52.372

15.000
19.319

TOTAL 34.319

10,758,033
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENOtTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND NOIfPEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 202i

FEDERAL GRANTORTPROGRAM TITLE

FEDERAL

ALN.

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAME

GRANTOR'S

IDENTIFYING

NUMBER

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES

U.S. Deoirtmrni! of Enwov

WMtrwfzaUon Auitlancs for Lw-lncoms Porsora $1,042 State of Naw Hampstora GovenWi Office of Energy & Conarunity Servicf EE0007935 .% 277.664

Total U-S. Dopanmant of Enargy S 277.664

. U-S. CofTwrailon for National and Commiinltv SarHca

Re'JreO end Senior Vokjn'.aer Progrem 94.002 19SRANH001 .$• 77.198

Total U.S. CotporsUon for Nationai end Community Servico S 77.198

U.S. Dnwrtrnem of AorieuHure

CMd end Adiil Care Food Program
FOOD DISTRIBUTION CLUSTER

Emergency Food Assistance Program

10.553

10.569

Siata of Naw Harepehlra Dapa/tmoni of Education

BMCAP

NONE

CLUSTER TOTAL

s 138.900

17.739

Total U.S. Oepenment of AgrlcuKwe s 156.639

II S. Danwlmnnt of Homdsnd Sfeeiiritv

Emergency Food & Sheltar Program (FEMA)
CV-Emetgency Food S SDeller Program (FEMA)

97.024

97.024

i 5.686
22.775

Total U.S. Oepartmeni of Homaland Security s 28.661

U.S. Dewirlmenl ol Justice

Crima ̂ cdm Assistarwe (VOCA) 16.575 State of New HamssHra CoalUon agalnsl Domes'iic and Semal VIolarKa VOCA S 112.770

Seajal AssaUt Sar>AC«s Formula Program fSASP) 16.017 State of New Hampsnira CoelUon agNnsi Domestb and Sexual VlderKa 2019-KF-AX-0043 17.173

OVW Tactrlcal Assistanca irlttatlve 16.526 Grafton County Court OVW-2016-13829 13.794

Total U.S. Department of Justice 3 143.737

- ll.R. nernrtmentof Transnertation

forneie Grenta for Rural Areat (Section 5311) 20.509 State of New Hampenire Oepartment of Transportation NH-ie-XD46 S 576.390

TRANSIT SERVICES PROGRAMS CLUSTER

EttftancaO MobSty of Seniors arsl Indvidusla with DisabBUea 20.513 State of New Hampenita Oepartment of Transportation NH-65-X006 6.297

CLUSTER TOTAL 6.297

Total U.S. Oeoarvnent of Trensportstlon S 582.667

US. r>anartment of Hoosino and Urban DevNonment

Emargency SoUions Grant Program
CV-Emsigency Sclutlons Grant Program

14.231

14.231

State of New Hampafva Department of HaelOi and Human Servicae
State of NH Governor's OfDce (or Emergency Ralef & Recovery

102-500731 S $2,825
58.804

TOTAL 121.429

Cortinuum of Care Program (HOIP)
Corvinuum of Cera ftogram (HOIP)
CorRinuum of Cara Program (HOIP)
Coreiruum of Care Program (HOIP)

14.207

14.267

14.267

14.267

Slate of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sarvica*
State of New Hampahira Oepartment of HeaRh and Human Servlcaa
State of New Hampshire Oepartment of I laehh and Human Sarvicea
State of New Hampstiira Depanmeni of Health and Hranan Satvieet

NHoozcnBoiri

SS.201»«HK»«1.CootaO(

NONE

reomriGOOifio

71,885
130.822
36.163

14.1S7

rOTM. • 253.029

Total U.S Oapanmant of Housing and Urt»n Drralopmant

32

S 374.458
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FEDERAL GRANTOR/PROGRAM TfTLE
FEDERAL

ALN

U.S. Oaoaftmiww of Lahor

WlAftWOA CLUSTER

WIA/WlOA AduQ Prognm

To(Bi U.S. Departfflsnt oi Labor

U.S. Doparttnorrt ef Iho Trtasurv

Coronsvvus Rftlof Fund
Coronavirus R«Ssf Furx)

Coronavfrus Refief Fund

Coronavhus Rslsf Fund

Emergency RaKai AnbCsnce Pregram

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAME

GRANTOR'S

IDENTIFYING

NUMBER

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES

17.2S3 Southern New hCempeltire Services. Inc.

21.019 VolunteerNKI

21.019 Slate of NH Govemor'i Office of Emergency Relief and Recovery
Housing Stabilzation Fund

21.019 Slate of NHCcMemor's Office of Emergency ReBef and Recovery
SheSer Modiflcaiion Program

21.019 Sate of NH Governor's Office of Emergency Refief and Recovery
COVIO • 19 Lor^ Term Cere StaMizalion Program

21.023 NH Housing Rnance Authority

201M0M $ 10.650

CLUSTER TOTAL $ 10.650

S  24,301

I.409.B76

8.S53

36.190

TOTAL 1,460,920

2.639.016

Total U.S. Department of the Treasury

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

NON-FEDERAL

New Hanpshlre Public Utiities Company • Electrical Assistance Program BMCAP

16,527.665

291.216

NOTE A. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The occompony'mg sctwJule of expenditures of Federal Awards (Iho Schedule) includes the federal award activity of Trf-Coonly Conwunfty Action Program, \rc. under programs ol the tederal government (or the year ended Juno 30 2021 The InformaUon in ihb
Schedule is preeenled in accordance with the laquiromems of TMe 2 U.S.Code of Federal Regulatiotw Pan 200. UnHom AdmfrHsfraOve Raooiwenfs. Co« Prindptta. and Ai«M Redtaamenia for Federal Awtntt (UnHorm GuidanceL Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Tri-Counly Community Action Program, Inc.. It is not intended to end does not present the Rnoneial position, changes in net or cash Sows of the Organiution.

NOTE B . SUMMARY OF StBNtFlCANT ACCOUNTTNG POLtCtES

Expendtures reported on the SchecWe are reported on the accrual betis of accounting. Such expenditurea are fecognlzed loHowing the cost principles conasied in Unitorm Guidance, whereh certain types of expendaures are not aao>»at)le or ere IrtSted as to
reimbursomern. Negativa amounts snmvn on the Scheduta represent ad)ustinents or credits made in itw normal course of business k> amounts reponed as expwvliiures in prior years.

TrvCounty Community Action Program Inc. has eiecled to not use the lO-parcant da minimis indirect cost rate aUowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained In Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial
position as of June 30. 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated November 19, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Tri-County Community
Action Program Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiehcies, in Internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstaternent of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in Internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s
frnancial statements are free from material misstatement. we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

November 19, 2021
North Conway, New Hampshire
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

Leone, ^
McDonnell
& Roberts

PROFHSSIONAL ASSOCIATION

CERTll'IKO i'UBLIC ACCOUNTAN'l^j

WOLFEBORO • NOR'IH CONW

DOVER • CONCORD
STRM'HAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
TrI-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2021. Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal programs.

Auditors'Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Tri-County Community Action
Program Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary In the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community
Action Program Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Tri-County Community Action Program, inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Management of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in infernal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of Internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

November 19, 2021

North Conway, New Hampshire
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TRI-COUNTY COIVIMUNITY ACTION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Trl-County
Community Action Program, Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs during the audit
are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major programs.

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) are
reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs included:

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services, LIHEAP - ALN 93.568

U.S. Dept. of the Treasury, Coronavlrus Relief Fund - ALN 21.019

U.S. Dept. of the Treasury, ERAP-ALN 21.023

U.S. Dept. of Housing and Urban Development, CoC-ALN 14.267

New Hampshire Public Utilities Company, Electrical Assistance Program (non-Federal)

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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I^TRI-GOUNTY
■■ ^COMMUNITY ACTION

Serving Co6s. Carroll & Grafton Counties since 1965

Board of Directors

FY2022

Coos County Carroll County Grafton County

Board Chair

Sandy Alonzo

Charles Monaghan Linda Massimilla

Richard Mcleod

Brian Hoffman

Fay Pierce

Treasurer

George Sykes

Ruth Heintz
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Jeanne L. llobillard

cnHE CTWEiVCTJraS

Program development, management and administrarion ♦ Community collaborations
Development of policy, protocol, and service delivery to meet funder standards

Grant writing and management ♦ Budget performance and financial reporting
Innovative solutions Sc problem solving ♦ Capacity building

Professional presentations ♦ Public speaking
Dedication ♦ Imagination ♦ Determination ♦ Fortitude

PHOyKS-SIIOIVAL EXPEWIgiVCE

Tri-Couniy Commoniiy Action Programs, Inc.
Chief Executive Offifier

Berlin, NH 20J 9 - eurrent iTF ompU^ymeni

Tri-Countj ConmanDity Action Programs, inc.
Chief Operating Officer
Berlin, NB 3010 • 2018
Responsible for the operations of six agency Divisions with 15 individual programs that provide over
60 consumer services across three counties of Northern New Hampshire. Essential duties include;
supervision of Division Directors, oversee and monitor program resources, revenues, expenditures
and budget performance; tactical oversight of programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic
goals; develop and implement strategies to improve individual programs and overall agency program
and fiscal performance; oversee and lead special projects such as the Annual Report, Strategic Plan,
Community Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior Management Team to develop new
service initiatives. Provide tactical guidance to Division Directors to trouble shoot issues and problems
in the daily operations of programs.

Tri>Coiin(y Commnniiy Action Programs, inc.
Dhrision Directorx TCCAP Prevention Services
Berlin. SU 2015- 3016
Responsible for four agency programs under the umbrella of TCCAP Prevention Services; oversee
division resources, revenues, and expenditures and monitor budget performance; general oversight of
programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic goals; supervise program directors; write grants
to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and Randal statements for fundcrs
and agency, develop fundraising and marketing strategics for programs; represent program through
participation in state and local initiatives relative to program/division goals and service delivery;
coUaboratc with stakeholders and elected offidals, including presenting legislative testimony.

Tri-Coanty 0>mmiixii<y Action Programs. Inc.
Program/Division Director: Support Center at Dnrch Bouse
Littleton, New Bampshirc 3007-2015

Oversee daily operation and supervision of domestic and sexual violence crisis center and residential
shelter; write grants to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial
statements for fundcrs and parent agency; oversee program resources, revenues and expenditures, and
monitor budget performance and progress toward strategic goals; create and direct victim advocacy
programs to ensure compliance with grant deliverables and applicable state and federal law; develop
fundraising and marketing strategies; participate in state and local collaborations to enhance victim
services; represent program in state and federal \'ictim service initiatives, including presentation of
legislative testimony; create and present trainings for medical and legal professionals on legal standards
and best practices for victim services.
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JLRobillard*2

Ilookk«teper: Women's Rural Euireprcneuriol Network |WR£N|
Bethlehem* N0 current PT employnient

Responsible for grant fiscal tracking, reporting, funds release and account transfers, bi-weekly payroll
and 941 payments, accounts payable and receivable, month end reconciliations for bank accounts,
credit cards, petty cash, retail and market sales; monthly POS/QB reconciliation for three retail
locations, preparing monthly cash flow, forecasts, and standard fiscal reports for Board of Directors.

Tii-Coimtj Communilj Aciion Programiif Inc.
Direct Serriees/Volnnteer Coordinntort Support Center at Bnrch House
Littleton, New Hampshire 1997 2007
Provide advocacy and direct service to victims of domestic and sexual violence; supervise court
advocacy programs; recruit, train and supervise staff, volunteers, and interns; develop agency systems,
policies and protocols; create and present communit)'' outreach prcsentadons and campaigns; present
school-based violence prevention classes for grades K-12 ; provide on-call coverage of crisis line

Director: Uaverliill Area Jnvenile Diversion Program
WoodoviBe* New Hampshire 1999-2001

Recruit, train, and supervise volunteer diversion committees; establish community programming for
diverted youth; supportive counseling of youth; maintain collaborative relationships between the court
system, juvenile service officers, local pobcc departments, and diversion program; prepare and file
court reports on diverted youth; community outreach and education

Counaelor/nile T Teacher: Norihern Eamilj Inriiiute-Jeffereon Shelter
Jcftereon, New Hampshire 199^1999

Provide individual supportive counseling to adjudicated youth, facilitate peer support groups, develop
and implement treatment plans and case management services to clients, supervise and tutor youth in
classroom setting, supervise youth in daily living skills

Edaca<ion

BS in Hxunan Services* Springfield College School of Hnman Services* Boston* MA
Criminal Justice Conccnttadon, GraduaUd with 4.0 GPA

AS in Drug and Alcohol Behabilitation Counseling IDABC Prugruml
Southern Connectient Community College, New Haven, CT

Addiiiopi*! L^ikills. iProiemiional Leadership and Eivic AftUiariong

♦ Chairman, Bethlehem Board of Selectmen, Town of Bethlehem Twice Elected 2006-2010
♦ Chairman, Arts Alliance of Northern New Hampshire 2000-200'i, Treasurer 1996-1998
♦ Chairman, Havcchill Area Pamily Violence Council 1998-2003

♦ Ccctified PRIME FOR Impaired Driver Intervention Program Instructor #NH16199

♦ Registered Sexual Harassment Prevention Trainer in the State of New Hampshire
♦ Board Member, Women's Rural Entrepreneurial Network 2014; IndiindualMemlftr 2008-2017
♦ Bethlehem Planning Board 2010 - 2015
♦ Bethlehem Conservation Commission 2006 - curreni

♦ Granite United Way, North Country Cabinet Member 2011-2012
♦ TCCAP: Commendation- Division Director Award, 2011
♦ Bethlehem Gtizcn's Advisory Committee on Recycling 2007-2010

♦ Uccnscd Foster Parent, State of NH 2000-2006

♦ Small Business Owner : Aurora Energies 2015-(urrent
♦ Speakeasy Trio Jazz Vocalist/ Sweet [amm Swing Band Jazz Vocalist 1997- current
♦ Member, United States Figure Skating Association/International Skating Institute current since 1993
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Randall S. Pilotte

Summary

Accounting professional with over 29 years of experience, of which 21 years were with a single private manufacturo-.
16 years of experience managing accounting professionals. Key con^etencies include:

Financial Statements Accounts Payables Inventory Fixed Assets
Payroll Bank Reconciliations Accounts Receivables Sales/Use Tax
Budgeting Cash Flow Management Audits Forecasting

Experience

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, rNC.. Berlin, NH 06/2013-Preseiit

CFO (2017-Present)
Work closely with the CEO, Treasurer and Finance Committee to identify perfoimancc goals for the Agency and to
maintain systems to monitor performance against those goals. Plan, direct, coordinate, implement and evaluate the
financial management systems and activities ofthe Agency with a budget of$18M.
•  Prepare/provides complete and accurate financial, statistical, and accounting records for the Agency and outside

regulatory agencies.
• As a member of the senior management team, assists in the formulation and execution of corporate finance

policies, objectives and programs.
•  Prepares program and agency budgets in conjunction with the CEO and Program Directors. Plan, direct,

coordinate, implement and evaluate fiscal performance reviews ofTri-County CAPs divisions.
•  Hire, train,directandevaluateemployeeperformancewithinthcdepartment;recomineodpromotions and salary

adjustments.
•  Provides supervision and direction for the Facilities Management Team, ensuring that all mortgages, leases and

covenants are maintained for Tri-County CAP's facilities. Creation of five-year coital plan.
•  Reviews cash flows for each division, monitor cash management practices, and monitorin vestments associated

with each property.
•  Prepared five-year d^t reduction plan.

Fiscal Director/Interim CFO (2016- 2017)
• Direct and manage a fiscal staff of 5 and processes associated with the general ledger, payroll, and accounts

payable, accounts receivable, cash receipts and fixed assets.
• ftepare and supervise the production of financial statements including Balance Sheet, Revenue and Expense

Reports, and Cost Summaries on a monthly and annual basis.
• Maintain proper accounting controls on grants and contributions to ensure accurate revenue reporting and expense

tracking to supportperiodic monitoring's by funders and auditors.
•  Ensure all balance sheet, revenue and expense accounts are analyzed and reconciled periodically.
•  Collaborate with Division Directors to monitor departmental revalue and expenses versus budget.
• Worked with the CFO to develop real time monthly and annual financial reporting; and implementing

departmental goals.
•  Prepare audit schedules for external auditors.
•  Collaborate with external auditors in completing annual audit in a timely manner.

Accounting Manager (2015-2016)

Sr. Accountant (2013-2014)
RANDALL PILOTTE RESUME:
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KENTNUTRmON GROUP. INC. Cf/k/aBlue Seal Feeds. Inc.). Londonderry, NH 03/1989-09/2010

Assistant Controller (2005-2010)

•  Ensured an accurate and timely monthly and year end close, consisting of the preparation of a consolidated and
individual financial statement in accor^nce with GAAP for nine manufacturing plants and 11 retail stores with
gross revenues in excess of $200M. Additional responsibilities included preparing journal entries, account
analysis, inventory review and observation, fixed assets, and depreciation.

• Managed,trained,andsupervisedastaffaccountantresponsibleforeQSuringaccuratejournal entries, inventory
reconciliation, tonnage tax returns, bank reconciliations, and assignment ofspecial projects.

•  Oversaw all aspects ofproprietary software, multi-state payroll system for 500 en^loyees. Prepared all federal
and state payroll tax reports, including quarterly and year-end returns, processing of W2s, and supervision of
payroll clerk.

•  Interfaced with IS variousbanksthroughoutNewEnglandandMid-Atlanticareausedasdcpositories.
•  Prepared multi-state sales/use tax returns and acted as point ofcontact for audits.
•  Pro-actively coachedandconsultedplantandstoremanagementonthe annual budget development process.
• Oversaw month-end accmals.

• Assistedandrespondedtoauditors'requestsonannualaudit.
•  Filed annual franchise and abandoned property reports with apprqrriate states.

Accounting Manager (1999-2(K}5)

Supported the CoipOTate Controller's initiatives by providing supervision and ovo^ight to the Accounting function.
Supervised and trained two accounts payable clerks on Chart of Accounts, Accounts Payable, timely and accurate
processing and payment of vendor's invoices, employee travel reimbursemeols, and standard accountingpractices.

Accormtant/Payroll Supervisor (1994-1999)

Accountant (1989-1994)

NORTHERN TELECOM. INC.. Concoid, NH 05/1987-03/1989

Associate Results Accountant (1988-1989)

Accounts Payable (1987-1988)

Education

Bachelor of Science, Accounting, FRANKLIN PiERCE College. Concord, NH
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Brenda Gagne
Tri County Commuaity Action Program Inc.

Professional Skills:

Demonstrated administrative experience and skills

Fiscal management skills or experience in administering grants aud/or department budgets

Strong grant development experience, high quaKly research, for federal, stale funding

Excellent inteipeisonal skills with an ability to build and maintain among faculty and staff

Previous administrative experience or evidence of administrative skills required to lead a large department

Leadership skills and experience to implement policies and procedures

Effectivecommunication skills and team building capabilities

Trl County Community Actxon Program
Economic Supports Department Head
6/2020 to Present

Manage a department of 4 Program Directors and staff

Advise programs on funding opportunities to include Federal, State and Local

Represent Agency at State and Local levels.

Monitor Program Budgets and Operations

Handle staff complaints when merited

Tri County Transit
Director ofTraniportatlon
5/2017-6/2020

Responsibilities Include;
Overei^t of the operations, maintenance and administrative functions of a social service transportation program
serving Coos, Northern Grafton and Carroll Counties.

Grant Management State ofNH DOT, NH DHHS
Dmg & Alcohol Management
Financial Managenoent
Title VI, ADA Policy Management



DocuSign Envelope ID: 88BBC054-D55C-475F-A5C4-D11282B7O3E7

Tri County Transit
Operatioos Manager
7/20D4-5/2017

ResponslbiQitles include;
•Running the daily operations of a public transit and para transit service.
♦Facility Management.
♦Gathering statistics
♦Quarterly reporting to NHDOT and BEAS.
♦Preparing quaiteify invoices to BEAS and NHDOT
♦Weekly employee scheduling, staff management.
♦Creating procedure manuals
♦Grant writing
♦Budget preparation
♦Writing Warrant Articles
♦Drug & Alcohol Testing
•Emergency Preparedness

Mountain Village ConstructioD
Accounts Manager/Ofnce Manager
5/1995-1/2004

Responsibilities included;
♦Customer service.
♦Accounting using Quick Books Pro.
♦PrepariDg payroll and Tax Payments.
♦Preparing Customer Statements and Invoices.
♦Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable.
•Creating and running Profit and Loss Reports.
♦Data Entry.
♦Phone communications and general secretarial duties.

Milan Parks and Recreation Dept
Parka and Recreation Director
6/1997 - 3/2002

Responsibilities included;

♦Directed and implemented sports and recreational programs for youth and adults forthe
Towns of MSlan, West Milan, and Dummer.

♦Development of new programs and year round activities.
♦Producing yearly budgets.
♦Applying for Federal and State Giants.
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Education:

Granite State College
Emergency Management

Southern New Haiiq)shire University
Bachelor of Business Administtation
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DONNA M. C.KEDDY

Career Objective: To utilize my experience in the Probate Forum to advocate for

incapacitated individuals for the iinprovcincnt of their quality of life.

EMPLOYMENT:

2003-Present -TrI-Count)' CAP, Inc. Guardianship Ser\'ices- Director

Directorship approved by Board of Directors on 4-71/2004

Acting Director effective 5/13/2003

1993-2003 - TCC/GS Assistant Director/Estate Supenisor

1/01/1993-5/12/2003 - Duties include Management of the Estate and Trust Departments, direct

supervision of fi\e financial managers, ie: Estate Managers. Payee Specialist and Benefits

Administrator, indirect supcrvi.sion of entire program staff a.s Director's dcsigncc. Thi.s position

also includes carrying an Estate and Trust Caseload.

199M992-TCC/GS Estate Manager

6/1991-12/1992 - Duties included the development of a more efficient system to manage and

account forwards resources. Continual training and understanding of the Probate System and all

public assistance programs and systems, plus Social Security and. Veteran Administrative

systems. Also carried an Estate and Payee Caseload. Duties also included Administrative

Program functions. Direct supen'ision of estate and support staff.

1988-I992-TCC/GS Administrative Assistant/Staff Guardian

1 1/1988-12/1992 - Duties included Administrative Program Functions, Payee Responsibilities,

and a guard ian.ship caseload at Glencliff Home for the Elderly.

1985-1989 Bookkeeper for Diamond International Corporation

Woodland Division ba.sed out of Lancaster/Groveion. New Hampshire

EDUCATION:

I973-I977 Ludlow High School. Business Study

Ludlow^ MA

National Honor Society
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D Keddy *2

CERTIFICATIONS: Member since 1988. Registered Guardian, Conference Presenter

National Guardianship Foundation. National Master Guardian, Center for Guardianship

Certification.

Professional Qualifications and Background:

♦Development of comprehensive program policies and protocols for the establishment of Estate.
Trust, Protective Payee, and Benefit Management Services for state-wide public
guardianship program with oversight of the associate director, staff guardians, estate and
benefit staff in both Whiteficid and Concord offices.

♦Consultation services to family guardians and individuals either considering
Guardianship over a loved one or education regarding guardianship standards
and respojisibililies both on a fee-for-service basis and as a professional

courtesy to the Probate Coun and the general public.

♦Member of the National Guardianship Association (NGA) from 1988 to present.
♦Certified as a National Registered Guardian through the NGA in 1997,
♦Presenter at the National Guardianship Conference in Arlington, Virginia 1998.

Topic: The Keys of Estate Management "Tlie First Ninety "Days".
♦Selected by Judge Maher, then AdminLsirative Probate Judge, to be on his
commillcc to produce a handbook to guide, assist, and provide resource."? to

individuals that are responsible formaking health care decision for others.
"Making Medical Decisions for Someone Else: A New Hampshire Handbook (2007).

♦Appointed to Judge King's Task Force on Professional Guardians 6/24/2008.

Purpose: need to ensure that the guardians .ser\'ing the vulnerable population are held to high
professional and ethical standards and have adequate education, training and experience. (Article
ui Coos County Democrat July 2. 2008). Tlie NH House passed the proposed legislation for the
amendment on RSA 464-A:IO on 5/20/2009.

♦Certified as a National Master Guardian through the Center for Guardianship
Certification on 4/1/2010.
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JAYNE ELIZABETH MCCABE

Career Objective:

To work fora cusromcr orientated human services organization that enables mc to utilize

a variety ofleadership and management skills in a challenging setting.

EMPLOYMENT:

8/98- present TRI-COUNTY CAP, INC., GUARDIANSHIP SERVICES

Associate Director - 4/04 to present

Duties include assisting the Director in the overall management of the program, supervision of

staff" guardians, training and orientation of staff,

and quality assurance activities. Managing assigned case load.

Senior Staff Guardian-1 1/02 to 4/04

Duties included direct supervision of 7 staff guardians, staff training and orieniaiion, and

working with the program management team.

Staff Guardian-8/98 to 10/02

Duties included making medical and treatment decisions for incapacitated adults, working with

treatment teams from a variety of communiiy agcncic.s, and advocacy.

4/83- n/98 MOORE CENTER SERVICES INC.

Self Determination and Special Projects Director- 2/98 to 11/98

Primary responsibilities included coordination of regional sclf-dctcmunaiion project a part of a

slate-wide grant from the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation. Primary focus included developing

a data collection system, facilitating necessary training, and identification of systems issues

which impacted the ability of (he consumers to exercise choice and control. Secondary

responsibilities included coordination of regional quality assurance activities.
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JE McCabe *2

QuaUty- Assurance Director- 11/93 lo 2A98

Areas of authority included coordination of regional quality assurance activities; coordination of

regional client rights activities including complaint investigation, problem resolution and trend

analysis: and. coordination of regional staff development and training activities.

Director of Regional Residential Sendees- 2/88-1 1/93

Areas of authority included directingprogrammatic support and administrative services for

residential programs services 127 individuals within a seven community region: management of

owned and lease property; negotiating and monitoring subconirdcts; formulation and

management of program budget.

Residential Supervisor- 3/86 to 2/88

Supervision of staffed residences; recruitment, training and supervision of private residential

providci-s; and, coordination of quality assurance and licensing activities.

Various other positions within the agency- 4/83 to 3/86

EDUCATION:

1986 NEW HAMPSHIRE COLLEGE. Manchester. New Hampshire

M.S.. Human Ser\'ices Administration

1983 SAINT ANSELM COLLEGE. Goffstown.NH

B.S.. Criminal Justice

CERTIFICATIONS:

Center forCuardianship Certification;

National Master Guardian4.'20i0 topresent

National Certified Guardian 10/1999 lo 4/'2010



DocuSign Envelope ID: 88BBC054-D55C-475F-A5C4-D11282B7D3E7

CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary Amount Paid
from this Contract

Jeanne Robillard Chief Executive OfJicer $0

Randall Pilotte Chief Financial Officer $0

Brenda Gagne Department Head $65,000

Donna Keddy Program Director $14,965.50

Jayne McCabe Associate Director $31,492.50
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

LEGAL AND REGUUTORYSERVICES

129 PLEA^NT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9443 1-800451-3349 EiL 9443

Fu: 603-271-1912 TDD A«t«: 1-800-735-2964
v.dbhft.oh.gov

June 8, 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 08^1

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into Sole Source contracts with the vendors listed below in an amount not to exceed
$6 299,383 to provide public guardianship services, with the option to renew for up to two (2)
additional years, effective July 1. 2020, or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is
later, through June 30. 2022. 2% Federal Funds. 98% General Funds.

Vendor Name
Vendor

Code
Area Served Contract Amount

Office of Public Guardian 166528-8001 Concord, NH $4,900,419

Tri-County Community
Action Program

177195-B009

\

Berlin, NH $1,398,964

Total; $6,299,383

Funds are available In the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

SEE ATTACHED FISCAL DETAILS

05-96-92-922010-4114 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES,

State

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204114 $3,019,644.50

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204114 $3,019,644.50

Subtotal $6,039,289.00
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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05-9$^-481010-92S5 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT, HHS: ELDERLY & ADULT SVCS DIV, GRANTS FOR SOCIAL SVC PROG, SOCIAL
SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

State

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account
Class TItte Job Number Total Amount

2021 102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 48130201 $130,047

2022 102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 48130201 $130,047

Subtotal $200,094

. Total $6,299,383

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the vendors are the only vendors able to provide
the necessary services. RSA 547-B establishes the Public Guardianship and Protection Program
for guardianship services to be provided per NH RSA 135-C:60 and NH RSA 171-A:10. NH RSA
547-B:6 requires the Department to contract with one or more organizations that the New
Hampshire Supreme Court has designated as a public guardianship and protection program. The
Office of Public Guardian and Tri-County Community Action Program are the only organizations
the New Hampshire Supreme Court has designated as public guardianship and protection
programs.

The purpose of this request is to provide guardianship services, statewide, for up to 1092
individuals with mental illness or developmental disabilities, as well as incapacitated adults who
are abused, neglected or exploited, leaving them at risk of substantial harm because of their
inability to provide for their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage their personal
affairs.

These services are necessary to meet the State's statutory obligations to safeguard
incapacitated Individuals who are in state institutions as well as in community mental health and
developmental service programs, statewide. Services provided erasure that the guardianships are
maintained and limited In accordance with the standards embodied in RSA 464-A from July 1,
2020 to June 30. 2022.

Contracted services include mentorir^g and training services for family members who are
witling to serve as guardian but who require a period of support. Providing this support will obviate
the need for a public guardian in these cases, which results in a fiscal savings due to not needing
to ertgage permanent public guardianship services.

Approval of the Contracts will allow the vendors to provide protection services on a
statev^de basis. These Contracts also meet the requirements of NH RSA 135-C:60, NH RSA 171-
A: 10, II and NH RSA 161-F:52..The vendors agree to seek reimbursement from other payer
sources, including social security, when providing protection services.

The attached Contracts Include language that reserves the right to renew each contract
for up to two (2) additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory
performance of contracted services and Governor and Executive Council approval.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request the Department would be out
of compliance with the requirements of NH RSA 135-C: 60; NH RSA 171-A: 10, II; and NH RSA
161-f: 52. Additionally, individuals wHh mental illness, developmental disabilities and
incapacitated adults who are abused, neglected or exploited, would t>e left at risk of substantial
harm because of their inability to provide their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage
their personal affairs.

Areas senred: Statewide.

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.667, FAIN #2001NHSOSR75

The Department will request General Funds in the event that Federal Funds are no longer
available and services are still needed.

Respectfully sub

.oh A. Shibirtett

Commissioner

TTw Departmtnt of Health and Human Servicet'Miuion i< to join eommunilUt and famUut
in fifouiding opportuniiioM for ciditnM to aehtovt htailh and independence.
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Financial Detail

05.95-92-922010-4114 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OEPT OF. HHSiBEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV OF.
BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES. GUARDIANSHIP SVCS

Oftko of Public Guardian

Stala Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Amount IncreaseHDecreaso) Revised Amount

2021

Contracts for Program

Services
102-500731 50.00 52.320.162.50 $2,320,162.50

2022

Contracts (or Program

Services
102-500731 50.00 $2,320,162.50 52.320.162.50

Subtotal 50.00 54.040.225.00 54.040.225.00

Trl.Countv Community Action Program

Stats Fiscal Year Class Tllia Class Account Current Amourtl increase/fOecreaset Revised Amount

2021

Contracts for Program .
Services

102-500731 $0.00 5699.402.00 5699.482.00

2022

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500731 • 50.00 5699.482.00 5699.482.00

Subroraf 50.00 5f.290.904.00 S1.398.964.00

'

05.95-45-451010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS:ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES.
GRANTS TO LOCALS. SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

Offica of Public Guardian

Stato Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Amount incrosseffDecreaso) Revised Amount

2021

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500734 50.00 $130,047.00 5130.047.00

2022

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500734 $0.00 $130,047,00 5130.047.00

Subtotal 10.00 5200.094.00 5200.094.00

Grand Total 50.00 S6.299.U3.00 56.299.U3.00

Pace) of 1
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KOKM .NU.MOKR P07 (version 12/11/2019)

-SubJecc^Guardianship Services {SS-202I-DU1I-01-GUARD-02)

Nolicc: This ugrcumcnl und all of its 'jii'.iclMiiau» sltall Ivcoiik: public u|k<ii Mibiiii>sit.tii id Goxcnior jnil
Executive CutiQcil Cor a^pcoxul. rVay iafutnuiiun. i2ui u privaxc. coalldcntiuL or pruptlot-iry iniui
be clearly idciititioO to the u(rcncy and aerccd lo in u'ritiii<> prior to siyiinig ilic coniuct

rtCRK.KMKNT
The Slate ol'Ncw Humpshiro and the Contractiv hereby mutually ayrcc js follows

r; K N K KA L >'H I) \TS I () N S

(. iOEyrivtCATios.

t. I RV4\c Ajcnc\" Nanic

New lljmpshiicOcpjrimcnt of Health and lluniaii Sen ices

1.3 Contractor Name

Tri-Couniy Cotnmtiniiy Action Progratn. Inc.

IA ConiriK-iof ITionc

Number

<r»03)75()-3()IO

l.h Accmitit Niiinher

05-95-92-922010-41 M-

102-500731

1.9 C'oniraeiiiiy Olliccr lor State Ayciiey

Natlitiii 1). Wliiio. Director

1.1) Cmiiractcn Sit-nnturc

"""■MSl<905O
State Agency Sij^rt^ic

1.15 Approval

Hy-

I i SUito AycMiiy .Aiidrcss

129 IMca.<.ii»t .Sifcci
Comord. Nil lHJ01-.0!.^7

l.«l (."ontractiv Address

30 Exchange Sircci
llci lin Ni l. 03570

1.7 Completion Date

Iniic 2022

1.^ I'ricc [.initiati<-)n

St.39S.96a

I.in Slate Ayeoey Telepluuic N'liiiilv;'

thf»3l 2?I-%1|

1.12 Name ajid Title of Comraetor Siyiwiorj

I.U Name nnti Title Df'Stiilc Ayeocj Siynmor)

'/7
.H Dcpaiiiiicni ot'Admiiiisiiatliin. Divi-iiDii of PerSiimicI {if oi'i'li/iiffTf}

l.7ii'reior. On:

A
1.10 .Appnoal by the Attoincy General (I'lvm. Siibsiain c iinrl I-.wvuIkmi) (i) iif/tlU dhlf)

Uy; On.
Catherine Pinos 06/08/20

I  17 Approval by the Crovcrtioi uitd nxeciitive Couneil dl n/'pliaililr)

Ci<}l;C Item iuiiiiIkt; G<11'(.'Mceiiny D.iic.

Pace I nl'd
C'onirocior iniiials
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2. SKKVICES TO BE PERVOkiMKD. Tlic State ot New

Hampshire, neling tlirough ihc agency idcntiHcd in block t.l
("Stale"), engages conirucior idctjtllied in hlcick 1..^
(•'Contractor'") to perlbrtii, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work Of sale of goods, or both, identifted and more partictilarly
described in the atiuchetl liXMIBI T B which is incon>oraicd
heroin b\- reference ("Ser\'iccs").

.V KFFKCTIVE DATE/COMPLFTION OF SKRVICFCS.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to tlic
wnltnry, nnd subject to the approval of tbc Governor and
lixccnlivc C'tntncil of the Stale ofNcw Matnp.sliirc, tf applieable.
llus Agreement, und all obligations of the parties hcrcundcr. .shall
boc(>mc effective on tlic d.«le the fJoveinor and Fxccnlivc

Ce-oncil approve llus Agreement as indit;iied in bh-ck 1.17,
unless nt> such approval is required, in whicli ease the Agrccmeni
shall bcetmie clTcciivc on the date the Agreement is .signed by
the State Agency as .slmsMt in bh>ck I. MC'RlTcetivc I)atc"j.
3.2 If the Contractor eCHmTrcticc,s the Services prior to the
Rncciivc Date, all Scrvitc.s performed by the Contractor [irior to
the HfTeetivc Dsitc sliall be iwformcd at the .sole ri.sk of the
Conirucior. aiid in the event that this Agreement docs noi become
clTeciivc. Ihc Stale shall have no liahiliiy to the Cwuroelur,
iitcluditig without limitation, any obligation to pay Ihc
Contractor for any cosi.s ineiirred tv Services pcrlbrmed.
(.'ohtraeior imiju complete all Scrvicc.s hy the Completion Dale
s|xeincd ill block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL N'ATUKK OF AfiREKMLNT.

' Notwithstanding any provision of this Agrcctneni lo the
contrary, all obligations of the State heicundor. including,
without limitation, the eonlinuuncc uf pa>'mcnts hcrcundcr, iiie
contingaii upon the availabilily and continuc<i appropriation ol'
funds nn'ceied by any stale. <ir fedcrni legislaiiw w executive
action that reduces, climinaic.s or otherwise modifies the
jppropiiation or ovaibbiliiy of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in P.XIMBIT B. in wliole or in
part. In no cvciii shall the Stale Ik liable for any puviucnis
hcrcundcr in excess of such available appropriated fuiKl.\, In the
event of u reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until .such lunds
become available, if ever, .and .sluill have the right to reduce or
tcnninatc the Scrvicc.s under thb Agreement tmmcdiaicly upon
giving the Contractor notice of .such rcdiiclion or teuuinaiion.
Tlic State sh.ill not be required lo transfer fiiiuls from any olhcr
account or source to the Aectiunl idcntilicd in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account arc reduced or uiiavMibble.

5. CONTRACT I'RICK/rRICK LIMITA'I ION7

PAYMENT.

5.1 The ennlrael price, method of payment, and terms of pavinem
arc idcniificd and more ponicularly de.scribed lit F.XHIBIT C
which i.s incorptnatcd herein by refeiencc.
.L2 The puvmctn by the State of the Contiaci price shall be the
only iiml the complete rcinibur.'tcmcni to the Contractor lor all
expenses, of whatever nntiirc incurred by the Coninictoi in the
pcrrormanec hereof, and shall be the only and the complcic

eompen.sation to the C-'oniracior for (he Scrvicc.s. The Slate shall
have no liability lo Uic Contractor othei" thati the coritrjci price.
5.3 Tltc State re.servcs Ihc right to offset front any amounts
otherwise payable lo the Contractor under this Agrcancni those
liquidated amounts rcx|uired or permitted by N.H. RSA 80'.7
through RSA 80; 7-o or any other provision of law,
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreenicni lo the
conlrury, and nolwiihsianding unexpected cireum.stanccs, in no
event sh.ill the total of all payments authorized, or uettially made
hcreunder. exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BV CONTRACTOU AVmi LAWS

AND REGHI.ATION.V EQUAL .EMPLOYMENT
OPPORIlfNITV.

6.1 In connection with the pcrformjuice of the Services, the
C'oninicloi .dial! comply with all applicable siaiuies. law.s.
rcgulaiion.s, and irrders of federal, stale, county or municipal
uuilioritics which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Coitlnieiur. including, bui not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment oppcviunily laws. In addition, ii thi.s Agreement is
funiletl in any [wrt by monies ofihe Hnited Slatc.s. the Contractor
sitiill comply with all federal c.xcculivc orders, rules, regulations
and .siaiuies, and with any rules, regulations nhd guidelines us Ihc
Stale u( the United Stales issue to implement these rcguiation.s.
The Contnicttw shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the lerm of this Agreement, the Conirnetor shall not
disciimtnaic against employees or upplieuitts for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age. se.x. handtcap. sexual
orientation, cv riational origin and will lake unirmntive action lo
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The C'onlracior agrees lo permit Ihc Stale or United States
accc.ss to any of Ihc Contractor's l>ooks. records and accounts for
lite purpo.sc of ascertaining compliance with idliule.'i, regulations
and oider.s, and the covenants, terms and eondiiii^ns of this

Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 Tltc Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
iiece.ssarj' to perform the Services, 'llie Cmniracior warrants that
all pcr.sonne! engaged in the Services shall he qualified to
perform rhc Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless olhcTwisc authorized in WTiling. during llic lenn of
this Agrccmcm, mid for a period of .six (6) months after the
(.ompiciion Date in blwk 1.7. the Ciciniracior shall not hire, and
shall not pciniil any siibcontracior or other pcr.son. firm or
corporation wiih whom it i.« engaged in a combined cffori to
perform the Services to hire, any person wlio is a State employee
or oflitial. wlio is materially involved in the piXKiircnicni.
adniinlsiiiiiion or performance of ihl.s Agrccmenl. This
provision shall survive icmiiniition of thi.s Agrccmcm.
7.3 The Giniracliiig OHiccr .specified in block 1.9. or his or hci
.succc.s.uif. shall Ik the State'.s rcpre.scniailvc. In the event of any
dispute conccniing the inlerpfctation of tlti.x Agreement, the
Conifacliiiii OHiecr's decision shall be final foi the Slate.

Page 2 of 4
Contractor Initials Cr _

nnic_u/.5i^.
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8. KVKiNTOF DKrAULT/KKMKDItS.

8.1 Anyone or nintc ol'llie rollowing acis or omissiwjs ol'ihe
C'onlrnclor.shall consiilulcnti cvcni ordct'oult hcrcuadcr ("Bvcni

orDcfuuir'):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily (»t on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hCTCundcr, aml or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other co\x*itani. term or conditivm of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the wciirrCTrcc of nny livenl of DclhuU. the Slate may
laVe anyone, or more, or all, of the following aciitvis:
8.2.1 give the C'oolroclora written notice specifying the Rvcni t>i'
Defuuil und requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
u greater or lesser spccil'icntion oftime. thirty t .ft)) days from the
date of the notice; and if lire Bvcni of l>cfauli is not timely cored,
tcnninatc this AgrccmcnI. cfTcctivc twr» (2) days aficr giving the
Coniructor iroiicc of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor n wrincn noiicc spccif>inp ilic Kveni of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the conlrael price
which would othcrwi.sc accnie to the Contruciot during the
period from the date of such notice until such linrc as the State
determines that the Conlrneior hn.s cured the l-vcnt of Default

shall never be paid to the Cauracior:
8.2.3 give tlic Contractor a wrilten notice spccifyiitg the nvctu of
Default und set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the Stale suftcrs by reason of
any F.vcnt of Default; and/'or
8.2.4 give the Conlraftdrn wriucn notice .spccilying the I:vent of
Default, treat the Agreement a.s breached, tcnniiwie the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law nt in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hctcofallci
any Kveni of Default shall be deemed u waiver of its rights with
regard to that Kvcni of IX-fauii. or any .<nbseque«l Gvem of
Dcfiiuli. No express failure to enforce any Kvcnt ofDciatilt shnll
Ik deemed a waiver of the right of the Stale lo enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Kvcni of
Deliiuh on die part of the Contraeior.

9. TKHM {NATION.

9.1 Notwiili.standing paraginph 8, the State may. at ii.s sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for nny rea.sou, in whole ui
In pan. by thirty (.10) days wTitten mnicc to the Conlrneior liiat
the Slate is exercising its uiUion to laminate the Agri.'cment.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of ilti.s Agreement for
nny reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Conmicior shall, at tlie State's discretion, delivci lu the
Contracting Oflleer. not Inter than fiflecn {15) days uticr the dale
of Icimlnalion. a repoil CTefmininion Report") dc.scribing in
detail nil Services performed, and the eoniraci price earned, to
anil including the date nriainiiiatioji. The form, subject ntiitler.
content, and number of copies of the Tenninaiion Rcj>ori shall
be iticntieal to those of any Final Report de.scribed in the attached
l-XIIIBIT H. in addition, ni the State's diseiciim. the Contractor
shall, within l.S daj-s' of noiicc of early Icnninalion, develop and

suhinit to ilie Stale a Tran.siiion Plan for .services unda the

Agreement.

,10. D.VlA/ACCK.S.S'CONKinKvVHAI.rf\7

PKh'.SKRNA'nON.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "dam" shall mean all
information und things devehijicd or obtained during the
performance of. oi acquired oi developed by rca.soti of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports,
files, tormulae. survcjN. map.s. chart.s. sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reprixluctions. drawings, analyses, graphic
represeniaiions, computer programs, ctnnpuler printouts, notes,
letters, tiieniotunda. pa|icts. nnUdtKumcnls, all whether
llnishcd or nnlinished.

J0,2 All data and any propeiiy which has been received from
the Stale or purchased with funds provided Cor that piir|K»sc
under this Agreement, .shall be the propeiiy of the State, and
shall be returned to the State ujion demand or upon icnnination
of this Agrecniail for ony rcn.son.
10,3 Conndcntialily ofdaia shall Ik governed by N.M. RS,^
chapter 91-A or other csi.sling law. Disclosure of data requires
prior wTiticn approval ol'llic State.

11. COM RACrUK'.S KKI.AI ION TO TIIK .STATK. In the

performance of lliis Agreement the CoiUractor i.s in all respects
nu indcpaidcni eontractoi. mid is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Cuniraetur nor any of its
oftlccrs. employees, agents oi incmlKis shall have authority to
biml the Stale or receive any benefits, workcis' comjKnsalion oi
other cniolnmenis pawidcd by the Stale to iis cmplojee.s.

12. ASSIC;NiMK.NT/nKI,KGATK)N7.SlJBC()NTUACT.S.

12.1 The Contractor shall not a.ssign, or othcrwn.sc transfer any
inicrc.u in ihi.s Agreement wiihoni the prior written notice, whicli
.shall be provided lo the State ut least fiflecn (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a wTiiten consent ofthe-Staie. Tor puiposc.s
of this paragraph, n Clhangc of Control .shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a iransjction or .scric.s of related Irun.suciions in
which a iliird luny. logcihci with it.s afllliate.s, bcconic.s the
diicci Of indirect owner of fifly percent (.if)')#) or more of the
voting sltares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of ilie assets of ilic C'ontracioi'.

12.2 None of the Services shall be .subcuniractod by the
Coniraclor without prior written notice iind consent of the Slate.
Tlie State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
Bgrcemcnis and shall nni Ix* bound by any provisions contnincd
ill a .subcomraci oi an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party,

13. INDKMNII-'ICATION. Unless Otherwise cxempicti bylaw,
the Contractor .«:hall indemnify and hold harmless the Stale, its
oftlccrs and employees, from und agiiin.sl any and all claims,
liiibilities and costs for any pcr.sonal injury or property dainagc.s.
patent or cop>Tighi infringemait, or other claims asserted against
the Stale, its ofnecr.s or employees, which arise out of (or which
mav be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omi.ssion of the

Page .3 of 4
Conlrneior Initials

Dale
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Conu-aclor, or .«iut>conlraclur$. including bui not liiniiud to (he
iiegligciu-e, reckless or inlcniionyl coriducl. Tlic Slutc shall noi
be liable for any cosis incurred by the (."(Silracior arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding (hcJorcgoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed lu constitute a u-nivcr ol'thv sovereign
immunity of the State, whieh immunity is hereby reserved to the
Stale. This covenant in paragraph i.l shall survive the
ictuxUuiUuu oCthis A-i^rccxucui.

n.insiiikanct:.

K.I The Contractor shall, at ii.\ .wlc c.Kpensc, obtain and
continuously mnitiiain in 'force, and shall require any
sobcuntraclor or ttssigocc t(» ohiuin and itiu'mtain in force, the
following insumnce:
14.1.1 commcrcia/ general linhiliiy insurance against alt clainis
of bodily injury, death x)r properly damage, in amounts of not
less than SI.OOO.OOO j.kt occurrx-ncc and $2.0(10,WK) uggregiiic
or CXCC.S.S: and

14.1.2 special cause olToss coverage form covering nil property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an uiiKnini nut lcs.s titan
80% of the xx'holc replacement value of (he pr(>|Kriy.
14.2 lite policies dcsciibcd in sut)()nrograph 14.1 herein shall be
tMi ptdicy forms and ciulwscimmls approwd for u.sc in the Siaic
of New Hatnp.shirc by the N.U, Dcpatimcnl of In.siirancc. and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New I lampsltire.
14.3 'lite Contractor shall fiirni.di to the Contracting OlVicct
identified in bIiK.-k 1.9. or his or her siiccc.s.«or. a txTtificn(c(sj of
insurance for all in.siirancc required under thi.'. Agreement.
Contractor sltall also fumijdi to the Contracting Ollicer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her siicccs.sor. ccriificaitC"^) of insurance
for all rcncwaHs) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prioi to tlic cxpiruliun date of eadt
insurance policy. The ceriificatc(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall iKfllltiChcd and are Incorpornied hciein by
rcTcJcncc.

15. WORKKRS' CO.MPENSA'i rON.

15.1 Lly signing this agreement, the Coniracioi agrees, ccfiilies-
and wui ianl.'i that the Contractor is in cxnnpliancc with or exempt
from, llic rcqiiircmcni;< of N.H. RSA chapter 281-.A ("U'liikers'
Cdiiifn'iisaiion").
15.2 To the c.xiem the Conljaetoi is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA cljapifti" 28UA, Conttactor shall maintain, and
require any subconlraclor or assignee to scairc and nuiinluin.
payment of Workers' Conipeo.sation in coimeolion with

activities which (he )>crson proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agrccmcnl- The Continclor slial! furnish the Contracting ORicci
identified in block 1.9. or lii.xor her .succc.«.sor. proof of Workers'
CoiniKn.sniion in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable rcnc\\-jl(sj thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated hci'cin by reference. The
shall not Ire responsible for pa)ineni of any Workers"
Compensation premium.'! or for any other claim or iK-nciii ("or
Coniractoi. or any subcontracti>r or employee of Contractor,
which mighl ari.sc under applicable State of New llamp.sliiie
Workers" Compcnsnlion laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agrccmcnl.

I ft. NOTICE. Any notice by a pai ty hereto to the otliet p.nly
.chilli be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the lime
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
I'iisi Office addrcs.sed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4. herein.

17, AMF-NOMENTMUU AgjCQ'.i.\ci.u x\uy be axxuavdcd. waived
or discharged only b\ an tinxiiuTnenl in writing .signed hy the
parties hereto and only allcr approval of such amcnclmeni.
waiver or di.schnrgc by the (lovcrnoi nod E.xccuiivc (\>uncil nf
the .Stale ofNew Hampshire unless no stich approval i.s required
utidcr the circuinsiunccs puisiiaiil to Suite law, rule oi |H>licy.

IR. CHOlCi; OF 1,A\V AND rORiHVl. 'Hiis Agrccmcnl shall
be governed, interpreted and con.-ilrucd in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and {.s binding upon and
inures to the K'riclit of the parties and their respective succc.s.sor.s
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is ilie wvrding
chosen by tlte parlies to c.xpress their muiiral Intent, and no imlc
ofcun.vtiuction .shall U- applied agairuM or in favor of pny party.
Any Hciions arising xnii of this Agreement shall be brought and
mainiatncd in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurijidiclion thereof.

19. CONri.lCTIiNC TERiMS. In the event of n connici

bciwccfi the terms of iliis F-37 form (tis modiricd in EXinHlT
A) and.'or attachments and amcndincnl thereof, the Icniis of the
['•37 (as modified in E.XIIIBI"!" A) shall control.

20. TilIRO PARTIES. "Htc parties IutcIo do iu>t intend to
iK-nefii any third parties and this Agreement shall not l>c
construed to confer any such hcnefil.

21. HEADINGS, 'Ihe headings thiouphoui the Agieemcni we
for reference puri>o.scs only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, inodify, amplify or aid in the
inicrprciation. conslroriion or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement,

22. .SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Addiiionnl or modifying
provi.sions set foith in the attached BXHIHIT A arc incoqu»ratcd
hciein by reference.

23. SfJN'EB^ARII.ITV. lu the event any oft he provision.s o["ilii.s
.Agreement arc held by a court of com|)cient jurisdiction to be
contrary to any slate or fcJcial law. ihc remuining provisions of
ihi.s .Agreement will remain in r"ull force and cITcct.

24. ENTIRE A(»RF.EiMF,NT. This Agreement. v\4iich may l>c
c.xccutcd ill u number of coimtcrpurt.s. cncli of which shall he
deemed an oiiginal. coivsiiiute.s Ihc cnitic ngrccmcni and
understanding lictwccn the parlies, and supcr.scdcs all prior
agieemcni.s* and understandings with rcspeci to the subject matter
hncof.

Page 4 nr4
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EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Dale/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective on July 1,
2020 ("Effective Date").

1.2. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parlies may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) additional year(s)
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12. Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subconlractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed If the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Cohlraclor sfiall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the Stale with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the Stale of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

SS-2021-OBH-01-GUARO-02 Exhibit A - Kevislons to SiancJwcl Conirflct Provisions Conlroctor Initials
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EXHIBIT B

m
2St

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1.Scope of Work Applicable to all Guardianship Services

1.1.1. For Ihe purposes of this agreement, all references to days shall mean
calendar days.

1.1.2. For the purposes of this agreement, ward shall mean the individual for
whom guardianship of the individual and/or ©slate is appointed by the
Circuit Court - Probate Division

1.1.3. The Contractor shall provide public guardianship and protection
services to safeguard the liberty and well-being of individuals who,
becaiJse of functional limitations, have suffered, are suffering, or are
likely to suffer substantial harm due to an inability to;

1.1.3.1. Provide personal needs for food, clothing, shelter, health care
or safety; or

1.1.3.2. Manage their property or financial affairs.

1.1.4. The Contractor shall provide public guardianship and protection
services to persons at risk of harm to themselves, their estates or both
the person and estate, for whom the State of New Hampshire has a
responsibility to safeguard pursuant to New Hampshire (NH) Revised
Statutes Annotated (RSA) 135-C: 60, Guardianship; NH RSA 161-F:
52, Guardianship; and RSA 171-A: 10. Residential Services: Legal
Counsel and Guardianship.

1.1.5. The Contractor shall provide public guardianship services to persons
in Paragraph 1.1.4, statewide, in accordance with NH RSA 464-A.
Guardians and Conservators and NH RSA 547-B, Public Guardianship
and Protection Program, which include appointments as guardian, co-
guardian, conservator, or temporary guardian of the person and/or
estate of the individual.

1.1.6. The Contractor will provide protection services to individuals • in
Paragraph 1.1.4. statewide, that include actions necessary to carry out
the duties as a duly designated representative or protective payee;
client representative; attorney-in-fact; or other similar agent, as
prescribed by applicable law, rule, or agreement.

1.1.7. The Contractor shall , provide services to individuals only upon
receiving prior approval from the Department of Health and Human
Services. Office of Client and Legal Services.

1.1.8. The Contractor shall refer individuals to the Disability Rights Center -
NH, the New Hampshire Legal Assistance or other attorney when
referrals from the Department's Office of Client and Legal Services for

Tri-Counly Conimunjty Action Prpgrarn, Inc. Coi^traclor Initials
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5K

guardianship and prolecUon services may be inappropriate, in order
that an administrative appeal, or other appropriate legal action, can be
taken on behalf of the individual.

1.1.9. The Contractor shall direct any referrals for Individuals made to the
Contractor for guardianship and protection services to the
Department's Office of Client and Legal Services when referrals are
received from agencies that include, but are not limited to:

1.1.9.1. The Glencliff Home for the Elderly;

1.1.9.2. New Hampshire Hospital;

1.1.9.3. Community agencies in the mental health system;

1.1.9.4. Agencies in the developmental services system; and

1.1.9.5. Agencies in the adult and elderly system.

1.1.10. The Contractor shall not be reimbursed by the Department for services
in the event the Contractor provides guardianship and protection
services to individuals who are not screened and approved by the
Department's Office of Client and Legal Services, unless the
Contractor;

1.1.10.1. Provides documentation satisfactory to the Department that
circumstances not within the control of the Contractor

occurred and the Contractor made reasonable efforts to
decline the guardianship appointments.

1.1.10.2. Includes documentation of efforts made to decline
guardianship appointments with its monthly invoices.

1.1.10.3. The Stale has responsibility to safeguard the person
pursuant to RSA 135-C: 60, RSA 171-A: 10, II, and RSA
161-F; 52.

1.1.11. The Contractor shall provide guardianship and protection services to
individuals, in accordance with the "Standards of Practice" and "A
Model Code of Ethics for Guardians" developed by the National
Guardianship Association.

1.1.11.1. Notwithstanding the ethics and standards for guardians
cited in Paragraph 1.1.11, for monthly visits, the Contractor
shall make quarterly face-to-face visits with the ward or
more frequent visits as required in individual
circumstances, In accordance with Contractor's accepted
practice.

1.1.11.2. The Contractor shall attempt to have a video conference,
or telephone contact If technology for a video conference is

Tfi-County Communily Aclion Pfngtatn. Inc. Conlraclof InlUals «
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not available, with the ward in the instance the ward is out

of the State of New Hampshire for an extended period of
lime and it would not be feasible for the Contractor to see

the ward face to face on the basis outline in Subparagraph
1.1.11.1 above.

1,1.11.3. The Contractor may suspend face-to-face visits as required
in Subparagraph 1.1.11.1 until an alternative plan can be
developed that maintains personal safely of all parties if the
ward exhibits unsafe behavior or Is aggressive to the point
of physical harm to the Contractor.

1.1.12. In any action brought in Circuit Court-Probate Division to limit or
othenvise reduce the scope of a guardianship over an individual
served, the State shall appear with the Contractor where the State
agrees thai it is necessary to present the State's position on the action
proposed.

1.1.13. The Contractor agrees shall not provide individuals with direct
services, which include:

1.1.13.1. Psychotherapy:

1.1.13.2. Case management;

1.1.13.3. Transportation;

1.1.13.4." Financial aid; or

1.1.13.5. Other social services available through governmental or
nonprofit agencies.

1.1.14. The Contractor has responsibilities as an independent decision-maker
•acting lin a fiduciary capacity with respect to individuals served and the
decisions Id be made on behalf of such individuals shall not be directed
or influencod by Ihe Stale.

1.1.15. The Contractor may provide guardianship and protection services for
individuals other than those who are referred for services pursuant to
this Agreernent. ensuring:

1.1.15.1. Pursuant to RSA 547-B: 7. no funds provided under this
Agreement are expended for those Individuals.

1.1.15.2. Sufficient records, which are subject to the Department's
examination, are included and clearly document that the
funds received under this Agreement are expended in
accordance with this Agreement.

1.1.16. The Contractor shall accept and investigate complaints from the
Department regarding services performed. Including the

Tri-Counly Community Action Progroni. Inc. Contractor Initials
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ar

circumstances pertaining to the complaint, and ensure a written
response containing the results of the investigation is submitted to the
Department no later than thirty (30) days from the date the complaint
is received by the Contractor.

1.1.17. The Contractor shall allow wards to participate in consumer
satisfaction surveys unless the Contractor provides written reasons to
the Department that state why a particular ward should not be allowed
to participate.

1.1.18. The Contractor agrees that if the performance of services involves the
collection, transmission, storage, or disposition of data on behalf of the
Department including substance use disorder (SUD) data created by
a Part 2 provider, the Contractor shall maintain the data subject to the
requirements stated in 45 CFR Part 2.

1.2. Guardianship Services

1.2.1. The listing and description of services to be provided to wards are not
intended to restate existing rules and regulations currently in place, but
rather to clarify the relationship of the Contractor with respect to its
wards who need and receive services in the developmental services;
mental health services; or elderly and adult service systems.

1.2.2. The Contractor agrees that all of the responsibilities referenced in
Subsection 1.2 are contingent upon the actual authority granted in
each individual court order specifying the extent and scope of
guardianship for each individual ward.

1.2.3. The Contractor shall make decisions regarding the residential and day
placement of each ward, utilizing:

1.2.3.1. The standards of least restrictive environment; and

1.2.3.2. What is in the best interests of the individual ward.

1.2.4. The Contractor shall ensure all legally necessary steps are taken to
enable the individual ward to receive comprehensive:

1.2.4.1. Evaluations;

1.2.4.2. Treatment; and

1.2.4.3. Services.

1.2.5. The Contractor shall advocate for and request all necessary and
appropriate services to which the ward Is entitled, in accordance with:

1.2.5.'1. The ward's service and/or treatment plan;

1.2.5.2. the ward's expressed preferences or best interests
consistent with the Contractor's Code of Ethics and national

Guardianship Association Standards of Practice; and^

Tri-Counly CommufiUy Action Progra-n, Inc. Contraclof Inilials
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1.2.5.3. Established Department standards and State law.

1.2.6. The Contractor shall be available to give or withhold consent to
proposed care, when legally necessary, which Includes, but is not
limited to;

1.2.6.1. Medical Care;

1.2.6.2. Professional care;

1.2.6.3. Legal counsel:

1.2.6.4. Counseling;

1.2.6.5. Behavioral health services;

1.2.6.6. Changes In Individual service and/or treatment plans; and

1.2.6.7. Other clinically or legally significant treatment plans or
services.

1.2.7. The Contractor shall ensure the ward's civil rights are protected within
the context of the decision-making on behalf of the ward, whi|e
refraining from unwarranted Intrusion into the life of the ward.

1.2.8. The Contractor shall be available to make all decisions, as required by
RSA 464-A:26. and work collaboralively with the Department relative
to any of the ward's debts owed to the State of New Hampshire, if the
Contractor is guardian of the ward's estate.

i .2.9. Tho Contractor shall remain current of the facts or circumslancos that
may Impact the decisions to perform the functions specified In
Subsection 1,2.

1.2.10. The Contractor shall maintain appropriate contact with each ward to
ensure services reflect .the personal preferences, values, and desires
of the ward to the fullest extent possible in order to make informed
decisions on behalf of the ward.

1.2.11. The Contractor stjall ol)lain all available information regarding the ward
or the ward's situation In order to be fully aware of all risks and benefits

of any proposed course of action, as well as any alternatives that may
exist when making decisions on behalf of the ward. The Contractor,
in addition to having required personal contact with the ward, may:

1.2.11.1. Contact other important and significant people in the ward's
life.

1.2.11.2. Interact with the ward's case manager.

1.2.11.3. Inleracl others who share responsibility for meeting the
needs of the ward.

1.3. Guardianship and Protection Services

Tfi-Counly Communily Aclion Prograni. Inc. Conlraclor Initialslitials

SS-2021-D0H-01-GUARD-02 Page 5 of 9 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 88BBC054-D55C-475F-A5C4-D11282B7D3E7

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

EXHIBIT B

1.3.1. The CofUraclur shall accepl all protection services cases referred by
the Department's Office of Client and Legal Services.

1.3.2. The Department shall make every attempt to obtain a Release of
Information from the proposed client for the Contractor except where
prohibited from doing so by law.

1.3.3. The Contractor shall be involved in the screening process tor
protection cases, as appropriate, or refer the individual to the Disability
Rights Center - NH. New Hampshire Legal Assistance or other

altorney in order thai an administrative appeal or other appropriate
legal aclion can be taken on behalf of the client,

1.3.4. For persons referred to Contractor by the Dopartmenl's Office of Client
and l.rigal Services pursuanl to NH RSA 136-C: 00 and NH RSA 171-
A: 10, II, the Contractor shall serve the current 280 wards receiving
guardianship services, as well as any now persons referred for
services, in accordanrx wilh Paragraph 1.1.8,, above, for a total of up

to 280 cases during the contract period.

1.3.5. The Conlr'actor .shall receive letters of ap|)roval for each new case
nsfjioned (o the Contractor by the Department's Office of Client and

Legal Services.

1.4. Technical Assistance

1.4.1, Tho Contractor may provide technical assistance to private guardians
(,v training to staff that provide direct .services to wards who arc clicrils
of (he IDepaflmenI, vvliich includes:

1.4.1.1. Area agency staff; and

•  1.4,1.2. Mental health services agency staff:

1.5. Staffing

1.5.1. The Contractor ensuie staff providing guardianship services
successfully compk-Uo a minimum of 20 hours of orientation tr'aining.

1.5.2. Tlro Contractor shall ensure stalf providing guardian.ship services
successfully complete u minimum of 10 hours of annunl conlinuing
education, annually.

2. Exhibits Incorporntofj

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Hoallh Information in

compliance wilh the Standards lor l-kivacy of Individunlly Idenlifiable Hcallh
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and In accordance
with (he rittaclierl Exhibit I, Idusiness Associate Agreement, which has l;ieeii
executed by the parties.

iri-Counly Cotnniunily Act'on f'locjt.'uii, liio. Conri.intoi Itntial';
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2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confiriontial data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of E.xhibit K. DHHS Infornnalion Security
Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibils D through K. which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall provide quarterly repods of all written complaints filed
against the Conlractor, which includes:

3.1.1. A copy of the written complaint;

3.1.2. Steps taken to resolve the complaint;

3.1.3. The date that the complaint was resolved; and

3.1.4. Slep.s to t)e taken in the following quarlr:r to mitigate similar complaints
from being filed in the future.

3.2. The Conliactor shall provide an annual reporl. no later than August 1st that
identifies names of guardians pioviding services with the number of continuing
oducation liours obtained over Iho previous 12 moiUh. ensuring supporling
documentation is available for Doparlnienl review upon request.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Conlractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with llie Department to
enhance contr-ncl management, irnprove results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

5. Additioiiai Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees thai, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the Slate has the riglit to modify Service priorities
and expenditure loquinoiients under liiis Agreement so as to achieve
compliance Iherevdth.

5.2. Culturaliy and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)

13.2.1. 't he Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of
the language assistance services they will provide to individuals with
lin^ited English proficiency and/or hearing impnirmont to ensure
meaningful access to Iheii programs nnd/or services within ton (10)
days of the conlracl effeclive date.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from Ihe performance of (tjio

"I fi-Counly CointiUJiiily AvliC'ii Piograrn. Inc.. Conuac^tor tnili:3lr.
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seivices of the Contract shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (roporl, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of New Hnmpshtre, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the tjnited Slates DeparlmenI of Heallh and Human
Services."

5.3.2. All rnalerials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution
or use.

I

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and nil
original matericils prodLiced, including, hut not limilecl to;

5.3.3.1. Brochiires;

5.3.3.2. Resource cliroctoriGs;

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelinos;

5,3.3.'1. Posters; and

5.3.3.5. Reports.

G.T.'I. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materiaisS produced under the
contract wKhoul prior written approval from the Uepartrnenl.

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Cnvvf; nncl Regulations

5.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contraclor
shall comply with all laws, orders and rcgulalions of focleral, .stale,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public

Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shalHmpose an ordcror duty
upon the contractor vvitli respect lo the operntion of the facility or the
provision of the services at such facility. If any goveinrnontal liconso
or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facilily or the
performance of the said services, the (^onlraclor will procure said
license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
condiliony of eacli such license or perniil. In connection with Ihe
foregoing requirements, the Contractor lioreby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Contract UiC facilities shall comply with all

rulos, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the
Fire Marshal and Ihe local fire proloction agency, and shall b6; in
conformance will) local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
r'egulations.

0. Records

5.1.The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not liinilod to:

Tri-Co'.inly Coiiuiainiry Ac'iion Pi'oyrciMi. !nj;. liiill.'il"
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6.1.1. Books, records. do{:ufnenls and oilier electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecliny all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collecled by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such a.s purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,

valuations of in-kind coriiribulions. labor time cards, payrolks. and other
records requostcd or required by the Department.

6.1.3. Statislical. enroilrnent, ntlendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices suhmilled to the Department to oblain payment for such
services.

6.1.4. Medical records on each patlGnl/redpicnt of services.

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereundcr. the
Department, Ihe United States fJepartmcnt of i-lealth and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have iiccess to all reports and
records maintained pursuanl to the Contract for purposes of audit, oxaminalion,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by (he Department of (he maximum
numl.ier of ufiits provided for in the Contract and upoit payment ol Ihe price

.  limitation herounder, the Ccntracl and all the obligations of the parties hereundor
(except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after
the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the Contract)
shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure
Report the Department sliall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs horeunder (he Departmen! siial! relairi the right, at its discretion, to deducl
the amount of .suet) expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the
Contractor.

ConUciCtor In-licsir, "1 fi-Co;inl>- (.:<>iniiiiinily Action t 'foaiTun, tiic. Co:

SS-20?.1-nBH-01-GUAKU.0^! Pago 9 of 0 0.1:1: ..Oj/i/3!^.
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EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This Agreenienl is funded by 100 % General Funds.

2. For liie purposes of this Agreement;

2.1. The Department has idonlified the Contractor as a Contractor, in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. el seq.

2.2. The Deparimcnl has Identified this Conlracl as NON-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.87.

3. The Stale shall pay the Contractor a per diem, per case rate tor services
provided in tultiiiment of this Agreement, as foltows:

3.1. The per diem reimbursement rate for the provision of guardianship over the
person services or guardianship over the estate services, as approved by
the Office of Client and Legal Services for all Bureau of Mental Health

Services or Bureau of Developmonta! Services ciiants shall be S6.81 per
ward, per day. foi up to 280 clieitts and as follows:.

3.1.1. The Depaitmonl will reimbuise the Conlracloral $6,01 porward
per day when ttio Conlcactor provides guardianship over the
peisou.

3.2. Tlie hourly reimbknsornent rate for the provision of tc-jchnicol assistance
shall he $60.00. not to excooci vhc nmounl of S2.000.

3.3. The hourly leimbursomenl rate for the provision of training shall be
$60.00, tuii to exceed the amount of $1,600.

4. "I he Contractor shall seek reimbursement from other payei sources wlien

providing protection services as described in Paragraph 1.1,15 of Exhibit B,
Scope of Services. The Department v,^i!l not reimburse for services under this
Agreement for prelection services described in Paragraph 1.1.15 of Exhibit B.
Scope of Services.

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a forin satisfactoiy to the Stale by the
tifteenth (151h) working day of tlie follovviiKj month, which idenlilies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

6. Tlie Contractor shall ensure each invoice is completed, dated and returned to
die Department in order to initiate paynieni.

7. In lieu of hard co[)ies. nil invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to or invoices may he mailed to;

Tanja Godlfrodsun
Department of t ieallh and Human Services

T ri-Cou'iiy CornnMinity Action P'ocjraiii, Inn. hx!i;h t C

SS-2021-DBH OVGUAKD-02 P-ntfO » U n.T.«
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105 Pleasanl Street

Concord. NH 03301

8. The Stale shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if
sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions
Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

9. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion dale specified in Form P-37. General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

10. The Contractor must provide the services In Exhibit B. Scope of Services, in
compUa?\ce with requiremervts,

11. The Contractor agrees that funding under (his Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

12. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or If the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

13. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

14. Audits

14.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist:

14.1.1. Condition A - The Conlraclor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

14.1.2. Condition B - The Conlraclor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, Hl-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

14.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

Aifl
Tri-Couniy Community Action Program. Inc. ExbiW C Conuscior lr\ltiats >3 * -
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cn

14.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

14.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

14.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Department's
risk assessment determination Indicates the Contractor is high-risk;

14.5. In addition to. and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

Tri-CountyCoinmunity Action Pfogram. Inc. txJi'iljitC ConuaclorInHials ^

GS-2D21-DBH-0I-GUARD-02 Page 3 of 3 Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

Tho Vendor idenlified in Seclicn 1.3 of tho General frovisions agrees to comply wiili the provisioris of
Sections 5151-G160 of tho Drug-Froo Workplace Act of 1988 (P\ib. L. 100-690. Tillo V. Subtitle D. 41
tJ.S.C. 701 nf snq i, and lunher agrons to have the Coniractof's ropre.sontativc:, as idofilified in Sections
1.11 and 1.1? of the Gcnoral Provisions c>:eculo the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by ihe regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of ihe Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1985 (Pub. L. 100 690, ruic V. Sut)litlc D: 41 U.S.C. 701 el scq,). The January 31.
1989 regulntinns were amended and published as Part II of Iho May 25, 1990 Federal Rscjistor (pages
21681-21691). ar^d require certification by grantees (and (jy inference, suh-grantecs and sub-
contraciors), prior to award, tftal they will maintain n drug-free workplace. SGcllon 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides (hat a grantee (and by infcrcnc-o. sub-granlccs and sub-contractors) that is a Stale
may elect to make one certification tn l!io DGpailrnenl in each lodera! fiscal year irr lieu of cerlificatos for
each grant during the federal fiscal your covered by Ihe cortificntion. The corlilicalo se! oiil htdow is a
malftiial lepfBsenlation of fad upon whicli reliance is placed when the agrjncy awards Ihe grnnt. False
cotlilicalion or violatior> of ihe certification shall be grounds for suspension ol payments, susiionsion oi
tcimination of grants, or government wide suspension oi debarmenl. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Cornrnissionor

NH DepnitmenI of l-iealih and flumart Services
129 Pleasant Strcol,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. TTie gfcuileo cei lilies tfial it voTI ot will continue to prr>vide a n'lug-freo workplace by:
.  1.1. Publishing a slatomcnl notifying omgloycos that Ihe uril,awful mnnufadure. distiibuliori,

dispensing, possession or use of a conlroiied substance is prohibited in tho grantoo's
workplace and specifying the aclions Ihai will ho taken .'.igaiusi employoe:-: far violation ol sucli
profiibiliun;

1.2. Fstahlishiny an ongoing dniy-frHO av.-areness [irograin to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in tho workplaco;
1.2 2. The grantco's policy of mainUiining a dnig-fiee wrukplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug coiinS'-ding. roliabililation. and employof> assifnaoce prugfanis; and
1.2.4. The fionallics thai may iir; imposed upoii empfoyees for diug abuse violations

occur ring in tt>e v/orkpinco;

1.3. Making it u requiiomoni that oacli omp'r.iyoc to bo ongnged in the pc-jfoimanco of tho gran! be
given a copy of tho slcUemcnl required by poragraph (o):

1.4. Noiifying the employee in llie stalc-menl lequired by paragraph (?i) that, as a cundiiion of
omployriieiii under the grant, tho employoe will
1.4.1. Al'idc liy the lerms of tfif! statr.-rrionl; and
1 .4.2, Notify the employer In writing of his or ficr conviction for a violation ol a criminal drug

slatutc occurring in tlio workplace nn later than five Cfilendat days aflcr sr^ich
conviction;

1.5. Notifying (he agency in writing, wiiliin ton calendar days after receiving notice uridcr
subparagraph 1,4.2 from on employoe or otficiv/iso receiving nclual notice of such cc»:"ivjction.
Emplrjyors of convicted employncs must provide notice, includinfj position tUlo. to every grant
officei' on whoso grant activity Iho r.unvirted oinployoR was working, unless liie Fudervil agoncy

U •• (JcilrNciiliO'i fcprircJniti Uriirj t n:;} Vonour jiHticHs
Vi'rut.fil.'KC hcqniK'i'writS

r-VUHH.* iK-rn • P;i<jfe1cl? PiiU;
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has designated a ceolral point for the receipt of such noiiccs Notiro shail include the
idoniification numbcr(s) of eacli nffectod granl:

I.G. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of recoiving noiico unc'or
subpnragraph 1.4.2, wilh respoct to any omi.-'loyee who Is ;;o convicted
1.0.1. Taking appropriate persannel action against such an employee, up to and including

terinlnalion. consistent wilh Iho requitonienl.s <j! the RGhCibililaiion Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.0.2. Requiring sucti ernpioyoo to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program upproved fot such purposes by a Fcdcfal, Stale, or loccii health,
law enforcernertl. or oihet appiopriato agoncv;

1.7. Making a good faith offoH to conlitiuc; to mainlain a diuy-'rof; \vuik|i)ace llirough
'mplomentation of paragraphs 1.1. 1.2. 1.3. 1.4, 1.5. and 1.6.

2. rtio grnnloc niay insert in (ho space luovidcd below the sile(s) for the porlormance of work done in
conrteclion v/ilh the specific granl.

Place of Perfortnnnco (sireet address, city, cour.ty. stale, p.ip code) {list each location}

Check P if itjcre arc workplaces on file ll'itd art; not identified here.

Vendor Namc-ilVCoi^tV^^ AcVifc/t ?r0Ct > t

nale V^o^'A\l*f(J

D ~ Cvdi'Kulif.'i {u(;;i;rl iiy LVuij Vcnjy lY".i.il.5
VVo-'.:}.l;>oc- ftoqiiiieiiniiils i- /-, / Ci.f''

ci<0H-vr;Wi,5 IViti: {ol>
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as idenlified In Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, thai;

1. No Federal approprialed funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or altempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection wilti the awarding of any Federal contract, conlinuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal approprialed funds have boon paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or eri employee of a Member of Congress in connection vrith this
Federal contract, grant, loar'r, or cooperativo agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall corn[)!ete and submit Standard Form ILL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, In accordance with its instructions, attached and Idenlified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undcrsigried shall require that the language of this certification be Included In the award
document for sub-awards at.all tiers (including subconttacts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance v/as placed when this transaction
was rnade or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person v./ho fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less ihan $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name;

Date AC."fe.c>A\\Na

Title;

F.xWbil E - Cwtilicalion Regarding 1 obbying Vendor Initials

Page 1 of 1 Date
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CERTlFICATtON REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor idsiilified in Sedion i .3 of the Genoral Provisions acirees to cotnply wi[h Iho provisiotis of
Excculive Office of the President, Gxocutivu Order 125-19 and -15 CFR Pa:l 76 rerjatdincj OobarinGnt,
SusptMision, and Other Resjxmsibilit-y Matters, and furtbor agrees to have thr) Contr«clar's
reprcsontotivo. ns identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of liie General Provisioirs exucLito the following
CerlificHlion:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By sigtiing and subntitling lliis p-roposoi (corilrar.l), itir: prospoctive pnrnaiy parlidpant is providing the
corllficalion sot out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide tlio ccrtiiicoiion roqijiied below will not necessarily result irt denini
of parlicipvation In this covered trons-'iclion. If i-ocossary. ttie prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide tl>e ce.rtification. The ceitificafion or oxpiannlion will be
cnnsidered in conncctloi'i witit the NH Department of Health and Human Ser^dces' (tOHFiS)
ctelerminrilion v/tietticr to enter into Hiis Iransactioii Howrjver. failure of Ihf; prospoclrvo primary
participai ii to furnish a cerlilicniion or an explanation oholi disqualify such persori from p.ariicipalion in
Itiip iransaclion.

The corliftcation in this clause is a ntatchal rcpin.soniation of fact i.i}.ioii whioli lolianre was placod
when DHHS ilelormined to nnter iiiio this IranMar.tinn If if ir. later dclcrmino'.i titat the prospoclive
primary participant knowingly rondored an euoncous coilifieHliun, in addition to otiior remedies
avai}at)lu to llio Todeihi Government, DHHS nioy torminatc ttiis transaction for cnuso or default,

•1. The piospHClive primaiy prulicipent shall provirle i.'umf;d:ato written notieo In tlu? OHMS ayency to
whom Ihis proposal {conlracl) is siibmillud if at any time Itio (uospectivc piiinary [laiiicipant learns
trial its corllficalion was oiK'neous when siihmitlcd or i-i.avS become erroncont- l;y leason of changed
c-ireurnstances.

f). '(ho terms "covered lf{insric.li:>n." "debarred." "cvispondod.' "inoligiole.' lovvm llui covered
transaction." "paiticipant.' "person." "iirimfiiy covcrejJ Irarisraclioi'i." "princlpnl.' "proposal." ond
voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have ttic meanings sot out in ttio Delinilioiis and
CovefiKio seclions of the ruic-s irntJlomcniiny (rxeculivo Order 12549; -15 Cf'R Pail 7G. See Hie
attached dcfiiiitions.

6. The proipociivo primary participant agrrms hy sutjinillmg this propos«nl (cotitracf) tivii. should the
proposed covered Iransaclion Ire entered into, i' sital! no; knov/ingiy eiitoi into niiy lower tici covfired
tiaivsaulion witli a persfrn who is (lebarrcd. suipondcd. dcciarcct inciigible. or volunt.nrily excluded
Ironi pariicipation in this covr;'tc'd liyiisaclion. unless aulhoriyed by DHHS.

7. The prospective! fi'iimary pailiciiKuil furliwr agrocs by submitting ibi.s proposal lri?il it will inciurii: the*
clciuso tilled "Certificaitoii f^cgaiding DcLiomicn!. Suspension, inekjiljilily anri Voluntary Fixclusion •
l.owcr Tier Covered Transactions.' provided liy DHHS. without modificatiori. in all lov/or tier covered
ifiuisactions rrnd in all solicitations for lower tier covered Iransaclioric,

b. A padicipant ii'i a covcrcrj transaction may rely upon <i c.c.itification of a prcf.[)oc;tivL' participant in a
lower tier covoiod Iransaclicn that it is not dcl>fir'rud. suspended, inelicjil'lo. cit involunlailiy cxcludcc"
from tlic- covered tmnsaclion, unlOvSS it knows that the r.cilificalion is erroneous. A participant may
deckle the rnclliod and fiuguoncy by which it dc-.lerrnines the eligibiliiy of its pririviipals. Each
pyiliiafi.ant may. but is not rfiquiiod to, check the NonprocurcmonI List (ol cxctude'l parlies).

y, Ncithing coritaineri in tiic foiogni.ng nimli Ijo crinslrued lu require estnblir.hmeiii (;f a system of rocordc
in order to render in good iciilh tho csriilicairon rrifjuired by lliis clause. Tho I'.nnwiedqc and ^

l\
t'.'ipbi: r - fiiiO'iiiJHii) Susfiyrviart Vtinito:'

And O'liof Rsr-pnn.'iiiiiWv H;<Uoi5: . i

Cutn '. l-'J.-i' P.-ifiO 1 01 2
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informaiion of a parlic-ipant is nol requirori lo oxc^^ed lhal wfiich is normnll)' possessed by a prudenl
person in Ihe ordinary course of business deaiinys.

10, Exccpl for iransaclioiis authorii-ncl under pnragrapli 6 of lliuso insliucdons, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transacuon vWth a person who is
suspended. dcbarrocJ, inetigiblu. or volirnlarity »,:xo[uded from parlicipalion in this transaction, in
addition lo olimr rcmadies availat)lc to llic f-'odcral gf»vcrnment. DHHS may tcrntin.ate ihis transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMAKY COVEREU TRAIMSACTlONS

11 Ttre piosper.tive piirnaty partici[)ant corliftes to iho l'»r.'Sl of its knowiodgr: and belief, that it and its
principals;

11.1. are not pieseiilly delinrrod..suspyndcd. profiosod foi'dcLiarmont. rleckired ineligible, or
voluntnriiy excluded from covered Iransaclions by any f ederal cieparlment or agency;

11.2. have not within a (hree-yoar [lotiod preceding lliis prnposal (contract) tiecn convicted of or Ivad
a civil judgment rondorod, against ihctn for commission of fraud or o criminal offense in
connection '.vilh oblairting. atiempting to olitnln, or performing a putilic (Federal, Slate or local)
Iransaction or a contract under a ptibiic transaction; violation of (-cdorai or Stale antitrust
statutes or commission of emberziemonl theft, forgery, tiril'iery, falrdfication or- destrucliun of
rncordr., making false statements, or receiving stolen properly:

11.3. arc not prnscriily indicted for olIiGrwiss criminally or civilly cliaigod t:'y a governmental cnlily
(f'ndctal. Stale or local) witii commission of any of the offenses ctiumcralcd in paragraph (l)(bi
of (his certification; and

11,'1. fuwe not witfiiii a throe-year pcri(;>d proceding tiiis applicalion/p.-opor.a! had one or more pubko
Iransacliuns (l-'erfefai, Stale or local) ternii:i.ai(;ri loi car.ise oi (lufauit,

17.. Whore the pr(;spc(:tivo primary pntlicipant is unntrli; to certify to any of ihu :;t.'ilenienis in this
cerlificalrotr. such piospoctivo pariicipnni fhail rittnch a;"r exi'ilanaliori lo this proposal (contract),

l.OWFR TIf-K (;OVfIRnfD TRANSACTIONS

13. liy signing and submiitmg lliis lower tier [)to}-.usai (conlracl), the piospcciive iovver- tier participant, ys
(iofinofl in *15 CFR Part corlifiFfs to the best ol its kriov/lcdge and belie! that it and its prittcipals'
13, i. pro nol prGsotHly doberred, suspended, proposed for debcument, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily exclurled from patlicipalion in this Iransaclinn by any federal (loparlmnni nr agoncy.
13.?, where the prospoclivo towoi tier pjiflici)JOnl is uiiablo to certify to any of the above, such

ptosfjcclive parlicipanl shall attach an explanation to tfiis proposal (ccmlract),

1'1. The prusfreclive luv/er tier parlicipunl furlfior agrees by suljmiiliny this pioposal (cuntraci) lltal i! will
iitdudc this clauso crititlod ■Ccnilication Regarding Debarmont. Suspension. Incligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - l.ov/er Tier Covered Tran.^aclions,' witriout iriodification in ail Inwoi tier covered
transact'onc and In .'-<1! solidlalions fc>r lower lioi covered tiansriCliOMS,

Vontfoi Name; fjg (

Dale Name:

i'
l.rr,'tir: I- -- r-V:?y;it{lY.n (Jt'il/.'tnr.eni. \'«5,n>lcii imliali

Ami y ' /-y I
r.eiinc'o'iii.'.'i- rjy('2of2 Df'V _ try.-r,./.""? ^
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPUANCE WITH REQUlREf^ENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASEO ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

Tbo Vfuiclof identified In Section 1,3 of the Genef^il F\ovisjions agreef. ijy signnt'ire of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Soctions 1.1) and 1,1/1 of the General Provi.sions, to oxoculc the following
eertilicatiofi!

Vondor will comply, and will require any subgranleon or siibconlrar.tors to comply, v/ith any applicaOlo
fcdertil nondisctimination loquirontGnis, which n^ay iiiclude;

-  the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment praciicos or In
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national rjilgin, and sox. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce nn Equal Linployment Opportunity f^lari;

- the Juvenile Jiislice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
leferenco, the civil righl.s ohiigalions of the Sale Streets Act. Recipients of fodnral (uncl'ng under this
statiito are prohibited froni discrirniualing, eillier in fcrnpIoy'Tir.;nt praciicfts or in the delivery of servlc?;?? or
btmefils. on the basis of race color, religion. ri;-iliori?i! origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Eniployment Opportunity Plan lequircinenls;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U,S C. Section 2000d, whicfi prohibits recipients of foderal financial
arv&intnncc from diseriminaling on tlio basis of race, color, or riatipnal origin in any progiam or activity);

- tho Kehabiiiltilion Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). wtilch prohibits recipients of Fedftral financial
assistance Iroin discriininaling on (he basis r)f rtifiotjilily. in regard jo oriijiloynioii! and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity.

- the Americans witli Disaliilitieo Act of 1990 (42 U.y.C. Sections 12VJI -34), wtiicli ["toiiitjits
i.tiscriiiiinatiofi and ensures riqual Ofjpoiiunity lor (xirsons wilti disabililios in employmonl. Stale ;*fKl local
government setviecfi. public 'iccommodations. commercial fficililies. nivj tr.'inspvitlalion;

- Ihc Education AmrjrvJr-nunts ol 1&/2 (20 IJ S.C. Sections 1681, 1683. 1085-80). whieh pfohi!)ils
diserlniination on the basis of sex in federally n.ssi-jtcd uducalion programs;

- the Ago Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohit;iiis discrimiiwtion ot\ tiio
basis of ago in proyram.s or acliviiios toeoiving f-edcn! financial assistance, li docs not include
f;tn|4oymenl discriivJiiolion;

- 28 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Dopyrlruent ol Justice Regulations - OJJDI-' Grant Programs); 28 C.C.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Dcpoiimenl of Juslicc Rogulnlions • Nonrjisaiminalion; Er^uo) Eifiploymont OppKirlunity; Policies
and Procedures): Lxeculivo Order No. 13279 (oqiioi protection of the Inw.s for failh-hased and cotniminily
orgnni;mtion5); Exeeiiiive Order No. 13559. vvhldi provirle fundamontal priticipios an<.l (policy-making
'jiileria for (lariner.iilrips willi failii-bnsed and noighboiliood organizations.

- 28 C.r.R. pt. .38 (U.S. Urqinrimmil of Ju.sticu f^ngulalions Eqi/al T reatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and VN'hisilrjhIowor proteetions 41 U.S.C, f)47l2 and The National Defense Authoiizalion
A'.-t (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacled January 2. 2013) Hie Pilot Progrorn for
Enhonc.cmenl of Omlraci Empioyoe VVhistleh-lower F'roiections. which protects Qmployees against
roiirisal for onrlain wfiistie blowing aclivitios in corinection v/ith federal giynts and contracts.

The coriificale sol out below is a malMn'at rf-!|»esenl.alion ol foci upon wtiicii tolianco is placed when tiio
agency awards Hin grant. False ccsrlificalion or violaliofi of t'lO cortificatiori shall lie grounds for
suspension of paymerils, suspension or lerminrition of grants, or ciovomment wide suspension or
rlebarmcnt.

I U.ilvt G

V'c;.'K<f>r Inil nlj 3. .•■)
i:. nv. i-.j i:.t u-.K-;.;! ll x Ov ti.- '"/'i. I'-.i-o T- •!! ,r - £► j-r.val.
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or Stale administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Deparlrrierit of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply v/ilh the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name: \WC

Date NameT^
Title:

Eiliibil G

Vendor Initials
CcnOHMonoTCo^iancc wUi r*<;uh«)n*oti pwtalpiA] la >'ede(.< NcfdicinSnatcM. E<;i:ol TiaAtntnlofFailheaMd OruaritiAurw

«n4 WNtttaUcMni
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C - Envlronmenlal Tobacco Smoke, also known as Ihe Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities furvjed solely by
Medicare or Modicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the Imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
S1000 per day and/or the imposition of an adminislrativo compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting jliis contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C, known as tho Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name: To-Covv%f^ iWL

Date Name: t>ci^
Title:

.\\u(

itialsExriibit H - CerUficstion RcgurUtng Vendor initials'
Envlronmenlal Tobacco Smoke / I -^ /

cu'OHKvnori? Page 1 ol 1 Dota Ipl
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABIHTY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Gonlractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Guneriil Provisions of Itie Agreefiient agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Securily of Individually Idenllfiablo Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicoble to lousiness associates. As defined heroin. "Business
Associate" shall rrtsan the Conliaclor and subcontmctors and agents of the Contfactor that
receive, use or have access to protected health inlofrnalion under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity"" shall mean the Stale of New Hampshire. Departnienl of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

3- "Breach" shall have the same meaning as li^e term "'Breach" in section 164.-102 of Title 45,
Code of Pedera! Regulations.

b. "'Busitioss Associate" has lite meaning given such term in section 100.10.3 of Title 45, C*.)cle
of Federal Regulations.

d- 'Coverecl Eniily"' has the tneaning given such torm in section 100.103 of T illo 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b- "Deskmated Kecord Set"shall have the same moaning as the term "clcsignalod record sol"
in 45 Cf^f^ Section 164.501.

"Oata Aggrenation" shall have the same meaning a.s the terni "fiala aggregation ' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

F  "Health Care Operations" shnit have the same moaning as ttie term "hoaUh care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Heallh Infofmalion Technology for Economic and Clinical Heaiti)
Act. Tjt!ex[||. Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvcstmcnl Act of
2009..

b- "HIPAA" means ttic Heallh Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Indivkiually Identitiable Heallh
Infor'naiion, 45 CFR Ptirls 160. 162 and 104 and an^oncinK-nls thereto.

i- '"liidividual" shall have the same meaning as the term "indivkluar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall Include a person wlio Qualifies as a pefsonal represnntalive i'l accordance v/ith 45
CFR Section 164.50Ug).

i- shall moan the Standaids for Privncy of Individually Idenlifiatjlu Health
information nl 45 CFR Paris 160 and 164. promulgated under FIIPAA by the United Stales
LTcpartrnent of Heallli and Human Services.

k. "Piotecled Health Information" shall have Ihe stmie nteanitig as the term " prolecled health
information" in 45 CFR Suction 160.103, iimiied to the information created or received l»y
Business A.ssociate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. . <1

1  COfil'iT. liif !ii:liah .T";-
Hvflili PotM'iili'y Aci

AQrc-Miicnt /
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meanir»g as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designec.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart 0. and amendments thereto.

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164. as amended from lime to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
•Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
lit. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business AssociatG is permitted under ttie Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure. (I)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will bo held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidontiatity of the PHI, to the extent It has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI In response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by (aw. without first notifying
Covered Entity so ihat-Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such, disclosure, the Business

3/2014 ExhibiU Contfactof Inlliala
HeollMnsurftncc Portflbility Act
Gusinoss Asaocmlo Agroemflnt / /
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tlfh

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. Th© Business Associate shall notify (he Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information ool provided for by the Agreement Including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/or any security Incident that may have an Impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment wlien it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

0  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved. Including the
types of idenlifiers and the likelihood of re-identificalion:

o  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0  VVhether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its inlornal policios and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained heroin, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Secllor> 3 (1). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements wilh Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

Cooiractor Initials
Mesllh lnr.u(anf:e PorlabilltY
Business Associate AQreement
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at Its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's comptiance with tho terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

I. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ton (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accouhling of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164,528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, tlie Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Enlily of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of lerminallon of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such P.HI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or Uie disposilion of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to In
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limll further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction Infeasible, for so long as Business J

3/2014 ExfBbiil ContfactofInitials "Ot * ^
Hoalll) Insuranco Porbtbllily Ai.'i
Businftis Associate Aflrocnwnl
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, In its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Businoss Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obliqatloris of Covorod Entity

a, Covered Entity sitall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) In its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes In. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on tiie use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent'that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions {P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timcframe specified by Covered Entity, If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. Alt terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as Is necessary for Covorod
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and slate law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parlies agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. ^

3/2014 Exlublt I Contractor Inlliala —
Health Insiirunce Portability Act
Businoss Assoclato Agreement
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Seqfegalion, It any tcfm or condition ot th s Exhibit I or the opplicaiion thereof to any
pefson{s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not afted olhoi terms or
conditions v/hich can bo given effect without the invalid term or oundilion: to this ond the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severablc.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I rrtgnrding Iho use and disclosufo of PHI return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of Iho proleclions of the Agreement In section (3) I, llici
defense and indemnification provisions of socllon (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive (he lern-ination of tho Agreement.

Ifvl WITNESS WHEREOF, tho parties iiordo have duly executed this Exhibit I

Deu^rtriicnl of Health Scivices

AiHhcirizcd ̂ piesontotivt;

.. ..■>1 Autnwize^cpf^elentntivc
U)tccJ^ (jihfni

Ttflo of AiithorizcaKspresenlaliyc

_ Czi:
bale

Niimc Con^^cloif M

Siyiialuu! of Authorized Noprcscntativo

^eaAv\o. ^vib-.Wu'fi
Name ol Authorized Re[)resentfiliv(:

Titie of Authorized f^cprosontativu

Dale

I'^liUill
I k'lilihifiMiiuiv;« I'o'tah I ty Au
L5ii'.iiH!$<i AivocmU'

0 uf r. ■
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACTJFFAT^icg^

The Fedora) Funding Accountahility and Transparency Act (FFATA) reqiiiros prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the av,-ard is subject to the FFATA leporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Deportment of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract awaid subject to the FFATA reporting requirements'
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program numticr for grants
5. Program source
6. Av/ard. title dr?scfiptive nf the purpose of the funding action
7. t.ocalion of the entity
8. Principle place of per formance
Ci. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10, Total compensation and names of Die top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from tlie Federal government, and those
.  revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available througli reporting to lite SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by iho end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award aniendmenl is made.

the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General (Vovisions agrees to comply with Ihn provisions of
The Federal Funding Accounlabilily and Transparoncy Act. Public Law 109-252 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Sut)award and FJxecutive Compenc.ation Information), and further ogrces
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 anri 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The belov/ named Gonlractrjr agrees to proytde needed information as outlined above to tfie NM
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the f-ederal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Namo:'Vh- f^-cVvtjA l^^6,

,

Date

Evtiibli J - Ceni'icaiiO'i Rcg-^rduiH Ifiu FerJvai l-iinriir.g Conli.ir.tor Iriitinis j
Anrouoinbilily Ami Tranipiv'sncy Ad (FFATA) Compliance /' / ? / "D
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FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is;

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receivo (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annual
gross revenues frorVi U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgranls. and/or
cooperative agreements?

V NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives In your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Inlernal Revenue Code of
1906?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to ff3 above Is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and corripensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as foliows'

Name;,

Name:

Name;

Name'

Name;

ArTrounl.

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

cu'urtiis'iic'o

Cxfiitf(J- Corriricafion ffie FocTeraf funrfmg
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance

Page 2 of 2
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitiohs

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same n'^eaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidenlial information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information,

Confidential Information also Includes any and all information owned or managed by
the Slate of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing coritraclod
services - of which collecllan, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
stale or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not lirnitcd to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI). Personal Finahcial
Information (PFl), iFederal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Paymanf C^ard ̂ )n6vs\ry (PCI), and or ofher sensifivc and confidenfiaj jnformalion.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract,

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" moans an act that polenlially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes allenip.ls (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unv/anlecl disruption or denial of service, Ifje unauthorized use of
a syslern for the processing or storage of data; and changes to systerh hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacemoht. loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will f)e considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or 'Pr) means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, sucfi as their name, social security riumber. personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as dale and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
Stales Department of Heallh and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information' (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Heallh Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Securlly Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Heallh Informallon at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. ''Unsecured Protected Health InformaliorF means Protected Heallh Information that is
;not '.secured iby a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that Is accredited by
the Amerlcarl National Standards Institute,

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. Tfio Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmil Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as oullincd under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, n>usl not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, In response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies ttie Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional rostriclions .and must not disclose PHI in violation of such odditlona!
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees itiat DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated In this Contract.

6. Tl»e Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices, End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email Is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must bn used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hpsting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

G. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. (f End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

'8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will

be coded for 24-hour auto-delotion cycle (I.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor w\\\ have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retenlion

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply In the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential security events that can impact Slate of NH systems
and/or Departrnenl confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information,

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and Idonlified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, antl-spyware. and anli-malware utilities. The onvironrhent, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B, Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain wrillen certification for any Stale of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing Slate of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described In NISI Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitizalion, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contraclor will document and certify In writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. tJnless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the terminalion of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Conlidenlial Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless .olhenrtrise specified, within thirty (30) days of the ilermination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to com,Dlelely rieslroy aJI elecLronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Cor)traclof agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1, The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential iriformation collecled, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle. where applicable, (from
creation. Ifansforrnation, use. storage and secure destnjction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (I.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure pmpor security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact Slate of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for Stato of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an ir)lernal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to socurily requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, Including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply, with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Deportment syslem(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines tire Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with ttie Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of ll're Contractor engagement. Tlie survey will be completed
■annually, or an aJtcrnate time framri nt the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Deparlmonl may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagerrtenl belweeri the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Stale of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United Stales unless
prior express written consent Is obtained from the Informatioi'r Security Office
leadership mombcr within the Deparlmenl,

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take nieasures to
prevent future breach and minirriizc any damage or loss resulting .from the breach.
The Stale shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain.the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 tJ.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govem protections for individually Identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to prolecl the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the Stale of New Hampshire. Dcparlmonl of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://wvAv.nh,gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notincation and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the Slate's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security Incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any Stale of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the Slate of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. corripiy wifh such safeguards as referenced in Section tV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract froni loss, theft or Inadvertonl disclosure.

b. safeguard this information al all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI,-or
PFl are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to Ihe extent permltled by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
blometric identifiors, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, Including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable Informalioni and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party applicatiorK

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct ensile inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such lime the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSSiREPORTING

The Contractof mast notify the State's Privacy Officer artd Serxtrity Officer of any
Security incidohls and Breaches immediately, at the emaii addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches Involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with A2 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractors compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Conlracloi will;

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. if so. Identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, liming, source, and contents from among different
optiohs. and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSccurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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